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Company
profilevalue of

investment property

over

1~250,O(Q)O
m2 GLA of income-producing

properties

NE PROPERTY COOPERATIEF U.A (~the Company") Is
a cooperative with the exclusion of liability incorporated
In the Netherlands on 22 October 2007 and domiciled
at Paulus Potterstraat 32-2, 10710B Amsterdam, the
Netherlands.

The Company Is part of the NE Property CoOperatlef
U.A, Group (further referred to as the "Group"), having
the ultimate parent NEPI Rockcastle pic (further
referred to as °NRP"), a limited liability company
Incorporated in the Isle of Man. NRP Is listed on the Main
Board of the Johannesburg Stock Exchange limited
(JSE) and on Euronext Amsterdam (OEuronext·). The
group of companies which Include the Group and other
related companies up to the level of NRP is further
referred to as the "NRP Group·.

The merger of New Europe Property Investments plc
(UNEPJU)and Rockcastle Global Real Estate Company
(ORockcastle") created In NEPI Rockcastle pIc the
largest retail real estate group In Central and Eastern
Europe. and this strategic rationale was supported by
the shareholders.

The Group owns and manages B portfolio of dominant
retail properties in the following high-growth CEE
countries: Romania, Bulgaria, Slovakia. Croatia. Czech
Republic and Serbia.

The Group benefits from a highly-skilled Internal
management team which combines asset management.
development. Invostment, Icaslng and financial
expertise. GeographIcally diverse management skills
allow NRP Group to pursue Central and Eastern
European (CEE) property opportunities more efficiently,
benefiting from a strategic advantage In the aceulsition,
development and management of properties.

The Group Is well positioned for growth, driven by
Its best-in-class operating platform. as well as its
historically proven capacity to deploy existing capital
resources Into attractive direct property Investments.

The Group's financial profile Includes maintaining high
liQuidity. low gearing, and a diverse debt structure,
which combines secured and unsecured bank debt with
unsecured bonds listed on the Irish Stock Exchange.
NRP Group is Investment-grade rated by Moody's
(Baa3. positive outlook), Standard 8. Poor's (BBB, stable
outlook) and FItch (BBB, stable outlook),

At 3' December 2017. the Company had 3 members of
the Board of DIrectors - Mlrela Covasa. Eugen Barba
and Jan van Vollenhoven.

nearly

250,000
m2 GLA of

developments and extensions

employees

9909%
collection rate

97%*
occupancy rate

<,))77~ 1:1 n n Dover

~II & MDuuBOl111
visits in 2017

• Includlflg jaml ventUl'l!'
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Strong strategic positioning
oriented towards
fang-term growth

The Group's strategy is based on a sustainable business
model which combines the high-Quality of assets with the
success of the tenants and prudent financial management,
enabling the Group to deliver sustainable Income growth
over the long-term.

INVESTMENT APPROACH
The Group is committed to invest selectively in assets that
meet its rigorous investment criteria. Retail assets must
be or have the potential to be dominant. Size is critical
to achieve comprehensive offering and an optimum
tenant mix, including large proportion of food and fashion
anchors with a substantial leisure and entertainment area.
Good location, access, visibility, deSign and technical
specifications, and potential for extension reduce the
threat of significant future competition.
Professional active management of such properties
creates significant and valuable growth opportunities

The Group pursues low-risk development, redevelopment
and extension opportunities, in a non-speculative phased
manner. Construction costs are committed to on a grndual
basis, following the achievement of pre-leasing targets
and are limited to the availability of internal sources of
financing.

The Group also owns and manages an office portfolio:
office buildings are located in large cities, in central
locations, and have excellent access to public
transportation, up-to-date technical specifications,
large floor areas, high efficiency rIItes and high parking
ratios. The Company has pursued office acquisitions and
developments on rare occasions, and the proportion of
offices, as a percentage of total assets, Is expected to
further decrease.

OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE
The Group's strong corporate culture is focused on
planning, Quality of execution, sustainablllty, ethics lind
early risk assessment.

The Group has In-house expertise in all key functions,
combining investment, development. asset and property
management, leasing, accounting and finance skills, in an
integrated approach.

Outstanding knowledge and expertise in the CEE retail
markets Is illustrated by best-in-class Indicators, such as
conSistently high collection and occupancy rates, low
occupancy cost for tenants, increase in tenant sales and
footfall and strong organic growth despite operating
In low inflation environments. Preventive maintenance
decreases long-term capital expenditure, service charge
levels and non-re<;overable expenses.

With a broad platform across six CEE countries and over
270 million visits, the Group Is focused on building strong,
trust-based relationships with leading retailers across
CEE, sharing both a long-term vision and the capacity for
Innovation.

PRUDENT FINANCIAL STRATEGY

The debt strategy focuses on a targeted 35% Ioan-to-
value (LTV), maintaining high Interest coverage ratios and
dIversifying financing sourcos to optimise cost of debt.
Debt funding Is biased towards group-level unsecured
bonds and revolving facilities, adding secured bank debt
only when It decreases the overall cost of funding. As at 31
December 201"/, the LTV ratio was 28%.
The Investment-grilde credit ratings (currently limited by
Romania's sovereign rating) are expected to Improve as
the portfolio Is further diversified.

The Group maintains a prudent liquidity profile
whl::h Includes Cash accounts and deposits held with
investment-grade banks, and significant committed
unsecured revolving facilities (€380 million at
31 December 2017).

"'E PROIolFQ1\' COOPER'Alle; uA - AfI\:frIIUAt,. REPOR'r 2017
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DESIGN AND CONCEPT

The Group focuses on creating social spaces, seamlessly
integrated In the lifestyle of Its customers. Open-air
terraces have been added to all new developments and
there is an ongoing effort to add them into existing
assets. Food-courts are turned into social gathering
points, enticing customers to Increase their dwell time
and sponding. In addition, the Group strives to Improve
continuously the access and internal flow of customers by
improving constantly the existing assets.

"I. ""OPEl'll. cco.'~,o.T'EF UII - A"'NVA, ~fPORT 2011

A SUCCESSFUL TENANT MIX

Shopping centres are becoming urban lifestyle hubs,
combining the shopping experience with leisure, cultural
activities and services.

An excellent tenant mix is a critical success factor, and
this target IS reflected in an adaptive and flexible tenant
approach;

Focused on newer "Mlllennialu concepts, the
shopping centers host broader offers such as
events. pop-up stores, demo rooms and food
halls;
The shopping centres provide everyday
conveniences as they are anchored by
hypermarkets or supermarkets, and satisfy daily
needs such as offering a wide range of services
which Include banks, insurance, travel agencies,
hairdressers, dry cleaning, small repairs, gym;
Many shopping centres are anchored by a
strong and well known fashion offering. The
shopping centres feature diverse activities
such as cinemas (including 3D. 4DX and IMAX
concepts). gyms and restaurant areas as
well as enhanced services including pleasant
relaxation spots, beauty services, children's
play areas, amenities, spacious parking places
and entertainment to create excitement and an
optlmel customer experience.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

• Total value of direct property pcrttollo owned and
managed by the Group of over 4:3.5 billion (including
Joint ventures);

• ACquisitions and developments finalised during
2017 of €594 million. with 239,200m2 added to Gross
Lettable Area (~GLA·);

• Net Operating Income C·NOn of €192 million In 2017;
IInnuall,ed passing rent amounts to C227.7 million
(including Joint ventures);

• Collection of 99.91% of annual contractual rental
income and expense recoveries;

• Service charae costs 98% recovered;

- Occupancy of 97%:

• Loan to Value ratio ("l.Tvn) of 28%. below the
Group's target of 35%:

• Investment-grade credh rating Issued by all three
major rating agencies;

• Successful C500 million Eurobond Issue In November
2017. further reducing weighted average cost of debt to
2.9%. and Increasing the remaining weighted average
maturity to 4.8 years;

• Currently. all interest rate exposure related to long·
term loans Is 100% hedged, with a remaining weighted
average hedge term of 5.1 years.

OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

• Market entry Into Bulgaria. with the acqulsitton of
prime assets In Sofia. The Group now controls the
two leading shopping centres in the Bulgarian capital
(Serdlka Center and P1tradlse Center);

• Completion of five developments or extensions.
primarily in Romania, with lettlngs to leading
International retailers including Carrefour, Cinema
City. Douglas. Hervis. New Yorker. Orsay. Sephora,
Starbucks. and multiple Inditex brands:

• Tenants' turnover Increillied by 9.0%, while turnover/
m' Increased by 7.4" (iike-fcr-like):

• Footfall Increased by 2,9% (Iike-for-like).

'All Informarfon In the Directors' report exclvdes joint ventures.
unless otherwise stated

HE PR:OPERTY COOJ»EAATtE':: UA .. ANNUAL ~EPoRl ~011
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ACQUISITIONS

The Group completed acquisitions of €457 million during
2017, adding II total of over 162,OOOm3 GLA to Its direct
property portfolio. The Group entered the Bulgarian
market through the ecqulsttlon of Serdlka Center, and
a few months later consolidated its dominant position
In Bulgaria by acquiring Paradise Center, Sofia,

SERDIKA CENTER AND OFFICE
Soha, OulganGl
Ac outsition dille 22 AU911!Ot20\ 7

The Group acquired Serdika Center, a 51,500m2 GLA
modern shopping centre witt1 a strong tenant mix,
benefiting from an excellent location close to Sofia's
city centre and Serdika Office, a Class A office situated
atop the shopping centre, with 2a,5oom3 GLA. Sofia,
the capital city of Bulgaria. has a population of 1.3:7
million residents, with 327,000 inhabitants within a
1S-minuto drive from Serdika Center. The centre has
an annual footfall in excess of 6.5 million peoplo.

PARADISE CENTER
',·:)11;') l3u1n~r':)
t\: qLJi~i' :)/', :1.1·e. 1December :2017

The Group acquired Paradise Center. the largest modern
shopping centre in Sofia with 82.000m2 GLA. and
consolidated its position in the Bulgarian market with
ownership of the two best performing retail assets in
the capital city. Paradise Center Is the best performing
shopping centre In Sofia. a city-wide destination located
in the wealthy southern part of the city. with an annual
footfall1n excess of 10.4 million visitors. Over ;>86,000
inhabitants are located within a IS-minute drive from the
shopping centre.

The COUIlt')' and cffectJV'Ii or oPl!(lIng dal'f> _1r>r;1urJ~d in INar:Jtets
PopuI.ri0lJ5 o!InI ftstim;)te ..
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DEVELOPMENTS AND EXTENSIONS

The Group is pursuing a development pipeline which
exceeds €1,020 million (including redevelopments and
extensions, estimated at cost). of which €176 million was
spent during 2017, Undertaking redevelopments and
extensions to existing properties Is a driver for future

growth, ensuring that the Group maintains Its pre-eminent
position in the market and its superior retail relationships.
thus de-risking the business and delivering higher Quality
earnings.

COMPLETED DEVELOPMENTS AND EXTENSIONS

THE OFFICE CLUJ-NAPOCA
THIRD PHASE
Horn~nia
Gponlf)g dille; Romani" .. ~O June 2017

The Group, together with its joint venture partner.
completed the 20.200m2 GLA third phase of The
Office. Cluj-Napoca. The total GLA of the office
complex Is now 63,600m2• The building is 9996 let.
Tenants Include renowned corporations such as
3 Pillar Global. 8xB. Betfair. Bombardier. Magneti
Marelli. Telenav. Thomsons and Wolters Kluwer.

VICTORIEI OFFICE BUCHAREST
Rumanl;)
Opening date: .30 .June 2017

Outstanding permits for internal flt-out of the 7.800m'
GlA landmark office located In central Bucharest were
received and the development was completed during
the year. The building Is fully let to major corporations
such as Fltbit. General Electric and Philip Morris.

SHOPPING CITY GALATI EXTENSION
~'J'r1.-IlI.:::

Opening rj<Jle:26 Novernbe, 2017

The Group successfully completed construction of
the 21.000m2 Gl.A extension to Shopping City Galati.
Shopping City Galati Is now a 49.100m2 GLA regional
mall. located in Galati, a city of 305.000 residents.
The centre is the prime shopping destination for the
559.000 Inhabitants that live within a 4S-mlnu\e
catchment area. The centre is 84.9" let. The
extension was leased to tenants such as: Bershka.
Cinema City, Douglas. Hervis. Pandora. Pull&Bear,
Sephora, Sport Vision. Starbucks and Stradivarius.

SHOPPING CITY RAMNICU VALCEA

Opening date: 7 December "().:

The Group completed the 2B.200m' GLA regional mall
in Ramnicu Valcea. a city of n9.000 residents. The
centre services 315,000 Inhabitants within IS 45-minute
catchment area. 95.396 of the centre is leased to
tenants such as: Altex. Carrefour. Cinema City (not yet
opened). Douglas, Hervls, Jysk. New Yorker and Orsay.

N:; PAOPEI;."':'\' COOPERAllEF UA ~ ANNUAL RErtOlll 2011 IS
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DEVELOPMENTS AND EXTENSIONS PIPELINE

SHOPPING CITY SATU MARE
f<on'anicl

The Group has received the required permits for the
development of a 2B.700m2 shopping mall in Satu
Mare. The city has a population of 123.000 residents
and 288,000 Inhabitants live within a 45-minute
drive thereof. Tenants include: Carrefour. with a
10.00Om· hypermarket, and key fashion retailers.
Construction works started In March 2018. and
management targets opening by the end of 201B.

PROMENADA NOVI SAD
Serbia

Construction has started on the first phase of a
shopping mall of approximately 49.400m2 GLA. The
city has a population of 319.000 residents and 607,000
inhabitants livo within a 45-minute drive of the site.
Tenant demand Is strong and various International
brands are planning to join the scheme. Numerous
retailers such as: Adldas, Calvin Klein, Clneplexx.
Converse. Diesel. Guess, Lacoste, Levi's, Nlke, Replay,
Sport Vision, Superdry, Timberland. Under Armour and
Unlverexport (with a 3.300m' supermarket) have already
been signed. The project has a unique central location
and will include a large food-court and dining area
(1.400m2), a fitness operator and II cinema. The Group
plans to open the centre In the fourth Quarter of 2018.

PROMENADA MAL!...EXTENSION
RomanIa

There has been limited traction in obtaining the required
approvals and permits tor the retail extension and
Integrated office building of Promenada Mall, a shopping
centre located In Bucharest's central business district.
Progress has been made, however at a significantly slower
rate than expected due to reasons outside ot the Group's
control. The retail extension will Include new fashion
brands, a 14-screen Cinema City, additional leisure and
entertainment facilities and 1,600 new parking spaces.

SHOPPING CITY SIBIU
RECONFIGURATION AND EXTENSION
Romania

The Group received zoning for refurbishing,
reconfiguring and extending Shopping City Siblu. a
l8,200m2 mall. The centre serves a catchment area
of 286,000 inhabitants within a 45-minute drive. The
extension will add approximately 9.700m2 GLA and
will improve the centre's fashion offering and will
further strengthen Its market positioning. It 15 expected
the extension to be finalised in December 2019.
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SHOPPING CITY TARGU MURES
Romania

The Group Is pursuing zoning approvals and permitting
to develop a 32.900m2 (in phase I) mell in Targu Mures.
a city wIth a population of 150.000 residents. The centre
will serve a catchment area of 306.000 inhabitants
within a 4S-minute drive. A large number of tenants
have already expressed their interest in the development
which will represent the first new generation shopping
centre In the city. The hypermari<et (Carrefour) has
signed a lease agreement for 10,000m2 GLA.

AURORA SHOPPING MALL - EXTENSION
Romania

The Group intends to start the refurbishment,
reconfigurlltlon and extension of Aurora Shopping Mall.
a mall that currently has 18.000m2 GLA and that will be
extended by an additional 5,900rnZ GLA. The centre is
located in Buzau, a city wlth IIpopulation of 136,000
residents and services a catchment area of 430,000
inhabitants within a 4S-mlnute drive. The following
tenants are already present: Altex, Animax, Benvenuti.
Carrefour, CCC, Deichmann, intersport, Kendra, KFC.
New Yori<er, Norlel. Orsay. Pepco. Sensiblu and Top Shop.
Cinema City (a 6-screen multiplex) has been signed and
will enter the centre following the extension. Subject
to permitting and receipt of required approvals, the
Group will start the development In HI 2018 and targets
opening the extended centre by the end of 2018.

KORZO SHOPPING CENTER -
EXTENSION

The Group is planning II 9.300mZ GLA extension of Korzo
Prievldza (Slovakia) Including a refurbishment of the
existing centre. The city of Prievidza has ill population of
48,000 residents and the centre services a catchment
area of 308,000 inhabitants within a 45-minute drive.
The extension Is aimed at Improving the retail mix with
new fashion brands, extending the leisure offering (larger
food-court. additional cinema Mils) and Improving the
overall shopping experience with a 50~ larger parking.
improved amenities and easier client access. Currently
the project Is In the design and permitting stage. The
extension is planned to be opened in 03 2019.

FESTIVAL SIBIU - DEVELOPMENT
1~()manJa- '." :'cqvcnt event

In February 2018, the Group acquired Festival project.
a 3.4ha land in the centre of Siblu which is permitted
for the development of a 43.000mZ GLA shopping
centre. Sibiu has IIpopulation of 170.000 residents lind
Festival is expected to service ill catchment of 162,000
Inhabitants within a 15-min drive. Key international
tenants are secured: Kaufland (with Its first hyper-market
integrated in iii shopping centre in Romania), Inditex
(with several brands Including Zara). HBcMand a
cinema operator. This development will complement
the city's other retail property (Shopping City Sibiu).
The centre is expected to open by the end of 2019.

OTHER EXTENSIONS

The Group is also pursuing several other extensions to its
existing assets which will be announced in due course.

NE PROPE~v C,?~PI!~AT:~F UA· ANNUAL REPORT zm'"' 15
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CASH MANAGEMENT AND DEBT

In 2017. Moody's have revised the outlook on the Baa3
rating from stable to positive. and Standard and Poor's
have upgraded NEPI Rockcastle's rating from BBB- to
BBB. with a stable outlook. NEPI Rockcastle Group also
obtained a BBB rating with a stable outlook from Fitch.
After a roadshow with European fixed-income investors
in November 2017, the Group issued €500 million of
unsecured. 7-year Eurobonds maturing on 23 November
2024. carrying a 1.75" fixed coupon, with an issue price
of 99.051". This Is the second time the Group has raised
material amounts from European Investors. enabling it
to compete more effectively In the Central and Eastern
European real estate markets in the long term. The Group
has a broad bondholder base, ranging from large asset
managers, banks, pension and insurance companies to
international finoncial institutions such as the International
Finance Corporation (part of the World Bank group) and
the European Bank for Reconstruction and Development.
The proceeds have been partly used for the acquisition
of I='aradlse Center (Sofia, Bulgaria), while the balance of
the proceeds will be used for funding the acquisitions and
developments pipeline.

During the year, the Group contracted €250 million In
unsecured revolving facilities from lNG, Societe Generale
and Garanti Bank. The Group benefits from a diversified
funding base, and was complying with all debt covenants
as at 31 December 2017. The Loan to Value (interest
bearing debt less cash divided by Investment property
and listed securities) was 28", below the gearing ratio
target of 35",The average Interest rate, including hedging
costs, was 2.9% during 2017, due to contractin9 new debt
at lower rates and decreasing the Interest margin on
the existing debt. As at 31 December 2017, flxed-coupon
bonds represented 84% of the Group's outstanding debt,
and out of the remalnlnq debt exposed to Eurlbor, 100%
was hedged with intereSt rate caps.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had a strong liQuidity
profile, with €157 million in cash and €380 million in
available unsecured revolving facilities.

VALUATION

The Group assesses the valuation of Its property portfolio
twice a year. Fair value is determined by external,
independent professional valuers, with appropriate and
recognised qualifications, and recent experience In the
locations and category of properties being valued. The
valuations as at 31 December 2017 were performed by
Cushman & Wakefield and Colliers Intemational.

11 NE PROPERTY C06PE~"1IEF JA .. A"INUAL RtPOHl JCn7
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Portfolio overview
GEOGRAPHICAL PROPERTY

PORTFOLIO PROFILE
SECTORAL PROPERTY
PORTFOLIO PROFILE
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by market value
Ill'-i: 2017

ov market value
Dec 2017

[] Romania 63%

o Bulgaria 14%

EJ Slovakia 12%

o Croatia 7%

Czech Republic 3%

El Serbia 1%

o Retail 85%

Office 14%

o Industrial 1%

Geographical property portfolio profile by gross rentals:
Romania - 65%. Bulgaria - 14%. Slovakia -11%.
Croatia - 7%. Czech Republic - 2% iIInd Serbia - 1%.

Sectoral property portfolio profile by gross rentals:
Retail- 84%. Office - '5% and Industrial- ,,,.

Geographical property portfolio profile by rentable area:
Romania - 71%, Bulgaria - 12%. Slovakia - 8%.
Czech Republic - 2%, Croatia - 5% and Serbia - 2%.

Sectoral property portfolio profile by rentable area:
Retail - 83%, Office - 1596and Industrial - 2%.

KEY PROPERTY INFORMATION
QroIiP Group

11Dec 2017 )1 Dec 201&

Total number of pn)pertIe ••
Income-producing properties
Greenfield developments
Extensions to existing properties

47 ....
42 37

5 7
7 6

Fair value of properties (€ million)" 3,438 2,641
Annuallsed property yield (by passing rent)
Lettableare. (thO~;d-~i)-- ._ ..,.~.... -_.

._. ..____?:9~. .;_:7.~3%;.;:.
1,528 1,J14

Income-producing properties 1.275 1.043
253 291PropertIes under development (estimated)

Weighted awralle remalnlnilleasa tem'I. 4.5 5.0
Weighted ave ... ,,_ rent (e/m"/month)" 14.9 14.4--.~~ .. -------
• I:JtCIIJd&s OX>I>-COI''' lYOPH/I", lIpid (<>, we
All fI!ifIJNJS /(I tnlS sectJOII ¥8 W91ghtrld by ownersNp.
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OVERVIEW OF VALUATION YIELDS

Country Segment •. _ .•.. __ ~'!I~~_prapertl .. PrIme wield· Cap!b..... tlon raw·'

Romania Retail 24 6.75,," 7.25""

Romania Office 5 7.25% 7.25%
--

Romania I_ndustrlal 2 8.75% 10.00"

Croatia Retail 7.00'111 7.00%

Serbia Retail 8.00% e.50"
.~ ..~.---

Slovakia Retail 4 5.25% 6.75%

Slovakia Office 6.25% 7.50"
-~.- --._,._--

Czech Repubhc Retail 4.25% 6.25%
~--"--------------------

Bulgaria Retail 2 7.50% 7.25%_._, ,,~ ... - ----- ---_----- ---

Bulgaria Office " 7.75" 8.()0'-'

• SOU7't'e.'Cust>man & Wake/i9kJ. Marker SnNJ$hot. 04 2017
.. P'!IT:"",agtl. f'f!/Xf!sent """fages _/gIIl8~ by MiNltel V.I""" 1111<1roll'l<ied 10 the doullt 25 bps

RENTAL ESCALATIONS
The annual rise In rental Income projected Is partially index-linked to the european Consumer Price Index (CPI) and partially from
contractual gradual rental lease increase as per existing contracts as at 31 December 2017. The weighted average rental escalation
does not Include Impact from leasIng renewal actIvities as per initIal contract. Out of the total operational GLA as at the year end.
the weighted average rental escalation by rentable area is pnasented below:

TOTAL, out of whleh: 1.82"_._----_._------------
:.92)0

Office

h,dvstrial

VACANCY PROFILE

The vaeancy calculated as a portion of avaJlable rentable arca at the end of 2017 was 3% (excluding properties held for sale)
compared to 2.0% at the end of the previous year.

Out of the 37.866m' of rentable area vacant as at 31 December 2017. 34.035m' was retail space (2.7%). 3.281m" office (0.27%) and
550m"lndustrlal (0.03%).

The vacant retail space Is due to the acquisitions tor which these vacancies have II high potential for rental uplift (Paradise
Center. Bulgaria) and new completed developments and extensions. for which the Initial vacancy will be recluced during 2018
(Shopping City Ramnlcu Valcea. Shopping City Galati. Romania).

NE' PR:)pe~lV CO~PERATI[F' UA w ANNUAL REPO~l" '"017 U
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Portfolio overview» c.ont Ii 11 J(~d

EXPIRY PROFILE
;'f.

1j!00 -----_._--------------- " ,

u....__'~ e

201a 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 202& 2027+

[]R(!t~11 oOther

TENANT PROFILE TOP 10 RETAIL TENANTS

Type A: Large International and national
tenants, large listed tenants, government and
major franchises (companies with assets and/
or turnovers In excess of (200 million),

, ...+-$7 -a:,,;j. ii..~--.\t-;'''' "~ if' I 'j .ill 5'"

c;,=::r::r;;,....~j~ it; =.J#:,,@l :"
Type B: Smaller international and national tenants,
smaller listed tenants and medium to large
professional firms (companies with assets and/
or turnovers ranging from €lOO to (200 million).

r , ?

Type C: Other tenants

LPP'"

~~ ,
c::J E·

~;o 1,

c:::::J r

cr:IJ I.

,
,AU'IUC

-
Typ. B

66"

4"

'Bersklc •. M" .. lmc Dutil. Oysho, Pull and Bear,Stradivarius end Zara
•• Reserve<l. Cropp Town. House. Mohlto, Sln,ay• Type A

{&] Type C 30"

20 NE P~CPERTV COOPtRATIEF UA· ANNUAL Rl~OQl "JO,'
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With;; total of 24 regional malls and value
centres, the Group is the largest owner of

retail space in the country.

over

726,000
ml GLA of retail

income-producing
properties

(€1~636m
property value

~7a6%
occupancy rate

(€1~6m
passing rent

9a7%
increase in

tenants turnover"

5al%
increase in

footfall"

·flke·fol·II/(fJ
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ROMANIA

Mega Mall
'3u(.iI~··e'l

City Park
ConS~all,i)

Ownership 100% Ownership 100%
GLA 75.800m' GLA l:)2.100m'
Valuation €306.1 million Valuation €181.0 million
Passing rent €19.0 million Pa"'ng rent €l7.Bmllllon
Occupancy 97.9% Occupancy 97.1\lE

Ownership 100% Ownership 100%
GlA 39.400ml GlA S6.900ml
Valuation €196.0 million ValuatIon €120.2 million
PassIng rent €12.0million Passing rent €8.6 million
Occupancy 99.4% Occupancy 100%

Promenada Mall
Buchar est

Shopping City Timisoara
Ttrnisoore
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RETAIL

Shopping City Sibiu
sibl:J

Iris Titan Shopping Center
Bucharest

OWnerahlp 100% Ownership 100%
GLA 78.200ml Gl.A 4S.000m'
Valuation €116.9 million Valuation €96.8mllllon

Pu.tnG rent €8.S million Pauln, rent €7.S million
Occupancy 96.4% Occupancy 99.7%

Shopping City Galati
(;,..Idi

Shopping City Deva
Deva

Ownership 100% Ownership 100%
GLA 49.100m2 GLA 52.500m·
Valuation €101.S million Valuation €77.7milllon
Passing ,ent €6.S million PallIng rent €6.S mllli~n
Occupancy· 84.9% Occupancy 100%
'21.000"'; tlxten$lonc"er.e~ In No, ...mbe, 2017.

Nr PROJ:ER'TY CCOs:'f.A"~JF.r LA .. j.NNVAl A£PO~T 7011 U
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ROMANIA

j3t<lj!t., Mall
Il'I";"i

Vulcan Value Centre
Bucharest

Ownership 100')6 Ownership 100%
GLA 55,400mz GLA 24.600mz
Valuation €78.Rmillion Valuation €56.S million
Passing rent €6.1 million Paulngrent €4.0million
Occupancy 97.2% Occupancy 100%

f)it:(~si'i Retail Park
B:! ::l"'~ "

Ploiesti Shopping City
Ploiesu

Ownership 100% Ownership 50%
GLA 24.800m' GLA IIS.aOOm'
valuation €35.1 million GLA weighted by ownership 22.900m2
Passing rent €3.8 million Valuation weighted by ownership €Sl.0 million
Occupancy lOG1f. Passing rent weighted by ownership €3.6 million

Occupancy 95.3%
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RETAIL

Shopping City Piatra Neamt
t-1u~trQ: N(,'ilrn~

Shopping City Targu Jiu
j.-jrgu JJLi

Ownership 100% Ownership 100%
GLA 2ll.DOOan' GLA 27.100m"
Valuation £47.9 million ValuatIon €44.1 million
Passing rent €3.S million Passing rent €3,3miilion
Occupancy 100% Occupancy 99.8%

Shopping City Ramnicu Valcea
'lie i '/,s: .;",:

Severin Shopping Center
\ IIr nu SpV(.;l1r,

Ownership 100% Ownership 100%
GLA 2a.200m" GLA 22.600m"
Valuation ~42.1 million ValuatIon t'34 :3 rnluion
Passing rent €2.9 million PaSSing rent €2.4 million
Occupancy· 95.3% Occupancy 99.7%
'28.200m" OflVfllopmenr op9fl9d In December 2017.

~£O. pr.-OPEttj 'r CO:~tRATIEr UA .r..NN'l...lt .. R:£PC~T 2011 &1
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ROMANIA

Aurora Shopping Mall
t!Ulau

----- -.- --_ --..--~ -- -----------
Ownership _ . . '_,0_0-'91-"0-

GLA l8,OOOm'
Valuation €lS.S million
Passing rent (2.2 million

~~c:,!~ncy 99.7~

Regional Strip centres
/deJ 1i.:l1<,:1 ,~k.-,:-:<)\'.jr .~. P';I~(JV. CJC!·,·;:":::f. ("".t·~;('lt..J

OwnershIp 100%
GLA 2S.BOOm'
Valuation (32.9 million
PassIng rent €2.6 million
Occupancy 100%
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RETAIL

After the 2013 acquisition of a dominant
regional mall and establishment of a strong
local management team, the Group further

extended its presence in Slovakia in 2014 and
2016. The Group currently owns four regional

malls, one office building and land for the
development of a retail or mixed-use scheme.

The Group will continue to strengthen its
presence in Slovakia.

over

85000
~2 GLA of retail

income-producing
properties

€371m
property value

91a6%
occupancy rate

€24m
passing rent

307%
increase in

tenants turnover"

(Oa?l~
footfall"

NE PR'OP~NiV COOPERATtEF!JA - ANNUAL REPORT 2011 11



Aupark Kosice Mall
Koslce

Aupark Zilina
Zsiln<)

Ownership 100')6 OwnershIp 100%
GLA 33.800m' GLA 25.100m'
Valuation €166.2 million Valuation €124.B million
Passing rent {9.9 million Passing rent €8.1 million
Occupancy 95.2% Occupancy 100%
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Korzo Shopping Center
Korzo

Aupark Shopping Center Piestany
PIP.,:d:\Y

Ownership 100% Ownership 100%
GLA 16.'00m~ GLA 10.300ml~.--.. -.-.---.-'-~~-~Valuation €39.1 million Ya'uiltlon £<:1.0 million
p... rngrent €2.9 million Passing rent €2.7 million
Occupancy 9B.7% Occupancy 98.0%
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Paradise Center
SofIa

OwnershIp 100%
GLA B2,aOOm'
ValuatIon €254.7 million
passing rent €1S,7 million
Occupancy 88.5%

Serdika Center
Snfii!

Ownership 100%
GLA 51,500m2

Valuation (;161.4 million
€12.6 millionPassing rent

99.1%. - ...:...~c..:.
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in a locatton
in Novi and In 2017commenced the
construction of the shopping mall's first phase
of GLA.

over

occupancy rata

passing rent

40 NE PRO PERl Y cOoreRATlEF UA - AI\NU.lL IlEI'OI~T 2017
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Offices must have a central location, excellent
access to public transport, up-to-date

technical specifications, large floor areas, high
efficiency rates and high parking ratios. As

management of office properties has limited
potential for value creation, investments are

made opportunistically in developments where
high yields are achievable.

over

~91,OOO
m2 GLA of office

income-producing
properties

property value

98a2%
occupancy rate

€~§m
passing rent

NE Pr.O'E'~' y COOPE~A"IF.r UA - ANNl'Al REP-OPT 'U'17 41
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Floreasca Business Park
""ChM!',' Romania

...
Clt'J Business Centre
'I ~I')::~tllt~;;~)~t.1tHania

OwnershIp 100% Ownerlhlp 100%
GLA 36.300m2 GLA 47.800m'
ValuatIon €108.3 million Valuation €97.1 million
Passing rent €7.9 miflion PassIng ,ent €7.9 million
Occupancy 99.4% Occupancy 97.9%

ThE?Lakeview
:1U':;1<:r0:>1 R<H1'i.,lr,!a

The Office Cluj-Napoca
Cluj-Napoca. RomM'i··

Ownership 100% Ownership 50%
GLA 25.600m' GLA 63.600m'
Valuation €74.S million GLA weighted by ownership 3:.BOOr.,'
Passing ,ent €5.4 million Valuation weighted by ownership €61.1 million
Occupancy 98.8% PalSlng rent weighted by ownership €S.l million

Occupancy 99.0%

44 NE PQOPERT'r cotP':RJ\"'IEF IJA • ANNUI\';. Rt;OOR' '~17
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Serdika Office
SLtlC:, [hll'Jolkl

Victoriei Office

Ownership 100% Ownership 100%
GLA 28,500m' GLA 1.800ml
Valuation €51.1 million Valuation €40.7million
Paulngrent €3.9 million Pasllng rent €2.7 million
Occupancy 95.2% Occupancy 99.2%

Aupark Kosice Tower
I<';:,j'_,":. ~do ,rJ·...i(.l

Ownership 100%
GLA 12,900m'
Valuation €21.2 million
Palslng rent €1.8 !lIil!ioo
Occupancy 100%-- ..-.---------;.;;....:~

NF pnOJ'>FA'Ty rCOPfRt.,. .. JFF U4. ~ ,t.'''NIJA;,. AF,=-ORT 20'7 U
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Portfoiio overview>contlnued
DEVELOPMENTS AND EXTENSIONS PIPELINE

The Group invests strategically in developments
that contribute significantly to growth. pursuing II

development pipeline which exceeds €1.020 mUlion
(including redevelopments and extensions. estimated
at cost), of which €176 million were spent during 2017.

DEC 2017

I1. oa·r,c~,

Undertaking redevelopments and extensions to existing
properties is a driver for future growth. ensuring that the
Group maintains its preeminent position in the market
and its superior retail relationships. thus de-t'lsklng the
business and delivering higher quality earnings.

"1:1\ H

(SOO) o 1500soo

[]..•..", : • " , ' .''';· ...r ('1'''' 0.11' 1,1I..:.C'~·;"

Committed: protects currently under constr ucuo«
Controlled: ororects whete tile land is controlled. but not yel under construction
Capitalised Interest snd fair value not 'ncluded

DEVELOPMENTS AND EXTENSIONS MAP

46 NE POIOPERly COOj:5RA:lfl: v" - ANNlI~l REPO~T 201'}

Developments
under construction

Estimated r~
Promenadll Novl Sad • Phase. I. Serbia 49400
Vaslui strip centre. Romania 2 BOO

Development.
under permilUng and pre-leeslng

Estimated GLA
(m2)

Promenada Mall. Romania 60 000

Shopping City Targu Mures· Phal5e I. Romania . ... ~ ...
Shopping City Satu Mare. Romania 28 700

Arena Centar. Croatia 27 900

Retail Parks (Krusevac lind Sabac). Serbia 22200
ShoDplng City Siblu. Romania 9700

KOrlO Shopping Center. Slovak... 9300

Aurora Shopping Mall BU2dl,l. Romania • GLA we;p/lted by oi'>900OQ

Ploiestl Shopping City. Romania 4000·



Promenada Novi Sad - Phase I
Novi Sud. Serbia

Novi Sad is the second largest city in Serbia. 70 km from
the capital, Belgrade, and is connected by International
highways to Budapest. VIenna. Belgrade. Zagreb and
Skopje. The property is In a prime tocetlcn. at the
Intersection of two main boulevards and adjacent to a
sports complex and high density residential areas.

Development

Ownership 100%

Estimated lettabl. area 49,400m'
Targeted opening Q42018

Vaslui strip centre
'. .:.,1\." !'rl""".1.~·

Owner.hlp 100%
Estimated lettable lI,ea 2.BOOm2

Based on good results of the existing scheme and strong
demand for additional commercial space. the Group has
decided to extend this strip mall.

Targeted opening Q12018

, NE PROPF.RTV COOPER AliEF' ISA - ANNUAL A:[PORT IOt7 4J
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UNDER PERMITTING AND PRE-LEASING

Promenada Mall - extension
~LJch,,-:1 est, ~:{'}tnd~j..1

E xtonsron
Ownership 100%~~~~--~---------------------~~
Estimated lettable area 600000m~
Targeted opening 02 2020

Shopping City Targu Mures - Phase 1
iCJJ 9LJ M\Jr~~. Ror~~nia

Development

Ownership 100%
Estimated lettable .re. 32,900m'
Targeted opening 042019

.8 NE PH:OPt:RTV CO¢PERATIEF U~ • ANNU.4.L ItEPOA"i 1017

Arena Centar - extension
"aqf(~h. CroaC!.;

Extension and Red('velopr1t'nt---------._--------------
Ownersh1p 100%
Estimated lettabl. erea ·27,900m2

Targeted opening Q12019
, Qui 01 wfolc" Ih.' ave/IIIOMf CUl" IJ.OO(;,,.·.

Shopping City Satu Mare
t:.~tIJ f'V':1..1(t", RO!l'.~i)ta

Development
-- .----. =-~. ----10-0....,,··"'"%Ownership

Estimated lettabl. area 28,700m'
Targeted opening Q42018
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UNDER PERMIT TING AND PRE-LEASING

Retail P.::;rk5(KiIJ!>I:'vacand Sabac)
I~\ I,-..p:"'''" ~n<l ~1'1!.;\c: '=,"I~I.').

Development

Ownership 100%

Estimated lettable .rea
Targeted opening

22.200m'
01 2019/022019

Ploiesti Shopping City
j~ll)!C~~1 Rornamz

E.xtcnslon

Ownership 50%
Estimated lettable area n UOOI11'
Eltlmated lettable area
Targeted opening 032016
• weighted by own ers!>ip

Aurora Shopping Mall
Buzau. Rornanla

Extension and Redevelopment

OwnershIp 100%
Estimated lettable .rea 5.900m2

Targeted opening 042018

Shopping City Sibiu
S,hiu. r~o...n.?ltlij...

Extension and Rl.'de'Jelopn1Cflt~---------------------Ownership 100%
Estimated lettable area 9.700m'
Targeted opening Q42019

.'1t PROPEI11y COOPERAlI.!F LJA.. ANI\'l,:4' REP()AT 1011 4'
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UNDER PERMITTING AND PRE-lEASING

Korzo Shop'
;\<}f 10, Sh,)VUKI8 ping Center

Exten!f,iOI)

Ownership 100%
9.300m'

_______ =--cQi332019
Estimated lettablT: • are.
.rgated opening

Ne ""OVERTY COOPERATIEF UA - ANNUA.l. RE'POffT lon &1
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Corporate
governance
Sound corporate governance values guide management
In directing. governing and controlling the Group whilst
subscribing to the principles of ethit.llieadership,

business. social and environmental sustainability and
stakeholder engagement.

Management recognises the need to manage the Group
with integrity and provide effective leadership based
on an ethical foundation. This Includes timely. relevant
and meaningfui reporting to shareholders and other
stakeholders, that provide a proper and objective
overview on the Group and its activities. The strategy and
operations of the Group are dIrected with the intention
of building a sustainable business. considering its short
and long-term impact on the economy, society and the
environment.

Management is committed to monitoring the
Implementation of legal compliance policies and
processes to mitigate the risk of non-compliance
wIth laws in the various jurisdictions where the Group

52 NE PRO~F.~lY COOP'ERATlE~ ~A ~ AhiNUAL N£ POR' 2CIll

conducts its business. The management Is responsible for
implementing and executing an effective legal compliance
polley.

If the Group would incur material or repeated regulatory
penalties, sanctions or fines for contraventions of, or
non-compliance with. statutory obligations. this would
be disclosed to shareholders. As at the date of this
report, there were no material or immaterial regulatory
penalties. sanctions or fines for contravention or non-
compliance with statutory obligations imposed on the
Group companies or any of Its directors or officers. Key
compliance risks and the mitIgating controls Implemented
have been presented In the key risks section included in
this Annual Report.
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GOVERNANCE IN ACTION
The table below shows the key areas of Board activity during the period under review:

Operational I)erformance
Reviewed the Group's operational performance compared to budget and forecasts;

Encouraged:
- market entry into Bulgaria. with the acquisition of prime assets in Sofia;
- completion of five developments or extensions, primarily In Romania. with lettings to

high-quality tenants.

Financial performance
Monitored the financial performance of the business. including gOing concern and viability;
Reviewed the half year and full year results and approved the Annual Report;

Supported:
- a successful €500 million Eurobond issue in November 2017;
- obtaining Investment grade credit ratings from all three major rating agencies.

Stakeholder engagement
Reviewed the Group's ongoing relationships with various stakeholders;
RevieWed feedback from Institutional shareholders. analysts and other engagement activities:

Actively engaged with stakeholders throughout the period under review.

Governance, Internal controls and rIsk
Reviewed the Group's risk register;
Considered and approved the methodology to determine the Group's risk appetite and tolerance;
Reviewed the effectiveness of the systems of internal controls environment;
Strengthened the Internal Audit function;
Supported the improvement and consolidation of IT systems and procedures;

INTERNAL CONTROLS SYSTEM AND INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY (IT)

A set of control mechanisms has been designed by the Group to ensure compliance with laws and regulations. internal
governance principles. stock exchange rules and best Industry practices.

The Group Is committed to oreventlng risks arising from the tollowing:
potential conflicts of interest;
related party transactlons which may not be transparent or at an arm's length;
confidentiality and observance of professional secrecy;
unopen and incomplete financial communication;
use of privileged information and insider trading;
money-laundering and the financing of terrorism;
non-adequate adherence to anti-corruption rules; and
Inefficient delegation of authority In order to keep the right balance between flexibility. speed and span of control.

The Group implemented a comprehensive Procurement Policy and a supplier due diligence. In order to ensure that
responsible purchasing Is conducted and that procurement decisions are in the best Interests of the Company.

IT processes are designed to ensure compliance with relevant laws and address risks related to the outsourced IT
services, providing for business resillence, continuity and disaster recovery.
The Group is committed to ensure compliance in all relevant areas. therefore guidelines related to the EU Regulation
2016/679 on personal data protection which comes into force in May 2018. are in process of implementation.

The IT function is outsourced to a third-party service provider and Is governed by a service level agreement Compliance
with the service level agreement is monltorP.d by management and the tp.rms are reviewed on a regular basis.
Management cernes out a formal review of the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group's internal controls system,
Including Information and technology function.
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Corporate
9overna nee» continued

EXTERNAL AUDIT

Currently. the scope of work of eternal audit includes the
audit of the annual consolidated and standalone financial
statements of the Group and its subsidiaries. Based
on the submitted reports. management considered. In
conjunction with the extemal auditor. their findings and
confirmed that these have been satlstactorily addressed
by management.

Dinte:tors have satisfied themselves that
PrlcewaterhouseCoopers Accountants N.V.• the external
auditor. are Independent of the Company and of the
Group.

INTERNAL AUDIT

The Group Implemented an Internal Audit function,
led by the Internal Audit Director. The Intemal Audit
Director reports functionally to the Audit Committee and
administratively to the Joint CEOs of the NRP Group.

Internal Audit carries out risk-based audits. under the
guidance of the Audit Committee. Internal Audit remains
independent of all line and functional management and
answers to the NRP board of directors through the Audit
Committee.

Based on the post-merger work performed during 2017.
Internal Audit concluded that management should
implement adequate controls to mitigate significant
risks across processes such as SUPplier relationship
management. property and facility management, tenants
relationship management, monitoring of expenses and
budget versus actual variances. Going forward. for 2018.
the management committed satisfactory action plans for
remediation of the remaining risks identified by Internal
Audit, especially in key areas such as procurement for and
monitoring of development prolects.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Company's main stakeholders are considered to be
shareholders, bondholders, employees, tenants, suppliers.
banks and fiscal administrations of the locations where
the Group carries out its activities.

The Group has a transparent Information communication
policy, to enable stakeholders to assess the Group'S
economic value and prospects.

The Group is committed to
providing shareholders with
timely access to applicable
information. Communication with
Its shareholders Is open. honest and
transparent.
The Group Includes efforts to
engage with shareholders on II
wide range of toplcs including
remuneration. strategy, risk
management, corporate govemance
and other topics falling outside of

usual financial
, The Group has a wide range of

relationships with banks. financial
Institutions and bondholders.

The Group keeps open
communication with its financing
partners. Compliance with loan
covenants Is closely monitored and
reported according to the applicable

The Group strives to form mutually
beneficial business relationships
with Its tenants. The asset managers
and property milnagers meet with
the tenants on a regular basis
and conduct regular site visits to
properties.
Management participates in retail
conferences where relationships are
built and Ideas shared with tenants.
The Group endeavours to have
mutually beneficial relationships
with government in the jurisdictions
where it operates. The Group
engages with local authorities
both directly and via its property

and external consultants.
The Group maintains professional
working relationships with Its
employees at the same time as

i fostering a culture of teamwork.
The Group ensures that all of its
employees fully understand its
performance lind governance
standards and
The Group Is committed to being
a good corporate citizen and
frequently evaluates the impact
of Its projects and developments
on society and the environment.
Further details are provided in the

on
The Group maintains professional
relationships with all of Its suppliers
and ensures that Its providers
understand performance standards

.and requirements WI1Are pOSSible,
the Group will have service level
agreements or terms of reference
for its relationships with suppliers.
which Include performance
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SOCIAL AND ENVIRONMENTAL
RESPONSIBILITY

The Group is an integral part of the community in which it
operates and is committed to building sound relationships.
based on trust. honesty. and fairness. Not only is
environmental compliance legally obligatory. but it is also
an Important component of the Group's commitment
to the community and developing its good reputation.
The Group is dedicated to minimising the environmental
impact of its activities by redUCing waste. emissions and
discharges. and using energy efficiently.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST

A conflict of Interest arises whenever an employee's
position or responsibilities present an opportunity for
personal benefit Inconslstent with the Group's best
interests. Individuals are responsible for their own ethical
behaviour. and are expected to act. at all times and In all
ways. in the best interests of the Company. If and when
they consider a conflict of interest exists. the Compliance
Officer Is to be notified immediately.

ETHICS, EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
AND NON~DISCRIMINATION

The Group maintains the highest ethical standard
and complies with all applicable legislation. rules. and
regulations. The Group's continued success depends on
employing the most Qualified people and establishing
a working environment free from discrimination.
harassment. Intimidation or coercion based on race.
religion, gender, age, nationality or disability.

The Group is committed to ensuring ethical behaviour
throughout its business practices. in relation to all Internal
and external stakeholders. The Group's ethical standards
are based on trust, sound morality. confidentiality, reliability,
sustalnabillty. The Code of Ethics which Is made available
to all employees, demonstrates Its commitment to strong
values and human rights.

To ensure the achievement of high standards of ethical
behaviour. the Group has reinforced the Code of Ethics
through launching in the organisation the Group's tour
values: Integrity, Excellence, Teamwork and Communication.
Innovation and Leaming. The Group also keeps a strong
commitment of embedding these values in all internal
process and external dealings.
As the Group places paramount importance to ethical
behaviour. it is also working on developing proper people
behaviour that will make the business sustainable.
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The Group has an open-door policy and supports the
"speak-up" culture, thus employees are encouraged to
share their concerns, suggestions or complaints with their
supervisor. However, in order to allow full transparency
as well as a means to report concerns, the Group
implemented II Whlstleblowing Policy, which provides
an anonymous reporting tool, while guaranteeing non-
retaliation against the whistle-blower,

In relation to our external stakeholders, the Group strongly
believes in collaborating with partners sharing the same
values, hence, ethical behaviour clauses were Included
in the standard contract templates to be Signed with
any supplier. Part of our commitment to strong ethics
Is Introducing a censeauence management approach In
relation to all third !lsrtles we are doing business with, In
the context of any non-ethical matter.

GENDER DIVERSITY POLICY

Across the Group, an open and engaging culture is
maintained which ensures the Group Is able to attract
and retain a skilled and dedicated team of employees.
The strong gender balance across the Group adds
further strength to the positive intemal culture, The
graph below shows the split of employees by gender for
the! Ye!ar under r<!View:

Employees

C Female 62%

o Male 3896
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Risk management
RISK OVERVIEW

The Group recognises that proactive identification and engagement of risk based on an early waming system is a crucial
part of its business strategy. Risk management is aiming to proactively identify potential threats. actions or events that
will negatively affect the Group's ability to achieve its oblectfves, and then address. monitor and report on these risks.

RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS

Risk management processes are designed to identify.
measure. prtoritise, respond to and monitor the impact of
both Internal and external risks,

Identified risks are evaluated In terms of potential Impact
and likelihood of occurrence. Areas considered include
the risk of Injury to people and environmental damage.
business Interruptions. financial loss. legislative and
regulatory compliance and reputation.

The Group understands and proactively manages risks
within pre-set risk appetite and risk toJerance levels,
In order to optimise business returns. As part of risk
management activities. the residual risk for each of the
Group's principal risk categories is assessed. Residual
risk is determined based on the risk-mitigation plans
implemented by management.

KEY RISK AREAS

The Group's operations focus on aCQuiring, developing and
managing regionally dominant retail assets in emerging
markets. with hlgh-growth potential. Apart from risk
factors specific to each asset. the Group's activities are
exposed to factors beyond Its control and specific systemic
risks. The Group's approach aims to hedge and curb the
slRnlflcant adverse effect of these risks. Sudden chanAes
in the politlca~ economic, financial. currency. regulatory.
geopolitical. social or health environments may have a
significant adverse effect on the Group. the valuation
of its assets. its results. its development plans and/or its
Investment/divestment activities.

The key risks factors together with the most relevant miti-
gating actions are detailed In the table below. Attention is
drawn to the fact that the risk factors discussed in this sec-
tion are not exhaustive. but rather the most relevant ones.
Additional operational risks. for which occurrence Is not
considered very likely or Impact Is not considered to have
a material adverse effect on the Group. are not Included In
this report.
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StrategiC risks arise mainly from the fundamental decisions that the executive management make or from the pursuit
of an unsuccessful business pian. Essentially. strategic risks lead to the Group not being able to achieve its business
plan and core corporate targets, or may even endanger the going concern of the Group.

Delays In executing
appropriate property
investment and
development
strategies, or
executing in
less favourable
conditions.

Medium Net asset value may
be Impacted due to
losses incurred.

Income may be
reduced due to the
reduction of rentals
and/or investment
income.

. Malttel

A business acquisition
and asset appraisal
policy is In place,
setting out IIstructured
framework used in the
decision-making process
for new acquisitions and
develOpments. Directors
monitor compliance and
performance thereof, on
a quarterly basis .

Shareholders

Tenants

Financing
partners

The Group may not always be able to execute its investments and divestments polley at the most opportune time, due
to unforeseen fluctuations in the real estate or financial markets. Adverse market movements could also affect the
value of the Group's portfolio, Its financial position, liquidity, operating income and Mure prospects.

limitations on new
capital available
arising from:

Modium Shareholders
---------

• shortage of
financing or re-
financing at an
acceptable cost.

- adverse changes
in macroeconomic
conditions.

Impaired ability
to fund property
investments
or planned
developments.

The cost of
financing
may increase
substantially.

The Group maintains
a spread of capital
sources, including loan
facilities with extensive
and various maturity
profiles contracted
with a diversified base
of lenders, Eurobond
capacity, listed securities
and committed
revolving facilities.
Management ensures
ongoing capital market
and banks relationship
manllgernenL All
committed acquisitions
and developments are
funded In advance.

Financing
partners

Employees

Low ShareholdersSector and
geographical risk due
to concentration of
assets.

Valuation
changes in certain
geographies or
sectors may impact
net asset value and
total returns.

All investment decisions
are made based on a
mandate reviewed by
the NRP Board on a
quarterly basis. This also
sets limits on relevant
market exposure by
means of diversification.
Significant Investments
are reviewed individually.

Management and
directors commission
extensive analysis
before entering a
new market. local
teams are established
to manage daily
operations. to ensure
that local specificities
are addressed, while at
the same time leveraging
the skills, experience
Clnd relationships of the
centralised management
team.

The Group's portfolio is
well diversified across
the CEE region.
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Financial

The Group identifies and regularly measures Its exposure to Interest rates volatility. liquidity. foreign exchange. and
sets applicable management policies. The Group pays close attention to managing the Inherent financial risks of Its
activity and the financial Instruments It uses.

An Increase or Low @ Increased cost of The Group uses Shareholders
decrease in interest borrowing and instruments such as
rates could have a hedging may result interest rate swaps and Financing
significant adverse

~

in reduced Income caps to hedge at least partners
effect on the Group's and lower total 80% of the debt.
results. property retums.

Bank loans maturity

<® Is monitored and
refinancing options
are considered well In
advance. The funding
strategy is to combine
group-level unsecured
debt with property-level
secured debt (when the
latter reduces the overall
cost of capital).

Risk ot losses due to Low

~
Income for The Group keeps the Shareholders

currency fluctuations. the period IS majority ot Its cash
reduced due to resources in eura. Financing

e foreign exchange partners
fluctuations. The majority of

the Group's assets
and liabilities are
denominated In euro.

Income generated 'rom
rentals Is contracted in
euro and settled In local
currency. The Group's
Treasury department
actively manages
cash flows to ensure
exposures to local
currencies are mitigated.

Equity swap exposures
of non-euro positions
are structured to limit
currency risk.

Lack of liquidity Low e Continued short High levels of liquidity to Shareholders
leading to the position on liquidity cover at least 12 months
Group's Inability would endanger the ot non-discretionary cash FinanCing
to finance its Group's ability to outflows are secured. partners
short-term needs G achieve Its strategic
or Its acquisition objectives, Raising Liquidity is closely
and development funds under less monitored: the forecast
st",tegy. favourable terms is continuously updated

would result In with recent results and
higher financing assumptions based on
costs. market developments.

A highly experIenced
financial team deals with
the budgeting process,
under the CFO's direct
supervisiorl, to ensure
that liquidity needs and
profitability targets are
met,
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In case of default
by a counterparty
financial Institution.
the Group might
lose part of Its cash
deposits. other
investments or
hedges.

ShareholdersThe Group's Interest
rate position. liquidity.
availability of cash
resources and
counterparty exposure is
closely monitored.

Low Losses as a result
of II counterparty
default would lead
to a reduction in
income and ~t
asset value, as
well as reduce the
capital growth. A vast majority of the

counterparties in the
interest rate hedges and
deposits contracted
by the Group are
Investment-grade rated
financial Institutions.

Financing
partners

Operational

Property development and management activities bring Inherent risks, such as long delivery times, complex and
extensive management requirements.

Construction or Low

~
Reduction in The Group maintains Tenants

refurbishment rental income and high quality assets and
activities undertaken operating cash continually monitors Shareholders
may deviate from the flows, resulting In a the concentration of t 'Group's strategy and @ decrease of income. exposure to individual

<~

from future tenants' occupiers or sectors.

IIand customers' Empty unit costs There Is significant
expectations, resulting In knowledge and '1

~

1> 1

generating high decreased return experience included In "
vacancies or on property the Group's operational

inadeQuate rental investment. procedures.

levels.
The management
monitor that the
development and
refurbishment activities
are carried out according
to approved plans.

Failure of information Low

~
Business Backup and recovery Tenants

systems and data loss - Interruption or plans to restore data
may lead to incurring data loss may are in place. The Group Shareholders
high costs for

6)
have a severe performs regular

Information retrieval impact on the backups, as required Employees
and verification, operations of the by Its IT poliC'J. The
and to potential GrouP. may reduce Group uses experienced
loss of business ®) Its Income and consultants to review IT
opportunities. cause reputational security,

damage.
Management started
the implementation of
a cloud-based solution
to reduce reliance on
physical hardware.

Overruns of Medium 6) The Group may Development projects Tenants
construction costs incur reputational approval by directors
in completion damage as well as entails comprehensive Shareholders
ot development

0
financial losses if expenditure analysis.

projects. developments are
not completed in Regular reviews of the
within the budget. developments progress

(In terms of milestones
and budget versus
actual) are performed
by management, with
overruns and delays
reported to the NRP
Board.----,_ ~- - --- - ---~----------.--"---_._.
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-The Group employs
an experienced
development team to
manage development
projects and oversee
the external contractors'
performance. Only
reputable professional
companies are engaged
within the development
projects.

LowRisk of tenant defilult Tenants default
would lead to
bad debts, high
vacancy and in th9
end a reduction in
the distributable
earnings.

Detailed creditworthiness Shareholders
reviews are performed
before signing lease Tenants
agreements with large
tenants. All tenants are
required to provide cash
deposit or bank letter
of guarantee covering
several months of rent
and operating costs.

The Group maintains
close tenant relationships
through Its Internal
leasing team and
tenants' performance Is
monitored regularly by
the asset and property
management teams.
Various Indicators
such as tenant sales
and occupancy cost
are assessed monthly,
and measures are
implemented on
a need basis.

The Group has an
in-house experienced
cash collection
team which follows
standardised procedures,

Low

Shareholders

Significant volume of
leases expiring In a
specific period.

Rental income
may be eroded
due to new leases
or renewals at
lower rentals than
previously achieved.
Vacancies may not
be filled timely, thus
reducing income.

Assets and property
managers closely
monitor lease expire
terms and begin
negotiations with
tenants well In advance
of the expiry date. The
Inhouse leasing team
continuously ensures
that rental agreements
Include updated market
rates, and vacant spaces
are actively marketed.

Tenants

The Group Is subject to various taxes in the countries in which it operates. There is an increasing burden from
compliance and regulatory requirements, as well as a certain degree of unpredictability, which can Icad to lower
performance.

Risk of inappropriate
tax residency, double
taxation on Income.

Medium ShareholdersLoss of tax
efficiency In the
structure.

Non-compliance
with regulatory
requirements
could lead to fines,
penaities and
censures.

The Group has a sound
tax strategy.

The local economic
substance of transactions
is aligned with fiscal
regulations and
expectations from tax
authorities, Local fiscal
legislations are closely
monitored and processes
and controls are
Implemented to ensure
fiscal compliance.

Local
authorities
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Transfer pricing - Low @ Loss of tax The economic substance
transactions between efficiency in the of transactions Is aligned
related entities structure and with fiscal regulations Local
should be carried additional tax and expectations from authorities
out at an at arm's (@ liability. tax authorities. and
length basis. Local documented annually.
tax authorities may Non-compliance
challenge the pricing with regulatory The Organisation for
of related party requirements Economic Co-operatlon
transactions. could lead to fines. and Development

penalties and (OECD) tax measures
censures. and initiatives. European

Directives as well as
local fIscal legislation are
closely monitored. whtl~
adequate processes
and controls are
implemented to ensure
fiscal compliance.

Countries may Medium 8 Increased taxation Tax requirements are Shareholders
Impose limitations may result In monitored on II regular
on the deductibility a reduction in basis. Local
of 'Interest paid on

~

earnings. authorities
Group finanCing. The Group participates
Tax regimes In various forums and
Internationally are discussion groups aimed
moving towards at ensuring tax law
Implementing stricter amendments are fair and
interest deductibility equitable.
thresholds.

, Regul~ compliance
~' lj,

" ~ )

As an owner and manager of real estate assets. the Group must comply with various laws and regulations. in all
countries where it operates. Areas such as corporate law. health and safety, environment. building construction and
urban planning, commercial licenSing. leases and commercial laws. are highly regulated across the Group's portfolio.

Non-compliance with Low 6) Non-compliance The Group engages Shareholders
laws. regulation~ and with regulatory experienced and
non-adherence to requirements reputable In-house and Financing
good governance

~

could lead to fines. external legal advisors. partners
practices. penalties, censures,

and reputatlonal Management Employees
damage. continuously monitors

compliance with legal
requirements.

Systems and processes
to ensure compliance
with applicable laws and
other legal requirements
are implemented.

Appropriate policies and
procedures set the tone
from the top for ethical
culture within the Group.

Investing in Medium 6> Non-compliance Management Shareholders
international markets with regulatory collaborates with legal
increases operational, requirements advisors to ensure all Financing
regulatory and other

®
could lead to fines. relevant regulatory partners

related risks. The penalties. censures. requirements are
Group operates and reputatlonal Identified and complied Employees
across numerous damage. with.
jurisdictions and Is
therefore subject to a
complex compliance
environment. _._-- _----- -----
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Remuneration review
PERFORMANCE EVALUATION POLICY
The Group's continued success depends on attracting
and emploYing the best qualified people and establishing
a workIng environment free from dIscrimination,
harassment, Intimidation or coercion.

The Group Is committed to treating Its employees
with dIgnitY, trust and respect, and to building Iong-
term relationships based on enforceable employment
legislation and respect for human rights.

These princIples are supported by the set of values
that contributed to shaping our organisational culture:
Integrity, Excellence, Innovation & Learning and Teamwork
& Communication.

The Group is building all the people related processes to
properly balance business needs with people's aspirations,
career perspectives and development objectives.

In 2017 the Group set clear guidelines on how employees
are evaluated, taking into consideration both results
and behaViour. Moreover. the Company Introduced
developmental tools and 360 degree feedback in the
annual performance review for 2017. In 2018, the Group
is committed to continue with adequate development
and training plans to support professional growth of the
teams.

At the same time, the Group stands for a strong
commitment to deal with inadequate behaviour and
consistent poor performance. The Group is committed to
settIng clear boundaries on what Is acceptable In any of
the Group's employee behavIours - specific procedures
for analysing such cases and consequence management
tools have been Introduced and applied.

INDIVIDUAL PERFORMANCE REVIEWS
Individual performance revIews are completed annually,
and assist the managers and employees to build on
individual strengths and Identify areas for Improvement.

All employees are subjected to a standardIsed appraisal
process and rating criteria. This encourages equality
and imposes standard measures of performance in the
company.

Performance is reviewed on a five point scale, ThIs
method offers structure for appraisals.

ENGAGEMENT AND MOTIVATION OF
EMPLOYEES
Also, in the context of rapId progress and advancement
of society, technology, demographics, people's profiles
and needs, the Group understood the need to adapt,
as a top employer, to remain relevant and attractive to
top professionals - hence. it Is continuously workIng on
creating II work environment that is frIendly, promotes
work-lIfe balance. flexibility, healthcare and personal
sustainabllity.

The Group Is proactively monitoring levels of
engagement and gathering information from both
leavers (to understand reasons and address possIble
symptoms of disengagement) and active employees
(recently we have run II survey checking on adherence
to the Group's values and motivators that our people
consider relevant to embed and further promote within
the working environment).

REMUNERATION POLICY
The Group Is also committed to support people manage-
ment processes witil a comprehensive and transparent
Remuneration policy. The Group's remuneration policy
was designed to deliver above market compensation for
top employees, and enforce an excellence approach to
performance, while creating value for shareholders.

It is also meant to ensure differentiated reward packages
for all employees, In line with their role, competence, per-
formance and behaviour.

The Group's remuneration policy is based on the following
key principles:

Pay for Performance - remuneration is driven by the
employee's role and performance review, and the overall
performance of the Group. We set clear, measurable goals
for both the company, teams and Individual employees.

Total Annual PacJutv. Approach - RemuneratIon Is
defined as II total annual package, conSistIng of 3 pillars:
fixed pay, variable pay (which can be delivered both in
cash and In shares. as defined by the Group's Incentive
Plan approved by shareholders In 2017), and Individual
and collective benefIts.
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Remuneration revleW,contlnued
Annual Remuneration Reviews - Remuneratlon reviews are held annually, during the first quarter of each financial year,
with the purpose of assessing performance tor the past year and defining performance bonuses, new levels of fixed pay
and benefits package.

Competitive Pay - The group Is committed to paying fixed salaries to Its employees at mar1<et level (compared to other
companies of similar size and complexity), and variable components above market level for high-performing employees.
Annual inflation and foreign exchange rate reviews ensure salary levels are competitively maintained,

Variable Pay Dlfferentlators - the Group Is Implementing a differentiated variable pay method. based on seniority and
performance levels.

Pillar Principle Frequency of review Inclusion
Market related. based on role
and responsibilities. ReViewed annually during

It is measured based on each first Quarter of
Fixed pay the year, with changes • All employeesthe Industry norms and effective as ofadjusted for the employee's 1rt of March.

experience, Qualifications and
nature of work.

Measurable, quantitative

Based on the employee's key performance
indicators are monitoredand GrouP's performance monthly for progressassessment.

Variable pay - paid In
assessment.

• All employeescash Performance reviews Overall results reviewedare measured against annually during each first
quantitative and qualitative quarter of the year. withindicators. bonus assessment and

payment in March.

Key performance
• Executive Directors

Acts as a long-term incentive indicators measuredscheme, to support retention annually against pre-set • Executive Team
Variable pay - delivered of key people - executives, benchmarks.
in lhares senior managers and • Selected middle

employees with specific core, Settled by share management
critical and/or strategic skills allocation. annually.

• Key roles
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The Group views this strategy as
a strengthener of its portfolio,
as it Improves stakeholder
relationships including customers,
local communIties, staff, suppliers.
Investors, analysts. local and central
govemment, peers and non-
governmental organisations, as well
as motivates employees and inspires
competItors.

The real estate sector In Europe has
a powerful role to play in creating a
sustainable economy, therefore the
Group has continued to invest In clean
technologies, adopting policies that
address environmental and social
risks. and engaging In more proactive
and robust stakeholder discussions
and disclosure. The Group is revising
its risk management framework on
a continuous basis with regard to
climate change, human rights, social
responsibility and energy efficiency.

GROUP'S LOCAL
ECONOMIC FOOTPRINT

Detailed infonnation related to
energy, gas. water consumption and
waste management is collected from
the Group's properties in order to
track the environmental perfonnance
and have a clear understanding of the
Group's Impact on the environment.
including how this affects Stakeholders' rights, as
defined by national legIslation and InternatIonally agreed
standards.

The Group's operations. investments and developments
have direct and indirect impact on local economies. These
generate new jobs and services. create product demand,
facilitate the initiation and growth of new businesses,
and encourage the development of local Infrastructure.
The Group acknowledges Its role In the community and
is determined to continue its commitment In areas which
can optimise the value creation for its stakeholders.

All challenges and opportunities are prlorltised In
accordance with the Group's long-term organisational
strategy and business prospects. as well as the Group's
financial performance. The Group Is committed to realising
Its long-term financial objectives. while maximiSing
the positive and minimising the negative effects of its
activities on society and the environment. This ISachieved
through the understanding and rigorous management
of the environmental. ethical and social Impacts of its
operations.

The Group's approach to sustainablllty proves
commitment to merge the specific needs of its
stakeholders with the business targets of the Group
and capitalise on synergies. The Group acknowledges
Its key role in society, as a catalyst for economic, social
and environmental development. The Group appreciates
that preserving a healthy environment by continuing
to Invest in clean technologies. adopting policies that
address environmental and social risks, and engaging In
more proactive and robust stakeholder discussions and
disclosures, is of essence for its success.

The Group strongly believes in continuously Improving its
sustainablllty approach. structured on four pillars:

1. Sustainable resource management - an initiative that
covers biodiversity. water. energy and gas consumption.
waste management and gas emisslons, in an attempt to
improve both Impact of consumption as well as efficiency.

2. SustalnabRIty through "green buildings" - the Group's
buildings have been certified at the highest sustainability
stanoards in the real estate IndUstry, which acknowledges
the Group's investment In sustainable buildings both
during constructton and In the operational stages.

s. Community Engagement - the Group believes in
the Importance of giving back to the communities,
and as such. it seeks to contribute to sustainable social
development. as well as to helping those in need.

4. Buslneu Integrity - II collection of internal procedures
and best practice guidelines are continuously being
Implemented and Improved across the Group, to ensure
compliance with laws and regulations and that business is
conducted according to the highest standards of integrity.

All four initIatives are translated into key objectives on
medium and long term. based on which the Group is
able to monitor performance closely and take mitigating
actions to prevent slippage. In fulfilling the proposed
oblectlvcs, an important role in the Group will be voluntary
actions. as well as the ability to engage stakeholders in the
transition.
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Increilse energy efficiency for OfficeportfoliD by 5" energy consumption In MWh x 2022 -"

2022

x 2022

x 2030

x 2030

2022

2022

2022
- -- - -- -_._--

2022

Increase anergy efficiency for Retail
portfoliO by 10:1(. energy consumption in MWh x

Invest 5" of the annual btJdget In
_~~~a~'!~_lJrces of energy
Reduce by 20" tne carbon
foamrtnt associated with 1111
Group', operlltlons

" CAPE)( Investad In renewable
energy sources

carbon footprtnt

Purchase SO" of electriCity from
renewilble sources for all assets
managed by the Group
(common IIrea)

"of electricity from renewable
sources

Reach a waste recycling rate of at
least SO"

" waste recovered
" waste recycled

Decrease water consumption tor
Office portfolio by 5" wllter consumption In me x

x

Obtain the "BREEAM In - Use"
certification for "t least 50" of the
Retail portfolio that will be going
through recertification. iIIt leilSt
'Very Good" level

water consumption In mcDecreasa water consumption 'or
Retlll! Portfolio by 10"

-" assets certltlad BREEAM In Use
- " of assets recertified at least
"Very Good"

x

Obuln the "BREEAM In - U&e"
certlflClltlon for lOa" ot the Office
portfolio that will be going through
recertlflcatfon, at least "Very Good"

Complete the Implementation of
ISO14001 ilnd ISO50001

• " assets certified BREEAM In Use
- " of essets recertified at least
"Very Good"

2022

z,
SUstalnabillty

tIIfough
"green

bulldlnillu
x

ISO environment relevant
certlflciltlons obtilined snd
maintained

x 2022

••Community
anglllll.ment

Deploy ill re-charging infrastructure
for electric vehicles In 100" of the " parking lots with Infrastructure for
parking lots managed by the GroUI) electrtc recharge

x 2022

Develop smart partnershll)S with
our stakeholders community relevant I)artnershll)S I)8rmanent

- centres which have organised at
least one annual CSR-relevant event
- time, budget and area In our
properties dedicated to CSR
campaigns

permanentCreate relevant community events
lind CSR campaigns x

...
Bu.ln ...
Integrity

Ensure compliance with regulations, - timely monitoring. reporting and
pOlieles ood procedures remediation

- conseQuence management

Coliabonlte with responsible and
sustainable partners
(clients and suppliers)

x permanent

- supl)lIer risk essessment performed
for IIny new supplier and revised
pertodlcally
- "know your customer· due diligence
performed for new customers and
revised pertodlcally

permanent

is NF PROPERTY COOPERATIEF UA. - ANNUAL ~~C()M I .!O'IJ

EthlCll1relationshll) with lIuthorttles
and governmont representatives

- reports through whlstleblowlng
channel, If any, timely addressed
- no financial sUI)Port to any pOlitical
party / political exposed I)erson
- no gins / heneflts/ othllr form of
payment to public offiCials / political
exposed persons

l( permllnent

-~,--"---~-..------~--
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APPROACH TO SUSTAINABILITY

The first two pillars of the Group's sustainabillty
strategy. SUstainable resource management and
Sustaln.blHty through "green buildings". are planned
to be developed further based on two complementary
frameworks of policies. processes and procedures based
on Intemational Management Systems Standards (ISO
14001 - Environment Management System and ISO 50001
- Energy Management System). aimed at reducing the
negative Impact of assets at every stage In their Ilfecycle,
from design and build. and throughout daily operations.
The Group is preparing to obtain these two certifications,
targeting 2022 as certification year.

The Group is already compliant with the major
requirements of the Environmental Management System
during the development stage, in order to ensure the
design and construction of properties promote efficiency
and lowest level of negative environmental impact. Some
of the processes covered are:

assessing sustainabillty and climate change risks,
during the due diligence process;
challenging each construction project based on the
"Design Guidelines" described below, in order to
ensure that the buildings will be sustainable and in
preparation for "SREEAM in use" certification; and
applying formal testing procedures to each new
building, to ensure that operational requirements
are met, systems perform as Intended, maintenance
suppliers and management staff are trained.

The "Design Guidelines" applied for new developments.
redevelopments and extensions are aligned with
"BREEAM" requirements, to ensure that properties will
be sustainable from multiple points of view, Including
low energy consumption or greenhouse gas emissions.
The Group's development processes give special
attention to:

structural elements that can affect energy
requirements and carbon footprint;
maximizing daytime light use while minimizing solar
heat gains through shading, glass specifications, thus
minimizing the use of air conditioning and energy
consumption; and
implementing proficient building management
systems, which monitor and optimise technical
equipment operation.

The Group's approach to $ustainablllty covers four stages:
setting targets on an annual basis, for each managed
asset, in line with long and medium term KPls;

tc Nt! ~RO~ERTV COOPERATIEF u/l. - ANNUAL REPO~T 201?

implementing action plans to reach those targets;
measuring performance and implementing additional
measures if and when necessary;
reviewing periodic performance for each managed
asset with the purpose to set new targets for the
following period,

Taking into account that several hundred million visitors
and employees enter the Group's buildings every year,
management is committed to ensure a safe and healthy
environment for everyone, therefore It has Implemented a
number of safeguards for this purpose including but not
limited to the below:

cleaning providers are heavily encouraged to use
certified products, favored not to harm health, and
the Group continues to monitor the implementation
of this project throughout the Group. Products used
in the Group's properties are aimed at meeting the
requirements of Green Seal or Environmental Choice
programs or European Eco-Label programs;
the use of good-quality materials with low emissions
of volatile organic compounds and with low content
of harmful substances; technical specifications are
considered for a large range of products: finishing
materials, paints, adhesives, floor coverings, carpets
and other largely utilised products;

" ventilation ducts and filters are checked regularly and
filter replacement Is carried out at least twice a year,
while the risk of legionella disease is controlled by
undertaking regular tests;
ensuring that sufficient fresh air is constantly
available in the Group's buildings through the
Building Monitoring Systems; and
the use of integrated methods based on monitoring
and non-toxic preventive measures (site inspecnon,
pest inspection and population monitoring), to
proactively manage and minimise pest Issues.

Investing in sustainable solutions has become a priority,
therefore, starting in 2016, more than 30% the CAPEX
property management budget ot Romanian properties
was allocated to replaCing traditional lighting with LED
technology, Installing frequency converters, upgrading
building management systems, Installing water-efficient
faucets, replacing obsolete roof membranes, Investing In
cooling water towers, mounting solar protection foil and
growing natural Indoor plants. Going forward, the Group
plans to Implement similar allocations in other countries,
building on the success of this original project.
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PILLAR! - SUSTAINABLE RESOUCES
MANAGEMENT

BIODIVERSITY

Prior to starting new developments. external experts
engaged by the Group perform environmental Impact
assessments on biodiversity. in accordance with applicable
local law. Where protected areas or species are present.
the Group closely monitors the ecosystem with the help of
specialised partners. 50 as not to cause damage. however
minor. through the Group's actions. For new developments
the environmental Impact report Indications are closely
followed. Endangered species in the vicinity of the
development are monitored and, if necessary. actions are
proactively taken in order to ensure the Group's actions do
not cause harm to local flora and/or fauna.

The direct or indirect Impact on the environment,
observed and/or anticipated, is described
and analysed In the environment",1
impact assessment.
external experts. In
significant, observed
or anticipated impact
Group focuses with priority
to avoid and minimise
Instead of remediating
and compensating
for it.

WASTE
MANAGEMENT

The Group
designed an
integrated waste
management
system to
be applied
across Its core
portfolio. leading
to increased
selective waste
collection rate and
minimizing landfill.
There Is a rigorous
approach towards waste
management, oy setting
following priorities: dlmlnlsh
waste to the extent possible.
reuse, recycle, recovery
strictly following the a[)OIiI~ab,k!
provisions.

In 2017, the Group continued to implement its waste
reduction strategy across Its properties in Romania
as an early adopter, and efforts will continue in 2018
and onwards. Waste management audits have been
conducted in II number of properties and measures have
been Implemented based on the findings of these audits
in order to improve performance, such as: Informing
the tenants regularly about on-site waste management,
implementation of minimal requirements for sorting and
recycling waste in supplier and lease contracts,

As part of this initiative, the Group also aims to increase
applicable sorting solutions, in order to Increase the
proportion of waste ~orted on-site and thereby reduce
overall waste management proceSSing costs.

Through the measures implemented, the Group managed
to lower total waste, as well as to increase significantly the
recycling percentage in more than 12 properties.

The Group understands the Importance of recycling and
reusing and thus has planned to reach a 50% recycling
rate across the portfolio by 2022 by virtue of sustainable
waste management measures.

WATER EFFICIENCY

The Group's approach towards the use of water focuses
on ensuring that the supply Is of the highest quality, that
water Is reused whenever possible, and that consumption
Is minimised. Potable water purity is of prevailing
importance, therefore. although supplied by the municipal
network. the water Is further cleansed using on-site

mechanical filters.

portfolio, improved
w~'hllir~",ffl,~I""ntfaucets are

along with equipment
leaks, enabling

to be identified and
remedied shortly after

occurrence. Where
possible. waste or rain
water is collected,
treated and recycled
In closed-clrcult
systems for
non-potable
use. Monitoring
consumption
through the
Building
Management
Systems is a
current practice
for Group's
properties, In

order to analyse
trends and identify

improvement
opportunities.

ENERGY AND GAS
EFFICIENCY

strongly committed
to efficiency of energy

and gas. as it sees value In allowing
managers and occupants to monitor energy

consumption by type of fuel and end-use category.
Monitoring such factors allows the identification of poor
performance and changes In consumption pattems. and
take steps towards minimisation of the performance gap
between predicted and actual consumptlor., through
efficient cost management and identification of areas of
inefficient operation, system deficiencies and building
management issues.

The Group believes that taking actions such as changing
practices and procedures. reducing waste and managing
energy use it can decrease operating costs, consumption
and carbon emissions. Through detailed metering and
monitoring, owners and facility managers understand how
their building is performing In greater detail and can take
steps to improve such performance.

All new developments give priority to natural lighting,
while low-energy bulbs, combined with light sensors,
are used wherever practical. The buildings' skylights

NE PROPERTY CoO~EA:AHEF UA· ANNuAl RI':P"PlT Jm-, '1J

,
I• i



PrI'ew ..... bou!<Coop."
A«"DutUaQlS N.V.
For Identll!eedon
PIUJIORIO""

Sustainability
re port» contrnued

are protected with reflective film, to reduce solar heat
gain during the summer, thus decreasing the use of
air conditioning. Our escalators are fitted with motion
sensors and stop automatically when not In use, while
developments with multiple elevators use computerised
systems to monitor commands and optimise movement.

One of the Initiatives of the Group, aimed at reduclne
energy consumption, is the gradual implementation of
LED technology, as well as Investing In renewable sources
of energy.

CARBON FOOTPRINT

The Group recognises the challenges raised by global
warming and climate change. therefore It plans to
contribute to a greener environment by reducing the
carbon footprint of Its buildings during both construction
and operation. As such, the Group plans a long-term
commitment to reduce its carbon footprint by 20" by
2030, based on continuous efforts such as:

Carbon footprint measurement for all development
projects;
Plan for "eco-friendly" buildings early in the design
phase;

Scope'
direct emissions

Vehicles owned
by the flrm

Scope 2
Indirect emlnlons

Consumption of purchased electricity

Fossil fuel

Scope :I
other emr.slons

Use of products

Production of purchased materials

Purchased activities

Vehicles owned by contractors

Waste disposal

!
i

-------------- ---- --j

Employees business travel

72 N~ f'ROPEATY coOrERA'IEF UA ~ ANNU.AL ~EPORT 2011

Use of alternative low carbon-ernission materials;
Continued efforts to reduce energy consumption;

.. Investing in green energy sources such as solar
panels, electrical chargers for green cars; and
Implementing LED lighting and sensor solutions.

Seeking to further reduce the carbon footprint of
properties, bike racks have been Installed and are available
throughout the portfolio. Furthermore, one of our office
properties, The Office Cluj-Napoca. has joined a car
pooling program, a more environmental-friendly and
sustainable way to travel at work, that, besides carbon
emission, also reduces the time spent in traffiC.

Being an international Group. with properties across
the CEE, and consequently with a management team
geographically spread, the Group is also making efforts
to minimise its own effect on the environment through
measures implemented in order to reduce employee
travelling, by promoting video-conference meetings
as an efficient alternative to decrease unnecessary
business travel and contribute to the reduction of carbon
emissions.
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PILLAR II • GREEN BUILDINGS

The Group's properties are built and operated with a focus
on optimizing the use of resources throughout the end
to end lifecycle. from design to construction. operation.
maintenance and redevefopment / extension.

the continuous Improvement capability for sustainable
design. construction and operation.

The Group acknowledges that the development of
economically efficient and green buildings has a long-
term positive impact on the environment. reduces waste.
protects human health. and tosters efficient management.
Ecologically sensible and cost-conscious sustainable
constructions provide opportunities to Improve energy and
raw materials efficiency in any building.

Promenada Mall Bucharest Is the Group's first retail center,
and the only one in Romania certified intemationally as
·blue building" Gold level by the German Sustainable
Building Council. The certification council evaluates
various qualitative tangible and intangible factors, such
as selecting appropriate materials for the construction
of the building, or factors related to Quality of life In the
building for visitors and tenants (maintaining comfortable
tem,ceratures, ensuring the air is pleasant to breathe, and
offering the right illumination and sound insulation). The
certification also ascertains that during development, the
whole life-cycle of the building was factored In. The main
qualitative criteria analyzed were related to economic
factors, socio-cultural and functional aspects, technical
components, process-related Items, environmental
elements and site considerations.

The Group has continued to Invest in BREEAM
certification for Its buildings as a measure of Its
commitment to sustalnabllity, as presented below.
BREEAM Is the world's leading environmental assessment
method and rating system. Buildings that obtain BREEAM
recognition have achieved the highest corporate,
organisational and envIronmental objectives. and enhance

Property Country Type of Status Scoring obtained!
property targeted

Iris Titan Shopping Center Romania Retail Obtained Excellent
Mega Mall Romania Retail Obtained Excellent
Promenada Mall Romania Retail Obtained Excellent--~---
City Park Romania Retail Obtained Very Good
Shopping City Deva Romania Retail Obtained Very Good
Plolestl Shopping City Romania Retail Obtained Very Good

_~"~,:,~rln Shopping Center Romani., Retail Obtained Very Good
Aurora Shopping Mall Romania Retail Obtained Very Good

" Shopping. ~~!}'_~!~!~"." Romania Retail 2~a!~~ __ . Very Good
Pltestl Retail Pari< Romania Retail Obtained Very Good
Vulcan Value Centre Romania Retail Obtained _~cellent
Shopping City Timisoara Romania Retail Obtained Excellent
Shopping City Targu Jlu Romania Retail Obtained Very Good
Shopping City Galati Romania Retail In progress Excellent
Braila Mall Romania Retail In progress Very Good
Shopping City Piatra Neamt Romania Retail In progress Very Good
Shopping City Ramnlcu Valcea Romania Retail In progress Very Good
The Lakeview Romania Office Obtained Excellent
Floreasca Business Park Romania Office Obtained Excellent
City Business Centre. buildings A-D Romania Office Obtained Very Good
City Business Centre, building E Romania Office Obtained Excellent
The Office Cluj-Napoca Romania Office Obtained Excellent
Victoriei Office Romania Office Obtained Excellent
Aupark Zilina Slovakia Retail Obtained Very Good
Aupark Koslce Mall Slovakia Retail Obtained .. .}!f!.ry Go~ .._
Aupark Shopping Center Piestany Slovakia Retail Obtained Very Good
Korzo Shopping Center Slovakia Retail Obtained Very Good
Aupark Koslce Tower Slovakia Office Obtained Very Good
Arena Centar Croatia Retail In progress Very Good._--_-----
Forum Usti nad Labem Czech Republic Retail Obtained Very Good
Kragujevac Plaza !)p.rbia Retail In progress Very Good
Promenada Novi Sad Slffbid Retail In progress Excellent
Serdika Center Bulgaria Retail In progress Very Good
Serdika Office Bulgaria Office In progress Very Good
Paradise Center Bulgaria Retail In progress Very Good
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Re.ponllible construction practice.

The Group promotes and follows responsible construction
practices throughout its developments. where it sees
value In preventing risks and liabilities arising from
pollution of the surrounding areas during construction
activities. Adoption of responsible construction practices
can lead to a wide range of environmental. social, and
financial benefits while at the same time Improving project
efficiency and understanding of construction performance
through continuous construction progress monitoring.

The Group continuously alms to Improve various aspects
of its construction processes, ensuring the safety of
vehicle deliveries to and around its constl'\Jctlon sites, as
well as promoting on-site and off-slte health and safety.
Including road safety. As construction activities may lead
to ground. water and air pollution. affecting workers on
site. as well as others in the surrounding area. the Group
Is asseslng alternatives to minimise any undesired or
negative effects its developments may produce.

The Group strongly believes in the importance ot and
directs Its actions towards continuous monitoring of
procedures relating to health and safety. resource
managemant, construction progress and site conditions,
as this brings added value and maximises project
performance .
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PILLAR III - COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

As a leading invester In the CEE. the Greup acknewledges
Its missien to. bring solutions to. Issues faced by the
communities that the Group is a part ef. ,.hreugh its'
business activities. it Is the aim o.f the Group to create
econormc value and. at the same time. to actively
contribute towards the development of a sustainable
seciety. ,.he Group aspires to. provide unique retail and
effice destinations and high standard services to. all
stakeholders. while at the same time to fulfil its corporate
vision to. bring a positive impact In the communities where
It operates. seeking to contribute to. sustainable social
development globally.

The Group implemented and 15following Corporate
Social Responsibility (CSR) strategy focused on four
main directions: educatIon, environment, community
and donatioN. in order Ix> maximise relevanCE! to the
communities the Group operates in,
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EDUCATION INITIATIVES AND SUPPORT

The Group believes that its success has been due to hiring
the right people. a team of specialised professionals
dedicated to their work. with great ethics and
responsibility for what they do. Through NEP! Academic ••
the Group's first scholarship program dedicated to
high performing college students with limited financial
possibilities. II contribution was made In the lives of
tomorrow's professionals helping bright students build
their career path. After a screening campaign. 20 students
were chosen and offered €150 monthly scholarships.
as well as face to face meetings with one of the Joint
CEOs. who shared his success story and gave them
inspiration for the future. Addltlonaly. an English language
certification course was offered to the students.

In partnership with the Emergency State Department.
the Group hosted educational campaigns in Shopping
City Tlrnlloa .... Shopping City Galati and BI'II1I8 MaO to
erornote neatth and safety awareness. The events included
trainings for emergency situations with the involvement
of the Fire Department and the Romanian Police. The
mobile center In:;talleCl In the parking lot of the malls was
equipped with medical and tl'illnlllg materials.

76 NE PROPERTYcoo.eRATIEF UA - A"NUAL ".PORT 201)

ECOLOGY INITIATIVES AND SUPPORT

Deforestation and scarce green spaces In urban areas are
increasing in the areas where the Group operates and
affect the communities It Is a part of. The Group continued
to support a series of planting initiatives as well as other
ecology awareness campaigns promoting the importance
of ecologic initiatives.

In 2017, the Group started a partnership with one of the
most active ecology NGOs in Romania, ·We plant good
deeds". With the help of the contribution made by the
Group. It was possible to plant over 14.000 trees in various
areas.

At Ploiesti Shopping City the Group organised the second
edition of Its annual planting campaign ·Young roots for
tomorrow's forests". where. with the help and contribution
of over 1.000 students and teachers involved as volunteers
a record of 10.000 plants and trees were planted in the
proximity of the shopping center.

In order for the Group to promote the ecological
principles It is committed to, It has engaged Its own
employees in projects to embed these concepts In the
day to day business practices as well. In an eHort to
shape a better future. the Group has decided to transition
to paperless business practices. and for the purpose of
supporting these processes, the Group Is undergoing the
implementation of a documents management system
and electronic signature on contracts. in order to reduce
printing and paper consumption as much as possible.
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HEALTH" SAFETY INITIATIVES AND SUPPORT

Students, medical clinics and foundations regularly
organise pro-h •• lth Info"".tlon campaigns in the Group's
shopping centres. focused on prevention measures and
screening tests for heart diseases. blood pressure and
diabetes, eye and hearing tests, support for parents of
autistic children and prevention of cancer.

Blood donation campaign I were organised In
collaboration with non-profit organisations during 2017.
as a response to the communities-wide shortages of
necessary donated blood, The Group acknowledges the
importance at scch a community act. and the constant
necessity for regular blood supply for the benefit of the
wider community. The Group understands and supports
blood donation campaigns that raise awareness of
this necessity. Moreover, regular blood donations by a
sufficient number of healthy people are needed to ensure
that safe blood will be available whenever and wherever
It Is needed. As a result of the campaigns conducted In
Mega Mall Romania. over 250 patients benefitted from
blood collected.

In partnership with other corporate collaborators,
the Group Is participating in a project supporting the
Emergency State I;>ePartment through its institution. the
Romanian Intervention ~rvlce for Emergency Situations,
to develop a mobile application for emergency
lituatlona, which will facilitate victims' rescue. The

application will use indoor positioning technology, will
enable short distance communication as well as create
and send video content from the Incident site. The Group
is one of the main supporters and anchors for this unique
project in the region. The Group plans to use its properties
to test and improve the initial application. which will
afterwards be rolled-out and used nation-wide. Taking into
consideration tli6t the core of the Group's operations lire
its buildings, Investing In such projects means improving
the safety standards for buildings in general, therefore
the collaboration with the Romanian Ministry of Internal
Affairs Is seen as beneficial in the long-term. In terms of
technology, the initiative will greatly improve survivability
in case of extreme disasters at all buildings In Romania.

DONATIONS

Shopping City nmlsoara in collaboration with several
tenants donated a fully equipped school backpack for 30
children, helping them start the new school year happy
and prepared.

Aurora Shopping MaU organised a donation campaign to
help ten families in need In the county. The Group Installed
II donation box for visitors to contribute with food, school
supplies and clothing. Some of our tenants contributed as
well.
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Sustainability
repOrt. continued

Pillar IV - BUSINESS INTEGRITY

The Group has zero tolerance for fraud and corruption
practices. Integrity is embedded In the Group's core
values and it was one ot the dimensions assessed within
employees' performance evaluatIon during 2017.

Starting trom the strong belief that the tone from
the top Is of utmost importance. tha Group has built
a management team of strong and experIenced
professiona Is.

The Group's commitment to Integrity and exceptional
business practices encompasses amongst others:

implementatIon ot Code of Ethics. Intemal Regulation.
Share Dealing Code and Whlstleblowlng PoliCY;
compliance with relevant laws and regulations
responsible purchasing through:

implementation ot Procurement Policy (which
promotes objectivity and transparency In our
procurement processes). with continuous
monitoring of compliance thereto;
supplier risk assessment for ali new suppliers.
and annual revision for existing suppliers;
win-win partnerships with Group's suppliers.
based on sustainable business practices, where
both the Group's companies and its suppliers
thrive and grow;

alignment to EU Regulation 2016/679 on personal
data protection;
alignment to EU Directive 2015/849 on Anti-Money
laundering and counter-terrorism finanCing.

7B N~ PAOPI;:R'TY COOPEQATIEF VA ~ ANNUAL REPORT 201'/



.A
pwc

Prtttwll,"""", .. c:oopm
Aerountanrs NoV.
For ktenrtll,,"lon
pIIrpOKlonly

,..e P~OPERTY COOPERATIF.J:' UA - ANNUAL REPOIH 201) 7.



~ JtrkeWIIU:mou~ooperl
....,::tfHl AccounfiUtU N.V

PIWc! F.r ldenrtllCitJon
AP:'ENOf'>..Ij1p .. ···nty

Schedule of properties
No. Property name V.aropelHtd/

IICqulred Location City

__ -:'cTOTAL PROPERTIES
__ _,INCOME PRODUCING PROl'EIITIES

RETAIL
1 Mella MaU 2015 ~~r-"B"'9iQI11i1! .M3'"_:,:.Ro~m~a!.7nl:.::::a'--.;B~u:;c!.!hil~r~e=.st:__-:-
2 Paradise Center 2013/2017 Super-Resional Ma.~II_,B=-,u::.lg",a"'Or.!!ia:..._-=so:::.f",18=-:- _
3 Arena Center 2010/2016 SUp!r-Reglol'llll Mielil Croatl8 Zagreb
4 City Park ~~"~ 2008/2013 Relfional t:'I.::;e:!!II~~_....:R.!:o::!.m!.!a~n.;:;la~~C::::::o!,!;ns~t::::::a:..:.nt~a:....__
5 Sen:llka Center 2010/2017 Rel.llo!l!! M~al!!..I .;B:,::u,!J;lgl:a~ri=a ...:S:.:o:..:.fl:.::::I!I,--_
6 Promenada Mall 2013/2014 Lifestyle Centre .~--,::R~o::.;m~1!I7n7'i8~---::B:;.:u::::c7'h8::::..::re:.:st:..:.._-_;
7 Aupark Koske Mall 2011/2014 Regional Mall -::s==-lo::.v:..:8::.;k"7iB=----=Ko;:;s::;~:::.ce:,__ _
8 Shol?l?!nsCit)/"Till1i!i(!aLi!~ 2015-2016 l3~iloni1ll Mall Romania Timisoara
9 Shoppina..Cit:t S!blu ~. _ . 2006/2016 ~po"'r."::R~e"'"i7'lo"'n-a";'"1::':M:-a;:'n-=R='o:..:.m""'..""n..:.:-la=-----=sl:7'b"'lu==-----
10 AUR!rk Zilina 2010/2013 Regional Mal!~,~----::S!!:lo~v!.!:a~k:!!Oi..:...._ z~ili:..:.nl!l~ ___.;;_;;....;.....
11 l!j!.TIt<l!l.§llo~~ter 2008/2015 Community Centro Romania Bucharest
12 Sh!?ppil1i.~lty Galati 2013 Regional Mall Romania Galati
13 Shoeping City ~,!iL 2007/2013 ROllional MiIIl! Romania
14 Brall!! Mall 2008/2009 Reltl=o,,"n=al~M~III~I__ -_:R::.:o:..:.ma'"7n,::i~a-~:__-_:B=:=r,-=a7'iI8~_;_:___;_---_
15 Forum Ustf nad Labem 2009/2016 1<_lIIlonalMaIL_~ Czech Republic Ustl nad Labem:;S--Vulcsn VeIUEIC;"tre~~~-" 2014 Communitll Ce!!l!e ·~..::R;.=o:::ma=-:.n-':i8==.:..;.:;.---;:B:..:u"'c:,.;h..;.:a:;.;re:;..st==-=""'---
17 Plteslti ReiiilPark 2007/2010 ~munl~ Centre Romania Pitestl
18 plo~;ii Shoppl'1i!.Qt)'.. 2012 Re!ilo'"'"n""a":'!":'M':'a~II~~::.-.-=R:-=o"'ma..:=n;;:ia=------=PI~O""i""es"':ti-;-·------
19 ShORl:7!inlt~hPllllt~!~Nellm! 2016 Regl~mlfl!l:'1J1JL --,R~o~ma:_=n-,!iil~-----:...,Pi:::·8:!!tr~a:.,:N.!;e:.:a:!.m,-"t,-----
~ Kra$1uj""i1ICP!5!2:i!I 2012/2014 l<e9iorHlIlMan ~_.;S:::erb!-=.!i::.a-;-_-__ _=K;:..ra::.ge;u"'!7.ev,:.;a~c=------
~.L Shopplil!il C!~)'Ttlrsu Jill 2014 .8::;;e""£lt:;lo::c;n;:;:i1I:::;I~M7ii1:::;I:_1.;,R:-=o"'ma=.:.n;;:ia=__-::"t;:;ar,_.go.:u=-;J::.;ic::u-:-;--;--_
;:!~_ . __ ~l1ppping C;!~llB:llJlflICU V!l1s!L. _._. _..2017 _. _. ~!Q\2.n!!MaIL_~ F..p~!lla Ramnlcu Valcea
23 Kol'%oShope1ns Centre 2010-2011/2016 Comfl)tm~ C",en'"'"t","re::::;"_---"S7Io~v,-,,a,:,!kia:=-__.,:Ko~rz-=o _
24 AUR!rk Shgpping Center F'!~tBny 2010/2016 Communitll~C'"'e"'n"'tr:.;;e;__-=S::.:lo:..:.v.:.ak:.:;ia7'-----=p.:.:ie:.::st~a::.;n.:.!y'=---:::__---c-
.!L__§ieverin Shopplns Center 2009/2013 Reqion;iMall Romania Drobeta Turnu Severin
26 AurOt!L~h2PJ2!ni Mall 2008/2014 ~Ii~!L._~ __Roma~nc:!i::.a -iB:nuz""a~ur.:n~rr.::=~r--P

Alba-Iulia. Alexandria, [
27-33 Regional strip centres 2007-2014 StrlpCentres Romania SfantuGbeorghe Sjghis

OFFICE

Deva

34 Floreasc<I Businll!lIsPark --:2;:00~9~/-=2==0~10~==--~,::.:::~------==~7'=_----=B7!u~ci.!ha~r'-=e:!:st!,_ _
35 City BU$inossCentrli!..~~ 2007-2015/2015 Tirnlsoara
36 The LakeView 2010/2013 Bucharest

41 RasnovIQdu$uialf~~mty ~2~00~7~----------~~~~--------_==~~ ~R~a~sn~o~y~~---------
.:!.42=--_.;;;;O""t<:j:>~.i .~!\lrehOUsl1l 2010 Bucharest

Office Romania
Office Romania
Office Romania
Office Romania
Office Bulgaria
Office Romania
Office Slovakia

Industrial Romania
Industrial Romania

~37~__ ~Th~e~O~ffi~ce~c~I~~~·~N~apoc~~=a~--------~2~0~14~.~2~0~15~.~2~01~7----~~------------=~~~------~CI~=~p~ca=--------
38 Serdika Office 2011/2017 Sofia
~3:::'9----V~lc';;;;tolierO~ff?'lc""'e-~----- _. 2017 Bucharest----------~~~~------::~~----------~~~------~~~~--------40 AUR!rk Kosice T01M*r 2012/2014 Kosice

INDUSTRIAL

TOTAL DEVELOPMENTS AND LAND BANK
DEVELOPMENTS UNDER CONSTRUCnoN

Development Serbia Novi Sad
Extension Romania Vaslul

Extension Romania Bucharest
Extension Croatia Zagreb
Development Romania Targu Mures
Development Romania Satu Mare
Development Serbia Krusevac and Sabac
Extension Romania Buz8u
Extension Romania Ploiesti
Extension Romania Sibiu
Extension Slovakia Korzo

43 Promenada Novl Slid - Phase I
27 Vaslui strip centre

-----D=iVi~L~O~PMENTi~uND=I=R~P=E=R=M=1=Tn~N=G~AN~D~PR~E~-~L~EA~S~IN~G~·------------------------------------------------
6 Promenada 'Maif~"
3 Arena Cent",
~Shgl?e.~li.. City Talll.fJMUr$.;;:;$~.~P.:.;h:;:::<l$;:;;e::.;·f'-" -==~;.=~"7--__:_==.:.=.:.:=_---___::==:_'O'::_;,.==----
45 Shop2inJlg~~at\J.!'1""'"a;;.;.f""'e~~~ -=-==.c=.:..:~ .:,=.:.:.=:..:.=-----'=~::=:...=---:-:: _
46-47 Retail R!rk$I(B!::::s""=a.:::,c.:l:tll.!:nd=Stl=b=iiI~C~ ~==:.:=!.:....--....!::=.!::::::..------'..!~=~~~~:::..__
26 Aurora Shoee.ln" MIlII _
18 Ploltiti ShaRping Ci~ .." ..~~-"..~------------=~~::::::!.!.----~~~------=~~---
9 ShoppinQ Cit:~Sibiu - PhiSS!!! L_~_.
23 Ko,:!o Sho!!?i!l:JilIl'-C~e::c:.n::;tr::;e::._ --'====~ __"==~ ___!== _

__ ___!L~.~n:.:d:..:he=ld~fo~r'-'deve==Io::Jpm=.~nts= .~.. ~,. _. __ .,.. _" __ , _

10 NON-CORE PROPERTIES

• £sttma~ (enral vaJue ro, devPiOPmMf>i
• The develDpmMts unrifN DeffnitMg and P'9-IedSJf>(}~ GLA t1cpN>ds on t:XJmJlttinl1 .

• 0 NE PROPERTY COOPERA'IEF VA - ANNVAl REPORTl017



.JI1
pwc

l'r1<owI .... hGu_pm
At"'ml,mtllntf N.V.
Por klerut6tlllon
purposes only

Ownership GLA GLA viluatioiCOst Pa' r Averade renhll OCCUftAncyto data Alng 1'9n. -
m' ml em em C/ml'month
1607 290 1548 590 1~48.6 DS.S
1110 000 1275100 1:W1.l 22L" 14.1 .7.D"
1 079 700 1 OS6 800 2 778.9 191.8 15.1 H.8"

100% 7S800 75800 306.1 19.0 20.9 97.9%
100% 82000 82000_ 254.7 15.7 16.0 88.596
100% 61 600 61 600 226.1 15.3 20.7 95.4%
100% 52100 52100 181.8 12.8 20.5 97.1%
100% 51500 51 sao 161.4 12.6 20.4 99.1%
100% 39400 39400 196.0 12.0 25.4 99.4%
10096 33800 33800 __ 166.2 9.9 24.4 95.2%
100% 56900 56 900 120.2 8.6 12.6 100.0%
100% 78200 78200 116.9 8.S 9.1 96.4%
100% 2.5 100 25100 124.8 8.1 26.9 100.0%
100% 4S000 45 000 96.8 7.5 13.9 99.7%
100% 49 too 49 100 101.8 6.5 11.0 84.9%
100% 52500 52 500 n,7 6.5 10.3 100.0%
100% 55 400 55 400 78.8 6.1 9.2 97.2%
100% 27800 27800 87.9 5.4 16.2 97.1%
100% 24 600 24 600 56.8 4.0 13.6 100.0%

_'00% 24 800 24 800 35.1 3.8 12.8 100.0%
50% 45800 22 900 51.0 3.6 13.1 95.3%
100% 28000 28000 47.9 3.5 10.4 100.0%
100% 22 200 22200 41.9 3.4 12.8 96.6%
100% 27100 27100 44.1 3.3 __._._. __.__..10.1 99.8%

____ .. .J9.Q?'-. __-_ ..__._._28£QQ. ~~_~_Q.Q_._._"._._- ~~.1__ ._ . 2.9 _ 8.6 95.3%
100% 16100 16100 39.1 2.9 15.0 98.7%
100% 10300 10300 41.0 2.7 21.8 98.0%
100% 22 600 22 600 34.3 2.4 8.8 99.7%

t==--...::==:r-_._.....LOO~_____ 18000 ..__~OOO__ lS.S 2.2 10.2 99.7%
3ntSov, petrosanl, 100% 25800 25 800 32.9 2.6 8.4 100.0%
oara vasluj _. __ .
________ =-=-::-:- ...l!2~22==_=&:.:::0_70-----'1~I~O~7~O~O:---454.0 14.7 15.2 98.1"

100% 36 300 36 300 108.3 7.9 18.1 9i1.4"
100% 47 BOO 47 800 97.1 7.9 13.8 97.9%
100% 25600 25 600 74.S 5.4 11.6 98.8%

__ ._ _ 50% 63 600 31BOO 61.1 5.1 13.4 _ 99.0%
___ .._.1Q.9~ _'. 28 sao 28 SOD . ~1.1 ._~.9_,... __._.. :....._.J1.,1._ ~_.•. __.~:~

100% 7 800 7 800 40.1 2.7 28.8 99.2%
100% 12900 12900 21.2 1.8 11.6 100.0%

27800 27 100 1&.2 1.9 5.7 98.0"
100% 23000 23000 11.6 1.3 4.7 97.6%
100% 4 800 4 800 4.6 0.6 10.4 100.0%

25&800
52200

252800
52200

'81U
&5.0

10.8
10.8

100" 49400 49400 62.3 10.5
100% 2800 2800 0.7 0.3

----------------2=:04::-:-60=0=----2=c0::-:0::-6-=-0::::-0::::------:8=:8::-.~7.8=-----.-----.---~----

100% 60 000 60 000 34.4
_______ ~1:_:0:..:°7%:_---~2~7-:90~0---~2~7....::9:..:0:..:0:...,------='~9.:.::2---_'._..

100% 32900 32900 _11L _
___________ ~1:..:00~%:_-------:2~8~7~00~----~2=8~7~0:..:0:...,------1~1.~5----------~~-.---~-----~--

100% 22200 22200 5.5....~-~. -_'''---'',Oo~--- 5 900 5900 2.B

50% 8 000 4 000 1.0
100% 9700 9700 ..:.._..._.~ ..

________ ...:1-=0-=0%=-- ...::9:....:3::..:0::..:0'--~9-"3"'0-=O _= ,. .... _ ... _

------------~. ',--
_. _' ... " •• •• oo __,'n'-'-=·Ic....-. _=;..___::__

20410 20490 10.2 0.7
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lndependent auditor's report

To: the general meeting of NE Property CooperatiefU.A.

Report on thefinaneiai statements 2017

Our opinion
Inour opinion NE Property Coliperatief U.A.ts financial statements give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Company and the Group as at 31December 2017.and ofits result and its cash
110wsfor the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards 88
adopted by the European Union (EU-IFRS) and with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch CMI Code.

11'hat we have audited
We have audited the accompanying financial statements 2017 of ME Property Cooperatief UA,
Amsterdam ('the Company). The financial statements include the conaolldatecl financial statements of
NE Property Co5peratiefU.A. and its subsidiaries (together: 'the Group') and the company financial
statements.

The financiaJ statements comprise:
.. the consolidated and company statements of financial position as at 31 December 201"
• the fonowing statements for 201'7: the consolidated and company statements of comprehensive

income, changes in equity and cash 11ows; and
• the notes, comprising a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information.

The financial reporting framework that bas been applied in the preparation of the financial statements
is EU-IFRS and the relevant provisions of Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

The basis for our opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Dutch law, including the Dutch Standards on Auditing.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the section 'Our responsibilities for
the audit of the financial statements' of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

DDK6X27ANVYW-6.246B1870-l7r-M-~---_-'----"'--- ..__ .M. ._".-:- " .
PricewaterhouseCoopers Accountants N. V., Thomas R. Malthusrtraat 5, 1066 JR Amsterdam. P.O. Box 903.'i7.
1006 BJ Amsterdam, the Netherlands
T: +31 (0) ~8 792 00 20, F: +3J (0) 88 7929640, www.pwc.nl
'py,c' II lllelnncl LIId8r IOIIIdIp~~.mou.c:oop .. AooowIIMII H.V (CIwIMtMlt of eomm_ 3418Q2851.P~aCoop. .. 8elallnpdvtMUII N V
(Cham_ 01 C... III'__ 341811284). ""-rfIOIIIICocpn AdvIsory N.V [cr.m.,., fIICo_ 3411102ST). ~~ CompIIEa 8.r11t_ a v
(CllamHrof Coon_ 51414C06), ~,..,.".. kluuW & 1_laNlc:ea" V CClllndlwdCom_ 64.22113681.
Prl~pon 8 V (Chambar rI CorIInWtII3418a2811)I'" alii.. CIIIIIpan'" DpanM .net prawld • ..m- Tht "'" gII'IWII8d II)' o-rar TIIIWIS
."d Colldillo",rav-_1111..,. wtKIllndude pavI...... ~ olUlIaIlIIly ~ III' Itt ClQII1IIniou aa-nad lIra.-lt_1IIId CCl'ldlb_
.. PuoWae r'la-'IIIkODpfOaIWMrdon',. AIWWWP'I'C nf mote d.1I6Id InbrnltlQn on hll ClClIl1jI II ..... IBID, 1ncI~1I1h_ Genal .. r......Ind CondIIIDna
.., 1111s.netll TInIIIIII1II CDndl'lIara d ~ wWd1 haw aJso been tiled ...... AmIIerdom Cha/IIber of ConwnIl'Ce



Independence
We are independent ofNE Property CooperatiefU.A. in accordance with the European Regulation on
specific requirements regarding statutory audit of public interest entities, the 'Wet toezicbt
accountaDtsorganisaties'(Wta, Audit finns supervision act), the 'Verordening lnzake de
onafhankelijkheid van accountants bij assuranceopdracbten· (ViO - Code of Bthics for Professional
Accountants. a regulation with respect to independence) and other relevant independence
requirements in the Netherlands. Furtbennore. we have eompUed with the 'Verordening gedrags- en
beroepsregels accountants' (VGBA - Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants, a regulation with
respect to rules of professional conduct).

Our audit aPPJ·oacl.
Overview and context
NE Property Co6peratiefU.A.'s activities are developing. operating and maiJaging investment property
to earn rental income, capital appreciation or both. The investment property is located in Central and
Eastern Europe, maiuly io Romania. NE Property CooperatiefU.A. is mainly financed by
intercompany borrowings provided by Nepiom Limited, a group company of the ultimate parent
NEPI Rockcastle ple, and debt instruments issued 00 the Irish Stock &cl1Jlngp,. 1'htt uonp is
comprised of several components and therefore we considered our group audit scope and approach as
set out inthe section 'The scope of our group audit'. We paid speclfic attention to the areas of focus
driven by the operations of the Group, a8 set out below.

As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material
misstatement in the financial statements. Inparticular, we considered where the board of directors
made importantjudgementsj for example, in respect of significant accounting estimates that involved
makins assumptions and considering future events that are inherently uncertain. Indisclosnre note 4
of the financial statements the company descn'bes the areas of judgment in applying aoeounting
policies and the by sources of estimation uncertainty. Given the significant estimation uncertainty in
the valuation of investment properties. we considered this to be a key audit matter as set out in the
section 'Key audit matters' of this report.

Other areas of focus, that were not considered to be key audit matters were the purchases and sales of
investment properties, accurate and complete accounting of rental income, compliance with bank
covenants, the income tax position and the recoverability of intercompany receivables. A. in an of our
audits, we also addressed the risk of I!1l1llqement override of internal controls, including evaluating
whether there was evidence of bias by the board of directors that may represent a risk of material
nrl8~b9nentduetoftau~

We ensured that the audit teams both at group and at component levels Included the appropriate skills
and competences which are needed for the audit of a real estate company. We therefore included
specialists in the areas of IT and real estate valuation experts and tax experts inOUY team.

HE Property Coiiperatitif U.A .. DDK6X27ANVYW·62468187D-J7
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The outline of our audit approach was as follows:

fl.latf!Mulity
• Overall materiality: € 29.1million which represents 1" of total assets.

Audit scope
• A full scope audit bas been perfonned on the most financially significant

components Inthe Group, while other large components were subject to an
audit over certain aecount balances, based on our asaessment of the risk and
materiality of the Group's operations at each component.

Key audit matters
• Valuation of investment properties

.:.\1(lteriality
The scope of our audit is influenced by the application of materiality which is further explained in the
sec:tioo 'Our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements'.

Based on our pr0fe8sionaljudgment, we determined certain quantitative thresholds for materiality,
including the overall materiality for the financial8tatements ali a whole as set out in the table below.
These, together with qualitative considerations, helped us to determine the nature, timing and extent
of our audit procedures on the individualfinanclal statement line items and disclosures and to
evaluate the effect of identified misstatements. both individually and in aggregate, on the financial
statements as a whole and on our opinion.

Overall group €29,1 million (2016: C22.3 mmion) .
..~~~.~~~~ - -- - - - _ _ ..__ _ _ _ _.__ ..- _-_. __ _ _ _ _._ _ ..
BCl6!s for determfn ing We used our professional judpnent to detenmne overall matmiality. As a basis for
materiality ourjudgmentwe used 176 of total assets of the company flnanclal position per

.............._ _.~_ ~ _ _ 3.~_p.!~!?!.!g.~1.:........•...." _ _ _ _.__._ _ _ _._ _..
RationaleJor We. used total assets u the primary benchmark, a generally accepted auditing
benchmark applied practice, based on our anal)'lris of the common information needs of users of the

financial statements. On this basis, we believe that this benchmark is an Important
metric for the fiuanclal performance of the company.

Component
materiality

To each component in our audit scope, we, based on our judgement, allocate
materiality that Is less than our overall I!DllP materiality.

We also take misstatements and/or possible misstatements into account that, in our judgement, are
material for qualitative reasons.

We agreed with the board of directors that we would report to them misstatements identified during
our audit above (;lA53,OOO (2016: (;1,130,000) as well as misstatements below that amount that, in
our view, warranted reporting for qualitative reasons.

NE Property Cooperatie/ U.A... DDK6X27ANVl'W-62468J87()ooZ7
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Tile scope of our group audit
NE Property Coijperatief U.A. is the parent company of a group of entities. The financial Information
of this group is included in the consolidated financlalstatements ofNE Property CoOperatief U.A.

We tailored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed sufficient work to be able to give an
opinion on the financial statements as a whole, taking into account the management structure of the
Group. the aeconnting processes and controls, lind the industry inwhich the Group operates.
The Group 0WlUI and invests ina number of investment properties focussed on Central and Eastern
Burope. These are held within a variety of subsidiaries and joint ventures. Inestablishing the overa1l
group audit strategy and plan. we determined the type of work required to be performed at the
component level by the group engagement team and by each component auditor.

Based on our undemanding of the Group we focused our audit work primarily on the most financially
significant components, wbich represent mainly large shopping centres and retail parks in Romania,
Croatia, Slovakia and Bulgaria. 1bese WBl'e subject to a full scope audit given their financial
significance to the Group. Other large components were subject to an audit over certain account
balances (Including investment property), based on our assessment of risk and materiality of the
Group's operations at each component. For those remaining components we performed. among other
things. analytical procedures to corroborate our assessment that there were no significant risks of
material misstatements within those components.

In establishing the overall approach to the group audit. we determined the type of work that needed to
be performed by us, as the group engagement team, or component auditors from other PwC network
firms or other networb operating under our instruction. Where the work was performed by
component auditors, we determined the level of involvement we needed to have in the audit work at
those compODents to be able to conclude whether sufficient appropriate audit evidence had been
obtained as a basis {or our opinion OD the financial statements as a whole.

By performing the procedures above at components, combined with additional procedures at group
level. we have been able to obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence on the Group's financial
information, 88 a whole, to provide a basis for our opinion OD the financlalstatements.

Key audit matters
Key audit matters are those matters that. in our professional judgement, were of most aignificance in
the audit of the financlalltatementB. We have communicated the key audit matters to the board of
directOI'B. The key audit matters are not a comprehensive reflection of aJl matters that were identified
by our audit and that we discussed. In this section, we described the key audit matters and included •
summary of the audit procedures we performed on those matters.

The key audit matters were addressed In the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole,
and in funning our opinion thereon. We do not provide separate opinions on these matters or on
specifie elementa of the financial statements. Any comments or observations we make on the results of
our procedures should be read in this context.

HE Property Coiipf!ratir;/' U.A. - DDK6X27ANVYW-M468J8JO-J7
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Kr.!l. Qudit mallel' HoUJ our Qudit addressed the mailer
Valuation ojintJestmellt properties
See notes 3.5> 3.6.3."1,4.9 and 10 to the financial
statements

The wluatiou of lbe ill\'elbnent properties ..
alplflcant to our audit due to their magnitude aDd
becaUl tbelnalulltion IIcomplex Ind highly
depeudml on a raJIP of estimate.. (amonpt otbera,
rental value, vacancy rates, noJHeCGYel'llbl. exptID8U,
leue inceDtives, mainbmanee eaItI, disc:ount rate5
and estImatDd tenIWW valae) made by the board of
cHrecton &8 weD IS the externallppraleers used by the
board of cliredon. Entitiu thlt Invest in real estate
fnhereutly are under pr8ISlln! to acbleve eertafD
tuzets walda ludl to the risk that the VIlae of
property IIovem.ted by the entity.

'Ibe boud of dirmDra used external appraisers to
support lbelr deblrD1iDat1on ofche IndiYic1aaJfair
valuel of the illves1meat properties nmJ·aDllaally.

Oor procedures in relation to board ofboard of
directors' valu.atloa of Investment properties Included:
• Evaluation of the competence, capabWtIes and

objectivity of the extemal appralsers;
• AIseaIns the metbodoloPes ued .nd the

appropriateDess of the key assumpttODI based on our
Icnowledge of the property tnclusby;

• UIl", our OWD auditor's expertIm valuation of real
eItate to assess the approprfateaea of the estimates
ued In the caleulaticm of the fair value of the
Invutment properties (amonpt otberI.11IIItBI value.
vacancy ntel, n~recoverah1e expenses. lease
incentlvu, malatenaoce COItI, dilc:ouat ratea and
estimated tmnlDll vallIS); and

• atecldn, on 8 sample bull, the appropriateness of
the inputl, by recoucII1nlthem with eoatrac:ts ami
rent roll data. The maiD Inputl cxmsbt of the
property related data (soch IS rental im:Gme.
operatilll com. YBCIIIlC.1. etl:eten,),

We found that property related data aDd the key
valuation UlUmpt[ona WIn I11PPOrtedby available
evidence: contracts. rat roD and atamal marbt
evidence.

We also UI_eIl the appropDateDt18 of the
dIIclosureI nlatinS to the UIUIDptkIns, IS we cmuider
them to be tmportaJrt to UI8J1I oftbe financial
statemenb sfyen the estimation uncertBlllf1 and
l8IUIitivity of the va]UltiOQl.

w. concur with the boerd ofboanl Gf dlrectora' position
OIl the wluatiou of tha bIveItmeDt properties In
operation .. lISt out In the fiDaDclaJ ItatemeAbi.

Report on the other information included in the annual report
In additioD to the fitumc:ial statementB and our aucUtor's report thereon, the annual report contains
other informatioD that COIJ8lsts of:
• IUlowrriew, includin8 the directors' report, the corporate ICJVeI'IWlClereport and the schedule of

properties: and
• the other bIformation pursuant to Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

Based OD the procedures performed as set out bdow, we CODcludethat the other Information:
• Is c:onalJtent with the financial statements and does DOt contain material misstatements;
• contains the1nfimnation that is required by Part 9 of Book ~ of the Dutch Civil Code.

HB Propmy CrJOperatW,{ UA .• DDK6X1l7ANYYW-62468187CJ-17
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We have read the other iufonnation. Bued on our knowledge and undar&taDdiDg obtained in our audit
of the fiD8l1dalBtatements or otherwise, we have considered whether the other iDformation CODta1Ds
material miutatementl.

ByperfomUDg ourprocedul"8B, we annply with the requiremeDtB of Part 9 of Book 2 of the
Dutch Civil Code and the Dutch Standard '120. The &COpe of such procedUl'ell was subatantially less
than the 8COp8 of those performed in our audit of the financial statements.

The board of directors is responSible for the preparation of the other infommiOD, includinS the
diredara' report and the other iDfonuation in aeeordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of the
Dutch CivO Code.

Hepor' on other legal and "eguliltory ,·equiremen.ts
Om' appointment
We were appointed on 10AprO 2018 as auditors ofNE Property Co6peratIefUA following the passing
of a resolution by the shareholders at the BIlDual meetius and the appointment haa been renewed
annuallyby shareholders repraentiDg 8 total period of uninterrUpted enppment appointment of
syears.

No prohibited non-audit services
To the beat of our bowledge and belief, we bave not provided prohibibMl non-eudit services as
rel'emd to InArticle 5(1) of the European Regulation on specific requlmnenta reprdiag statutDcy
audit of public inbnlt eatItia.

Services rendered
The aervtces, in addition to the audit, that we have provided to the company and Ita controlled entities.
for the period to whic:h our statutory audit relates, are disclosed inDOte 38 to the financlal statements.

Responsibilitiesfor thefiuaneial statements and tile audit
Responsibilities a/the board o/diJ'ectors
The board of d1rectoI1I is responsible for:
• the preparation and fair pnsentation of the finaDc:ial statemenbl In acc:ordance with IU-IFRS

aDd with Put 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch ClvD Code; and for
• web IDamal contmlas the board of dlnctol'8 determines fa nece&11llY10enable the preparation

of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Aa part of the preparatiOD of the finaacial statements, tbe board of directol'lirl t1I8JIonsible for
ISIe8SiD& the COIJlP8.Dtaability to continue as I IOUlg concern. Baed on the financial reporting
frameworb mentioned, the board of directors should prepare the fiaaaclalltatemeDta uiDg the
golDg-coacera balls of accountfDc mea the board of directon either tuteuds to liquidate the
company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do 10. 111eboard of directors
should dlaclose events and c:iJcumstances that may cut significant doubt on the company'. ability to
continue IS a lOins concern in the financ:ialltatem.entli.

NE Property CoiJperatilif U.A .• DDK6Xa7ANVYW-6:.l468.87C}-J 7
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Our responsibilities for the audit ofthefinancial statements
Oor nsponaibllfty is to piau and perform an audit enpaement in a mlDDer that alloWB us to obtain
aufflc:leut and appropriate audit evidence to provide a basts for our opinion. Our audit opiDiou alms to
provide reasonable aasorance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement. Reasonable assurance is a high but DOt abaolute level of asaurance which makes It
possible that we may DOt detect aD misstatements. Misstatements may arlee due to fraud or error.
They are c:oDBidered to be material if. individuaDyor inthe aggregate, they could reaaonably be
expected to fnflueuce the economic decisions of usen; taken on the basfa of the ftDBDClal statements.

Materiality affec:bJ the nature, timiDg and extent of our audit pl"OCedures and the evaluation of the
effect of identified misstatements OD our opinion.

AmON detalled desc:ription of our te8pODsibiUtles Iaset out inthe appendix to our report.

Amsterdam, 2 May 2018
PrlcewaterhouseCoopera Accountants N.V.

. .
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Appendix to our auditor's report on the financial stnrements
20170fNf; Property CooperaliefU.A.
In addition to what is included In our auclitor'l report we bave further set out in this appendix our
responsibilities for the auml of the fiDancial statements aud explained what an audit involves.

The auditor's responsibilities for the audit of thefinancial statements
We have exerclled profeuionaljwigement and have maintained professional scepticism throughout
the audit inaccordance with Dutch Standards on Auditing, ethical requirements and independence
requirements. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the fiDancial
statements 85 a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. Our audit
conaistM, among other thiDSS of the following:
• Ident:if'yiJll and useajng the rilb of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether

due to fraud or error, design"" and performing audit procedurea l't!8pODSiveto those risb, and
obtaining audit evidence that is auffident and appropriate to provide a baaia for our opinion.
'Ibe risk of not detecting a material miutatement resulting from fraud Is higher than fw ODe
result:ln& from error, aa fraud mayiDYolve coDoskm, forgery, intenticmaJ omissiODl,
mlsrepreIIentatioDS, or the intentional override of iDtemal COJltrot

• ObtaiDbalan UJlderstandiug of iDlemal control re1ewnt to the audit m order to destgo audit
proced1ln!lllthat are appropriate in the circumstances. but Dot for the purpose of expressing aD
opinion OD the effect:Mmesa of the company's internal control.

• Evalnattng the appropriateness of accountins poUcies used and the reasonableueas of
accounting estimates and related diadosures made by the board of directors.

• Concluding on the appropriateness of the board of direetora' use of the IOiDs concern bula of
accounting, and hued on the audit eYidence obtaiDed, conc1ucUnswhether a material
uncertaiDC1 exiIta related to events and/or condidODB that may cut sipificant doubt ODthe
company's ability to continue as B,oins concern. If'Wl! conclude that a material UncertalDty
exiata, we are required to draw attentioD in our auditor's report to the related disclosures m the
finaucialltataueuts or, If such diacIosuru are inadequate, to modify OlD' opinion.
Our conclusioDl are baaecl On the audit evidence obtaiDed up to the date of our auclitDts report
and are made in the context of our opinion OD the financialltatemeublBl a whole. However,
future events or coDdltiODI may eause the company to ceue to continue ua going concern.

• Evaluatin& the overall presentation, structure ad couteat of the ftnlU!clal Btatemeuta, lDc1ucUns
the disclosures, and evaluatiDI whether the fin.ucla) sbltemmbl represent the undadyiDg
traDBac:dona and ewmts ina manner that ach1eves fair presentation.

Conaiderins our ultimate responsibility for the oplnSon on the compaay'a CODIOlidated financial
atatementa we are responsible for the direction, supervision and pedormance of the group audit.
In this contm, we have determined the nature aad extaut of the aucJJtprocedures for compOD8Dt8 of
the croup to eDSUre that we performed enough work to be able to &lve an opinion OD the flnandal
atatementB as a whole. Determinin& fadom are the leo graphic atroc:ture of the JI'Q1IP. the alptftcance
aM/or risk profile of puup entities or actiYltfes, the accouatfug processes and controls, aDd the
industry inwhich the group operates. OIl this baais. we selected group eutities for which an audit or
review of financlal iDformation or .speclfic balances was consfdered neceasuy.

NEProper'tJI OoOperatiqU.A. - DDK6D7MWYW-62,468JB70-J'1
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We communicate with the board of direetors regardjng, amoq other mattea, the plBDned scope and
timiDg of the audit and significant audit flnclfnp. including any significant deficiencies in internal
eontrol that we identify during our audiL Intbla respect we also lssue an additional report to the board
of cUrectol'l!l in accordance with Article 11 of the EU Regulation on specific requirements reprdins
st:atutocy audit of pubUc-interest entities. '!be information included Inthls additional report la
consistent with our audit opinion in this auditor's report.

We provide the board af directors with • statement that we have compUed with relevant ethical
requirements regardias independence, and to communicate with them all relationshipl and other
matters that may reasonably be thougbt to bear on out lndepeudeace, and where applicable, related
safeguuda.

From the matb5n1communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of
moat &fpI1ItaDCe iD the audit of the financial statements of the c:urrent period and ue therefore the
key audit matten. W. descn'be these matters in our auditor's report unleu law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstaDces. not c:onununlcatllll the
matter is in the public intereat.
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMEN'I'S



CONSOUDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ASSETS

Non-eurrcnt aue1l!l

In'YeStmentproperty

Investment property in use

Investment property under development

Goodwin

Deferred tax assets

Investments injoint ventures

Long-term loans granted to joint ventures

Other long-term assets

Interest rate derivatives financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Current assets

Trade and other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Investment property held for sale

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUI'IY AND IJABILITIES

Equity attributable to equity holders

Share capital

Accumulated profit

Non-<:ontrolling interest

Total HabUities

Group Group
liIlm 31 Dec 2017 31 Pcc; 2016

3,505.376 a,701,4a5

3.320.157 2,546.712

9 3,136.966 2.370.760

10 183,191 176.012

12 67.702 58,390

:l0 3,299

27 40,856 22,023

27 25,792 31,015

11 47.570 43,219

6

196,114 86,766

13 39.096 40,539

14 157,018 46,227

15 10,a38 15,525

3,711,728 2,803.116

16

742,475

508,895

459,91,

382,866



Non-current liabilities

Intercompany borrowings

Bank loans

Bonds

Deferred tax liabilities

Other long-term liabilities

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Intercompany borrowings

Bank loans

Bonds

TOTAL HQUJ'IY AND UABILITlES

2

Group Group
N!!K 31 Dec 2017 31 Dec 2016

2,870,671 2,166,329

17 1,564.399 1.334.402

17 167,090 260,593

17 890,720 395,067

:20 227,133 158,864

19 21,329 17.403

98,582 177,470

18 79,633 82,958

17 25,738

17 8,077 7,539

17 10,872 61,235

3,711,728 2,803,716

All amounts in Thousand Euro unless otherwise stated



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Group Group
N.DB. 31 Dec 201731 Dec: 2016

Revenues from rent and expense recoveries 273,144 209,790

Property operating expenses (81,466) (64.358)

Net rental and related income ::11 191,678 145,432

Administrative expenses (10,753) (10,102)

Acquisition fees 23 (4,930) (3,434)

Fair value a<ijustments of investment property 24 174,086 143,163

Foreign exchange loss (786) (191)

GaIn/(Loss) on disposal of investment property 438 (485)

Profit before net finance expense 349,733 274.383

Net finance expeD8e 25 (154.760) (181,550)

Finance income 2,577 4,250

Finance expense (157,337) (185,800)

Fair value adjustment of Interest rate derivatives financial
assets and liabilities (8) (39)

Share of profit of joint ventures 27 16,068 6.383

Profit before tax 211,033 99,177

Income tax expense (54,504) (36,472)

Current tax expense 20 (2,646) (1,664)

Deferred tax expense 20 (51,858) (34,808)

Profit after tax 156.529 62,705

Total comprehensive profit for the year 156.529 62,705

Non-<:antrolling interest 2,316

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR. A'ITRIBUTABLE TO EQUI'IY
HOLDERS 156,529 65,021

All amounts in Thousand Euro unleu otherwise stated
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

NOD-

Sbare Aceumulated eDntrolllng
su.itBl Dmfi1 interest

Balance at 1JanlUll')' 2016 36,389 34.149 1,633 72,171

Transactions with owners 346,4'77 (22,124) 688 385,041

Increase in share capital 346,47'7 346.477

Acquisition of non-controlling interest (22,124) 688 (21.436)

Total eomprehensfve income 65,021 (2,316) 62,705

Profit for the year 65,021 (2,316) 62,705

BALANCE AT
31 DECEMBER.2016 382,866 7'7,046 5 459,911

Balance at l.January 2017 382,866 77,046 6 459,917

Transactions with owners 12.6,029 J.26,0:l9

Increase in share capital 126,029 126,029

Total comprehensive Income 156,529 156,529

Profit for the year 156.529 156,529

BALANCE AT
31 DECEMBER 201, 508,895 233,575 5 742.475

AU amounts in Thousand Euro unless otherwise stated
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Group Group
~ 31 Dec 2017 31 Dec 2016

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit after tax 156.529 62,705

Adjustments

Fair value adjustments of investment property for controlled
subsidiaries 24 (174,086) (143,163)

Other administrative expenses 22 5,948

Foreign exchange loss 786 191

(Gain)/Loss on disposal of investment property (438) 485

Net finance expense 25 154,760 181,550

Fair value adjustment of Interest rate derivatives financial
assets and liabilities for controlled subsidiaries 8 39

Deferred tax expense for controlled subsidiaries 20 51,858 34.808

CUrrent tax expense 20 2,646 1,664

OperatlDs profit before c:hangaln workins capital 198,011 138,279

Changes in working capital

(lncrease)/decrease in trade and other receivables (14,622) 9,861

Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables 62 (7,412)

Interest paid (133,825) (82.595)

Bond coupon paid (15,895) (3,616)

Income tax paid (2.470) (1,461)

Interest received 1,148 3,785

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING AcnvITIF.S 32,409 56,841

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Investments in acquisitions and developments

Additions of investment property (131,960) (1690594)
Payments for acquisition of subsidiaries less cash acquired

during the year 26 (451,144) (448,958)

Settlements of deferred consideration for prior years
acquisitions 19 (6,741) (11,488)
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Group Group
Nmc 31Dec 2017 31Dec 2016

Proceeds from sale of investment property held for sale (net of
selling cost) 15 5,028 2,655

Acquisition of non-controlling Interest (21,436)

Loans granted to third parties (4,:w8)

Loans to joint ventures - amounts granted 27 (2,818) (3,041)

Loans to joint ventures - amounts repaid 27 6,657 9,164
CASH FLOWS USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (585,186) (642,698)

FINANCING ACfIVI'I1ES

Net movements in bank loans, bonds and other borrowings

Proceeds from intercompany borrowings 17 306,789 185.484

Proceeds from bank loans 17 10,000 166,070

Proceeds from bonds 17 500,000 50,000

Repayrnentofbankloans 17 (103,221) (91.458)

RepayrnentofboDds 17 (50,000)

Other proceeds/(paymenta)

Acquisition of non-controlling interest (3,064)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING AcnvrnES 663,568 307,032

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents brought forward 14

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS CARRIED FORWARD 14

UO,791 (278,825)

All amounts in Thousand Euro unless otherwise stated
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NOTES TO THE CONSOUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. GENERAL

NE PROPER'IY COOPERATIEF U.A ("the Company'") is II cooperative with exclusion of liability
incorporated in the Netherlands on 22 October 2007 and domiciled at Paulus Potterstraat 32-2,
10711)B Amsterdam, the Netherlands. In 2015 and in 2017, the Company issued debt instruments
listed on the Irish Stock Exchange (Note 17). The Group includes the Company and ita subsidiaries,
as detailed in 'Basis of consolidation' in Note 3-4.

The Company's shares are held by NEPI Holdings ltd (99.99l16) and NEP Investments ltd (O.O1l16).

The ultimate parent of the Company is NEPI Rockcastle plc (further referred to as "NRP pic"), a
limited liability company incorporated in the Isle of Man on 1 December 2016 and domiciled at and
floor, Athol Street, Douglas, Isle of Man. NRP plc is listed on the Main Board of the Johannesburg
Stock Exchange Limited (JSE) and Euronext Amsterdam.

During the fourth quarter of 2016, New Europe Property Investments plc (NEPO, a property
investment and development group incorporated in the Isle of Man and listed on the Main Board of
the Johannesburg Stock Exchange limited (JSE) and the regulated market of the Bucharest Stock
Exchange (BVB) and Rockcastle Global Real Estate Company Limited (Rockcastle), a property
investment company established in Mauritius and listed on the JSE and the Stock Exchange of
Mauritius (SEM), announced the conclusion of a framework agreement (Framework Agreement),
pursuant to which their respective businesses would be merged into NRP. The merger of New NEPI
and Rocltcastle was successfully concluded with effect from 11 July 2017. The new holding
company, NEPI Rockcastle pIc, acquired the businesses of NEPI and Rockcastle (including all
properties and listed shares portfolios) thereby becoming the largest listed real estate player in
Central and Eastern Europe (CRE) and one of the top ten listed real estate companies in
Continental Europe by market capitalisation.

The Company has the role of an active intermediary holding company for NRP group and its
primary activities are acquiring, financing, holding and managing of group companies, most of
which are developing, operating and managing shopping centers and offices. The company has four
employees at its Amsterdam office that carry out day-to-day investment management activities and
provide management, finance and treasury services to group companies.

The Group's consolidated financial statements and the Company's separate financial statements are
collectively referred to as the Financial Statements. These financial statements were authorised fur
issue in accordance with the Board of Directors' resolution on 27 April 2018.

2. COMPARATIVE PERIOD

The comparative period is the year ended 31 December 2016.
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3. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as endorsed oy European Union (IFRS). The accounting policies set out below have been
consistently applied to all periods presented unless otherwise stated.

3.1. Functional and presentation currency
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Euro (C, EUR) thousands unless otherwise
stated, which is the Company's functional and presentation currency.
The functional currency is determined by the relevant, primary economic environment of each
entity. One determining factor is the currency in which the majority of cash flows, goods and
services are denominated and settled in the respective country. When the functional currency
cannot be clearly identified, International Accounting Standard (lAS) 21 allows management to use
judgement to determine the functional currency that most faithfully represents the economic
effects of the underlying transactions, events and conditions. Any change in the functional currency
must be made prospectively in accordance with lAS 21.

3.2. Basi8ofpreparation
The consolidated financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis, except for
investment property in use, land for investment property under development, financial investments
at fair value through profit or loss, interest rate derivatives and financial assets and liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss, which are measured at fair value.

Management prepared these financial statements on a going concern basis. There are no
uncertainties relating to events and conditions that cast a significant doubt upon the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts
of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. Estimates and associated assumptions, are based on
experience and other factors believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, and enable
judgements to be made about the carrying values of assets and liabilities not readily apparent from
other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period when the estimate is revised and future periods if applicable.

3.3. Statementof compliance
The financial statements have been consistently prepared in accordance with IFRS and its
interpretations adopted by European Union (EU).
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3.4- Basis of consolidation

Subsidiaries
The financial statements incorporate the assets, liabilities, operating results and cash flows of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

Subsidiaries are all entities, including those that are structured, over which the Group has control.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over it.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date control ceases. The acquisition method is used to account for the
acquisition of subsidiaries. Identifiable acquired assets and liabilities, and contingent liabilities,
assumed in a business combination are measured at their fair values on the date of acquisition. The
consideration transferred for the acquired entity is measured at the fair value of the assets given up,
equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred, or assumed, Including fair value of assets or
liabilities from contingent consideration arrangements, but excluding acquisition related costs,
such 88 advisory, legal, valuation and similar professional services.

The accounting policies of the subsidiaries are consistent with those of the Company.
In the Company's separate financial statements, investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
accumulated impairment losses.

Transactions eliminated on consolidation
Intra-group balances and any unrealised gains and losses arising from intra-group transactions are
eliminated when preparing the consolidated financial statements.

Jomtly controlled entities
The Group has contractual arrangements with other parties that represent joint-ventures. These
take the form of agreements to jointly control other entities.

The Group accounts for its investments in joint-ventures using the equity method. Under the equity
method, the initial recognition of an investment in a joint-venture is at cost: the carrying amount is
subsequently increased or decreased to recognise the Group's share of profit or loss of the joint-
venture. Distributions received from a joint-venture reduce the carrying amount of the investment.
The Group classifies its investment in joint-ventures as a non-current asset, and recognises its
share of the joint-ventures' net result in the Statement of comprehensive income.

9



3.5. InvCliJtJnentproperty in use
Investment properties are held to eam rental income, capital appreciation or both.
The COBt of investment property acquired by any other means than a business combination consists
of the purchase price and directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent expenditure relating to
investment property is capitalised when future economic benefits from the use of the asset are
probable and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other subsequent expenditure is
recognised as an expense during the period it is incurred.

After initial recognition, investment properties in use are measured at fair value. Fair value is
detennined semi-annually by external, independent professional valuers, with appropriate and
recognised qualifications and recent experience in the location and category of property being
valued. Valuations are based on the open market value, using either the discounted cash flow
method, the capitalisation of net income method or a combination of both. Gains or losses arising
from changes in the fair values are included in the Statement of comprehensive income for the
period during which they arise.

Gains or losses on disposal of investment property are calculated as proceeds less carrying amount.
Where the Group disposes of an investment property in use, the carrying value, immediately prior
to the sale, is adjusted to the transaction price. The adjustment is recorded in the Statement of
comprehensive income for the year within fair value adjustments of investment property.

3.6. Investment property under development
Property that is being constructed or developed for future use as investment property is classified
as investment property under development and carried at cost until construction or development is
complete, or its fair value can be reliably determined.

The land on which investment property is constructed or developed is carried at fair value, which is
determined semi-annually by external, independent professional valuers, with appropriate and
recognised qualliications and recent experience in the iocation and category of property being
valued. Valuations are done using the market comparable approach or residual approach.
Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values are included in the Statement of
comprehensive income during the period when they arise.
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3.7. Investment property held for sale
Investment property is classified as an asset held for sale if the majority of its carrying amount will
be recovered through a sale transaction rather than continuing use. For this to apply, the property
must be available for immediate sale in its present condition, subject only to terms that are usual
and customary for sales of such property and its sale must be highly probable. The sale will be
considered bighly probable if the following criteria are met:

- the Board must be committed to a plan to sell the property and an active programme to locate a
buyer and complete the sale must be initiated;

- the property must be actively marketed at a price that is reasonable in relation to its current fair
value, and

- the sale of property should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one
year of the date of classification.

On classification 8S held for sale, investment property that is measured at fair value continues to be
so measured.

3.8. Goodwill
Goodwill arises on acquisition of subsidiaries that constitute a business. Goodwill represents the
amount paid in excess of the Group's interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the acquired entity. When the excess is negative {bargain purchase} it is recognised
directly in the Statement of comprehensive income.

Subsequent measurement
Goodwill is not amortised, but is tested for impairment at least annually.
After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost, less any accumulated impairment losses. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the date of
acquisition, allocated to each ofthe Group's cash generating units (CGU) that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of
the acquired entity are assigned to those units.

The cash generating units are defined at the level of each individual property acquired through
business combinations. The carrying amount of the cash generating unit includes the investment
property, goodwill and the related deferred tax liability. Impairment testing is performed using the
fair value less costs to sell approach where the fair value is the property value as determined in the
external valuation reports. If this method results in impairment, then management compares the
carrying amount of the CGU containing goodwill with its value in use to detennine if this method
generates a more favourable result

The fair value disclosures presented in Note 9 Investment property in use are also relevant (or
goodwill impairment testing.
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3.9. Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are initially recognised at acquisition cost,
carried at acquisition cost less accumulated depreciation or amortization and accumulated
impairment losses. and tested for impairment when indicators exist.

For property, plant and equipment the costs of minor repairs and maintenance are expensed when
incurred while gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the
carrying amount. Both are recognised in the Statement of comprehensive income for the year.
The cost of computer licences and property, plant and equipment is depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the length of their useful lives:

Usefulllyes in years

Computer licences

Office improvements

Office equipment

Equipment used in owner-managed activities

1-3

over the term of the underlying lease

2-16

3-22

3.10. Borrowings (bonds and bank loans)
Borrowings are recognised initially at the fair value of the liability (determined using the prevailing
market rate of interest if significantly different from the transaction price) and net of transaction
costs incurred. In subsequent periods, borrowings are stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. Any difference between the fair value of the borrowing at initial recognition and
the proceeds received is recognised in accordance with the substance of the transaction: to equity, if
the premium or discount at initial recognition effectively represents a capital transaction with the
Group's owners, or in the Statement of comprehensive income, within finance activity.

Foreign currency translation differences are recognised as foreign exchange differences within
finance income or finance costs.
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, such as properties developed for future sale, capital appreciation or rental
income, are capitalised as part of the cost of these assets. The capitalisation of borrowing costs
ceases when the majority of the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended
use or sale are complete.
Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.
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The Group derecognises its financial liability (or part of a financial liability) from its Statement of
financial position when, and only when, it is extinguished. This occurs when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. An exchange between the Group and a
lender of debt instruments with substantially different terms is accounted for as an extinguishment
of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, a
substantial modification of the terms of an existing financial liability, or a part of it, is accounted fur
as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial
liability.

If the Group repurchases a part of a financial liability, it allocates the previous carrying amount of
the financial liability between the part that continues to be recognised and the part that is
derecognised based on the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the repurchase. The
difference between the canying amount allocated to the part derecognised and the consideration
paid for the part derecognised, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is
recognised in the Statement of comprehensive income.

3.U Tenant security deposits
Tenant security deposits represent financia1 advances made by lessees as guarantees during the
lease and arc repayable/settled by the Group upon termination of contracts. Tenant security
deposits are recognised at nominal value.

3.12 Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity. Financial instruments are initially recognized when
the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument and include trade and
other receivables, trade and other payables, derivative financial instruments, loans granted to joint
ventures and loans granted by the Company to its subsidiaries. The Group enters into a variety of
derivative financial instruments to gain exposure mainly to property securities, via equity swaps
and hedge its interest rate risk arising from financing activities, via interest rate swaps or caps.
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract Is entered into and
subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value is
positive and as liabilities when the fair value is negative, with the resulting gain or loss recognised
in profit or loss immediately. The fair value of derivatives is the estimated amount that the group
would receive or pay to tenninate the derivative at the reporting date, taking into account factors
such as current interest rates, exchange rates and fundamentals of the underlying asset.
Derivatives are classified as current or non-current on the basis of their maturity date.
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3.12.1 Initial recognition and subsequent measurement
Financial instruments are initially measured at fair value, which include directly attnbutable
transaction costs. In the case of financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss, however,
transaction costs are recognised directly in profit or loss. Subsequent to initial recognition, financial
instruments are measured as follows:

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT MEASUREMENT METHOD

Carried at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method, net of impairment losses. Losses are charged to the

Loans granted to subsidiaries (presented only Statement of Comprehensive Income: Impairment of loans
in the Company's financial statements) granted to subsidiaries line-------------------------

Carried at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method, net of impairment losses. Losses are charged to the
Statement of Comprehensive Income: Impairment of loans
granted to joint ventures lineLoans granted to joint ventures

Trade and other receivables

Carried at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method, net of impairment losses. Losses are charged to the
Statement of Comprehensive Income

Trade and other payables
Carried at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method

Bonds, bank loans and other financial
liabilities

Measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method

Financial assets/financial liabilities through
profit or loss

carried at fair value with changes therein recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income, Fair value and net result
of financial investments at fair value through profit or loss

Carried at fair value with changes therein recognised in the
Interest rate derivatives financial Statement of Comprehensive Income,
assets/liabilities at fair value through profit or Changes in fair value adjustment of Interest rate derivatives
loss financial assets and liabilities; hedge accounting is not applied
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Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:

The use of quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments (for financial
assets/liabilities at fair value through profit or loss);
Discounted cash flow analysis (for the remaining financial instruments).

The hierarchy for the fair value of financial assets and liabilities is as follows:

Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
Level 2: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable, and
Level 3: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable.

3.12.2 Derecognition

Financial assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is derecognised when:

the contractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
the Group or Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and
either has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the asset.

Flnanclalliabilitics
A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. Where an existing liability ts replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition
of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
Statement of comprehensive income.



3.12.3 OffiJet
Financial assets and financialliabiIities are offset and the net amount reported in the Statement of
financial position when the Group and/or Company has a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise tbe asset and settle the-
liability simultaneously.

3.13 Impairment of financial assets
A financial asset not carried at fair value through profit or loss is assessed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is objective evidence that it is impaired. A financial asset is impaired if
objective evidence indicates that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset
and that the loss event had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset that can
be estimated reliably.

The Group considers evidence of impairment for receivables at a specific asset level.
All receivables are individually assessed for impairment.
If in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor's credit rating), tbe previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
by adjusting the allowance account through the Statement of comprehensive income for the year.
Uncollectable assets are written-off against the related impairment loss provision after all the
necessary procedures to recover the asset have been completed and the amount of the loss has been
determined. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written-ofJ are credited to the
impairment loss account within the Statement of comprehensive income for the year.

3.14 Cash and cash equivalentll
Cash and cash equivalents include cash balances and cash deposits. Cash and cash equivalents are
carried at amortised mat.

3.15 Share capital and IIharepremium
Share capital is fonned of capital accounts (reserves) for each shareholder of the Company (called
"members"), as required for an entity having the legal form of Cooperative. A member's capital
account is the balance of: payments made pursuant to a contribution agreement, additional
payments made pursuant to a resolution of tbe members for a capital increase, acquisition or
transfer of all or part of the balance of the capital account of another member, withdrawals from the
capital account.
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3.16 Accumulated profit
The balance on the Statement of comprehensive income is transferred to accumulated profit at the
end of each financial period. Distribution paid in cash are deducted from accumulated profit.

3.17 ]»rovisions
Provisions for liabilities are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events, when it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. The amount recognised as a provision is
the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the reporting date. Where
the effect of the time value of money is material the amount of the provision is the present value of
the expenditure expected to be required to settle the obligation.

Provisions are reassessed at each reporting date, and are included in the financial statements at
their net present values using discount rates appropriate to the Group in the economic environment
at each reporting date.

3.18 Revenue
Revenue is recognised when it can be reliably measured and it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group/Company. Revenue is recognised at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Revenue comprises rental and related income and recovery of
expenses, excluding VAT.

Rental income
Rental income receivable from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the
duration of the lease, except for contingent rental income which is recognised when it arises.

Service charges and expenses recoverable from tenants
Income arising from expenses recharged to tenants is recognised on an accrual basis.
As specified in the lease agreements, the Group has the primary responsibility for providing
services to tenants (electricity, water and gas utilities, interior and exterior cleaning, security,
maintenance, repairs, etc). The Group negotiates directly with the suppliers all contracts for
services provided to tenants. These contracts are concluded between the Group subsidiaries which
own the properties and the direct supplier. As the Group sometimes uses the same providers for
services across most of its portfolio, it can negotiate better prices through the economies of scale.
The Group bears the responsibility of meeting the contractual deadlines agreed in the contracts
with its suppliers and is liable for payment of the services, regardless of whether they arc able to
recover these charges from the tenants. The Group also bears the inventory risk for the necessary
spare parts purchased for the maintenance and repairs required by the tenants. The Group bears
the credit risk for the amounts receivable from tenants. The Group negotiates and pays an expenses
incurred by the tenants and then re-invoices these costs to them as defined in the contractual
clauses included in the lease agreements. A flat fee is charged monthly during the year. This fee is
estimated based on the previous year's actual costs.
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After the year-end. the annual service charge reconciliation is performed based on actual costs. For
contracts terminated during the year, the Group estimates the service charge to be collected based
on the current budget and last year's actual costs. The Group therefore bears the risk of not
collecting the service charge differences for non-performing tenants. The Group is considered
principal in these transactions. in terms of the lAS 18 requirements.

3.19 Property operating and administrative expenses
Property operating expenses and administrative expenses are recognised on an accrual basis.

3.20 Operating Ieases
Where the Group is a lessee in a lease which does not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership from the lessor to the Group. the total lease payments are charged
to the Statement of comprehensive income for the year on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
The lease term is the non-canceJlable period for which the lessee has contracted to lease the asset
together with any further terms for which the lessee has the option to continue to lease the asset,
with or without further payment. when at the inception of the lease it is reasonably certain that the
lessee will exercise the option.

3.21 Dividend distributed
A distribution is recorded as a liability and deducted from equity in the period in which it is
declared and approved.

3.22 Taxation
Taxation on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Current income tax
and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from. or paid to. taxation
authorities. Tne tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted, or
substantively enacted. by the reporting date. Current income tax relating to items recognised
directly in equity is recognised directly in equity and not in the Statement of comprehensive
income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations
inwhich applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where
appropriate.

Deferred tax is determined using the liability method and is based on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting pwposes and their tax

bases. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities. using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the date of the Statement of financial position. which are expected to apply to the period
when the temporary differences will reverse or the tax loss carried forward will be utilised.
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The following temporary differences are not provided for: goodwill not deductible for tax purposes;
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit, and
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries that are unlikely to reverse in the foreseeable
future.
A deferred tax asset is recognised based on the assumption that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which it can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.
The current tax expense incurred by the Group reflects tax accrued in the subsidiaries of the Group
located in Romania, Bulgaria, Croatia, Czech Republic, Slovakia, Serbia and The Netherlands.
Output Value Added Tax (VAT) related to sales is payable to tax authorities on either the collection
of receivables from customers or the delivery of services to customers depending on which occurs
first. Input VAT is generally recoverable against output VAT upon receipt of the invoice. The tax
authorities in individual countries permit the settlement of VAT on a net basis. VAT relating to
sales and purchases is recognised in the Statement of financial position on a net basis and is
disclosed separately as an asset or liability, as the case may be. Where provision has been made for
impairment of receivables, the loss is recorded for the gross amount of the debt, including VAT.

3.23 Segment reporting
Management decisions and consequent allocation of resources are based on individual property
level reports, which are analysed in detail. Management has a hands-on approach and is involved in
day-to-day activities. Regular management meetings are held at least monthly for each property,
where the top management of the Group and each property manager analyse the financial results,
decide whether any repairs or improvements are necessary, review rent collection issues and
allocate resources to resolve any delays with tenants and review maintenance plans, vacancies and
the status of any contract negotiations, as well as other operational matters. The results of these
discussions ensure management decisions are specific to each of the properties. The Segmental
Reporting swnmarises the results recorded by the properties held by the Group. The properties can
be classified as retail, office or industrial properties, depending on industry practice.

The Group's Chief Operating Decision Makers (CODM) are the executive directors and they take
decisions based on detailed reports. These are prepared regularly and are presented to the Board of
Directors, which approves the results and gives guidance on the subsequent strategy to be
undertaken.

Segment results, assets and liabilities include items directly attributable to a segment, as well as
those that can be allocated there on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items comprise mainly
investments (other than investment property) and related revenue, corporate assets and head office
expenses. Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the period to acquire
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets other than goodwill.

Financial information in respect of investment property is provided to the Board of Directors: net
rentals (including gross rent and property expenses) and valuation gains and losses. Individual
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properties are aggregated into segments with similar economic characteristics.

Consequently, the Group is considered to have four reportable operating segments:

Retail segment: acquires, develops and leases retail properties in Romania, Slovakia, Bulgaria,
Czech Republic, Serbia and Croatia;
Office segment: acquires, develops and leases office properties in Romania, Bulgaria and
Slovakia;
Industrial segment: acquires, develops and leases industrial facilities in Romania, and
Corporate segment: head office, administrative offices, and Group financing expenses.

The properties have been aggregated into four reportable segments (retail, office, industrial and
corporate) as each of these segments have specific revenue streams, different operational reporting
cycles across the Group's portfolio, separate operational teams including technical, leasing,
property and facility management.
The Group also reports by geographic segments, currently Romania, Serbia, Slovakia, Bulgaria,
Czech Republic, Croatia and a "Holding" segment which includes The Netherlands.

3.24. Investment property acquisitions and business combinations
For each acquisition, management considers ifa business exists, more specifically if inputs,
significant processes and outputs exist. The inputs are represented by the properties. The outputs
are the leases from which rental income is generated. In terms of processes, management considers
if they exist and if they are substantive. Processes such as lease management, selection of tenants,
marketing decisions, investment decisions, are seen as substantive processes that are indicative of
the fact that a business combination exists. In assessing whether a transaction is a business
combination, management looks at what has been acquired, rather than the Group's subsequent
intentions. A transaction is still accounted for as a business combination, even If the Group is
interested mostly in the assets that exist within the business acquired, whereas the processes and
management within the business are disregarded or integrated within the existing structure.

For acquisitions or business combinations, the fair value of the net assets acquired is compared to
the consideration transferred. If the fair value of net assets acquired is lower, the difference is
recorded as goodwill. If the consideration is lower, the difference is recognised directly in the
income statement.

If an acquisition does not qualify as a business combination, the purchase price is allocated to the
individual assets and liabilities. Goodwill or deferred taxes are not recognised.
Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method The acquisition is
recognised at the aggregate amount of the consideration transferred, measured at fair value on the
date of acquisition and the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity.
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For each business combination, the acquirer measures the non-controlling interest in the acquired
entity either at fair value or as a proportionate share of their identifiable net assets. Transaction
costs incurred are expensed.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for
appropriate classification and designation, in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions on the date of acquisition.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer win be recognised at fair value on
the date of acquisition. Subsequent changes to the fair value of any contingent consideration
classified as a liability will be recognised in the Statement of comprehensive income. Acquisition
accounting is fmalised when the Group has gathered all the necessary information, which must
occur within 12 months of the acquisition date. There are no exemptions from the iz-month rule for
deferred tax assets or changes in the contingent consideration.

Transactions with non-controlling interests, where control is maintained, are accounted for as
transactions within equity. Any difference between the amount of the adjustment to non-
controlling interests and any consideration paid or received is recognised in the accumulated profit
reserve.

3.25. Changes in accounting policy and disclosUl"cs

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except for
the following standards and amendments which have been applied by the Group for the first time
for the reporting period commencing 1 January 2017.

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses - Amendments to lAS 12, and

Disclosure initiative - amendments to lAS 7.

The adoption of these amendments did not have any impact on the current period or any prior
period and is not likely to affect future periods.

The amendments to lAS 7 require disclosure of changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities, see note 17.

21



3.26 Standards issued but not yet effective and not early adopted

IFRS 9 Financlallnstruments (Issued in July 2014 and effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1January 2018)

Financial assets are required to be classified into three measurement categories: those to be
measured subsequently at amortised cost, those to be measured subsequently at fair value through
other comprehensive income (FVOCI) and those to be measured subsequently at fair value through
profit or loss (FVPL). Classification for debt instruments is driven by the entity's business model for
managing the financial assets and whether the contractual cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest {SPPO. If a debt instrument is held to collect, it may be carried at amortised
cost ifit also meets the SPPI requirement. Debt instruments that meet the SPPI requirement that
are held in a portfolio where an entity both holds to collect assets' cash flows and sells assets may be
classified as FVOCI.Financial assets that do not contain cash flows that are SPPI must be measured
at FVPL(for example, derivatives). Embedded derivatives are no longer separated from financial
assets but will be included in assessing the SPPI condition. Investments in equity instruments are
always measured at fair value. However, management can make an irrevocable election to present
changes in fair value in other comprehensive income, provided the instrument is not held for
trading. If the equity instrument is held for trading, changes in fair value are presented in profit or
loss. Most of the requirements in lAS 39 for classification and measurement of financial liabilities
were carried forward unchanged to IFRS 9. The key change is that an entity will be required to
present the effects of changes in own credit risk of financial liabilities designated at fair value
through profit or loss in other comprehensive income. IFRS 9 introduces a new model for the
recognition of impairment losses - the expected credit losses (EeL) model. There is a 'three stage'
approach which is based on the change incredit quality of financial assets since initial recognition.
In practice, the new rules mean that entities will have to record an immediate loss equal to the 12-

month ECLon initial recognition of financial assets that are not credit impaired (or lifetime EeL for
trade receivables). Where there has been a significant increase in credit risk, impairment is
measured using lifetime ECL rather than tz-month EeL. The model includes operational
simplifications for lease and trade receivables. Hedge accounting requirements were amended to
align accounting more closely with risk management. The standard provides entities with an
accounting policy choice between applying the hedge accounting requirements of IFRS 9 and
continuing to apply IAS 39 to all hedges because the standard currently does not address
accounting for macro hedging.

22



The Group has assessed the impact of the new standard on its financial statements and has
concluded that the impact is immaterial In respect of the Group's specific provisioning for
Accounts Receivable, the impact of the Group having applied IFRS 9 for the purpose of recognising
its tenants provisions, would have created an immaterial additional provision. The group has
additionally assessed that IFRS 9 win have an immaterial impact on the accounting for its financial
instruments and derivatives, as well as for loans to subsidiaries of the Company. The Group has not
adopted !FRS 9 before its mandatory date.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Issued on 28 May 2014 and
effective for the periods beginrrlng on or after 1January 2018)

The new standard introduces the core principle that revenue must be recognised when the goods or
services are transferred to the customer, at the transaction price. Any bundled goods or services
that are distinct must be separately recognised, and any discounts or rebates on the contract price
must generally be allocated to the separate elements. When the consideration varies for any reason,
minimum amounts must be recognised if they are not at significant risk of reversal. Costs incurred
to secure contracts with customers have to be capitalised and amortised over the period when the
benefits of the contract are consumed. The Group has assessed that this change has no significant
impact on the Group's financial position or performance.

IFRS 16 Leases (issued on 13January 2016 and effective for the periods beginning on
or after 1January 2019)

For lessees, it will result in almost all leases being recognised in the Statement of financial position,
as the distinction between operating and finance leases will be removed. Under tile new standard,
an asset (the right to use the leased item) and a financial liability to pay rentals are recognised. The
only exceptions are short-term and low-value leases. The accounting for lessors will not
significantly change. The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1January
2019 and earlier application is permitted. The Group expects IFRS 16 to have an immaterial impact
on its current accounting practices, as the standard is aimed at a change in recognition for lessees
and the accounting for lessors will not significantly change.
There are no other standards and interpretations that are not yet effective and that would be
expected to have an impact on the Group's financial position or performance.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING PSTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Group's management considers thc development, selection and disclosure of the Group's
critical accounting policies and estimates, as well as their application.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other
factors which are considered reasonable under the circumstances. These are used to make
judgements about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
The estimates and associated assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period when the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period or in the period of the revision and future pcriods if the revision affects both.
Judgements that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements and estimates that can cause a significant adjustment to the carrying amount of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year are detailed below.

Valuation of inveabnent properties
Investment property is stated at its fair value based on reports prepared by international valuers as
at 30 June and 31 December each year. Valuations are based principally on discounted cash flow
projections based on reliable estimates of future cash flows, using discount rates that reflect current
market assessments of the uncertainty in the amount and timing of the cash flows. These are
supported by the terms of any existing lease and other contracts and by external evidence such as
current muket rents for similar properties in the same location and condition.
In preparing the valuation reports on the Group's investment property, the external appraisers
excluded distressed sales when considering comparable sales prices. Management reviewed the
appraisers' assumptions relating to the discounted cash flow models used in the valuations, and
confirmed that factors such as the discount rate applied have been appropriately determined
considering the market conditions at the end of the reporting period.
Valuations of the income generating properties are based on cash flow statements, in which the
present value of net operating income during a ten-year period and the residual value of the
property at the end of the period are calcu1ated.
Forecasts of net operating income are based on leases signed at the time of the valuation date, the
estimated rental values for existing leases when they expire and the estimated achievable rental
values of the existing vacancies. The value of long-term vacancies is estimated based on the
properties' location and condition. The valuers' assessments of non-recoverable expenses are based
on their experience of comparable properties and historical costs provided by the Group.
The discount rates used are nominal returns on total capital before tax and vary between 5% and 11.

5% (2016: 8~ and 11.75%). The required rates ofretum are based on assessments of the market's
required returns for similar properties. The discount rate is set individually for each property and is
based on the condition and location, the stability of the tenant and lease length.
Further information relating to sensitivity of significant accounting estimates used in the valuation
of investment properties is presented in Note 9.
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Business combinations or asset acquisitions
The Group assesses for each property or entity acquired whether the transaction represents a
business combination or an 8S8et acquisition, taking into consideration the existence and level of
inputs, processes aad outputs in the respective property or entity. Additional information relating
to the basis for this assessment is described in Note 3.24-

5. INVESTMENI'IN SUBSIDIAIUES AND JOINT VENTURES

The Company has direct investments and indirect holdings in other Group companies that were
included in the consolidated financial statements, presented in note 33.

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENTAND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group has exposure to the following risks due to its use of financial instruments: credit,
liquidity, and market, including currency and interest rate. This note presents information about
the Group's exposure to each, as well as its objectives, policies and processes for measuring and
managing risk.
The Group's policies are established to identify and analyse the risks it may encounter by
performing its activities, to set appropriate limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence
to limits. These policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions
and Group activities.
The fair value of all financial instruments is substantially in line with their carrying amounts as
reflected on the Statement of Financial Position, except for the bonds. The fair value of bonds is not
considered relevant, as the Group does not repurchase its own bonds, and, essentially, its Hability
towards bonds holders does not vary in line with the market price of its listed notes. However, for
reference, as at 31 December 2017, the {4oo,ooo thousand bonds issued in 2015 were trading on
the market at 107% (31 December 2016: 106%) and the C500,OOO thousand bonds issued in 2017
were trading on the market at 94%.

Below is a comparison, by class, of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Group's financial
instruments carried in the financial statements for the financial instruments recognized at cost.

Group Group Group Group
Assetl!il 31 Jls:1Oas:u:z 31 1510 Ilufi 31 Ds:1OaOI:Z 31 D~,"gg!6

Carrying amount Fair value

Intercompany receivable 40,674 40,674 40,674 40,674

Loans granted to joint ventures 25,792 31,015 25,792 31,015

Trade and other receivables 26,470 24,001 26,470 24,001

Cash and cash equivalents 157,018 46,227 157,018 46,227

TOTAL 249,954 141,917 249,954 141,917
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LiMHUis:l(all glbe[ lbu Group Group Group Group
bgnds) 31 Dec 2017 31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2017 31 Dec 2016

Carryingamount Fairvalue

Intercompany borrowings 1,564,399 1,360,140 1,564,399 1,360,140

Bank loans 175,167 2.68,132 174,519 268,132

Trade and other payables 79,633 81,616 79,633 81,616

Tenant deposits 19,518 15,205 19,518 15,205

Other long-term liabilities 1,811 2,198 1,811 2,198

TOTAL 1,840,528 1,727,291 1,839,880 1,727,291

The assets and liabilities included in the above table are carried at amortised cost. Their
carrying values are 8 reasonable approximation of fair value.

6.1 Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a counterparty to a financial instrument fails
to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Group's receivables from
tenants.

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum
exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is set out below.

Group Group
Credit e,ggsure gp financial instruments NDm 31 Dec 2017 31 Dec 2016

Intercompany receivable 11 40,674 40,674

Loans granted to joint ventures 27 25,792 31,015

Trade and other receivables 13 26,470 24,001

Cash and cash equivalents 14 157,018 46,227

Non-current receivable 11 4,208

Interest rate derivatives financial assets at fair value
througb profit or loss 6

TOTAL 254,162 141,923

As at 31 December 2017the marked-to-market value of derivative asset positions is net of a credit
valuation adjustment attributable to derivative counterparty default risk. Changes in counterparty
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credit risk had no material effect on the fair value of the derivatives and other financial instruments
recognised at fair value through profit or loss.
Trade and other receivables relate mainly to the Group's tenants. When monitoring customer credit
risk, customers are grouped according to their credit characteristics, including whether they are an
individual or legal entity, the industry they work in, business size and previous financial difficulties.
The exposure to credit risk is mainly influenced by the tenant's individual characteristics. The
Group's widespread customer base reduces credit risk. The majority of rental income is derived
from type A tenants (large international and national tenants; large listed tenants; government and
major franchisees and companies with assets and/or turnovers exceeding t:200 million), but there
is no concentration of credit risk with respect to trade debtors.

Management has established a credit policy where new customers are analysed individually for
creditworthiness before standard payment terms and conditions are offered. When available the
evaluation includes external ratings.

The Group establishes an allowance for impairment based on its estimate of incurred losses in
respect of trade and other receivables and investments. The allowance's main element is a specific
loss component that relates to individual1y significant exposures. The carrying value of financial
assets approximates their fair value.

Receivables past due but not Impaired

Group Group
31Oeca017 :'11 Dec:2016

16,583 15,882

4,706 4,409

2,816 3,720

428 245

174 93

1,288 351

:u.289 20,291

AlejDeNtnde rec;elyableslpalt due but not impaired

Receivables not due

Under 30 days

30-60 days

60-<)0 days

Over 90 days

TOTAL TENANTS RECEIVABLES (NOTE 13)

Tenant receivables past due were not impaired because part of the amounts were collected after the
balance sheet date or because the Group has received guarantees from tenants (in cash or letters of
guarantee from banks) that are higher than the balance receivable.
The Group assessed its receivables for impairment and concluded that a net amount of C26
thousand was considered unlikely to be recovered in respect of 2017 period revenues, therefore an
allowance for doubtful debts was charged to the Statement of comprehensive income. As at 31
December 2016, an allowance for doubtful debts was charged to the Statement of comprehensive
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income of €1,160 thousand had been reconsidered as likely to be recovered from tenants in respect
of the respective period revenues, therefore a reversal of allowance for doubtful debts was charged
to the Statement of comprehensive income.
Loans granted to joint-ventures are not past due or impaired.
For purposes of cash management the Group has deposit accounts with 8 number of banks. The
arrangements in place result in a favourable mix between flexibility and interest earnings. The
banks' credit ratings, as well as exposure per each bank are constantly monitored. At 31 December
2017,99% of the Group's cash was held with investment grade rated banks (31 December 2016:
9696).

6.2 Uquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations when due.
'The Group's approach to managing this risk ensures, as far as possible, it will always have sufficient
liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under normal and stressed conditions, without incurring
unacceptable losses or risking damage to its reputation. To ensure this occurs. the Group prepares
budgets, cash flow analyses and forecasts, which enables the management to assess the level of
financing required for future periods. Budgets and projections are used to assess any future
potential investments and are compared to existing funds held on deposit to evaluate the nature,
and extent of any future funding requirements.
The Group receives rental income on a monthly basis. Typically, the Group ensures it has sufficient
cash on demand to meet expected operational expenses. This excludes the potential impact of
extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably be predicted, such as natural disasters.

As at year-end, the Group had undrawn amounts of £380,000 thousand from the unsecured
revolving credit facilities. Further reference to bank loan maturity analysis is made in Note 17.
The table below presents undiscounted cash flows for bonds and bank loans, computed at the
contractual rates as at 31 December 2017.

Wider 3-12

GrouD :nDe~ gUll li21e 3mDDtbi m~mlba l-SXears 2Br5~1l:I :raw
Bonds and bank loans 17 20,952 24.797 642,815 506,203 1,194,767

Intercompany borrowings 17 1,564.399 1,564,399

Trade and other payabtes 18 15,927 63,706 79,633

Other long-term liabilities 19 .. 1,811 1,811

TOTAL 36,879 88,503 2,207,214 508,014 2,840,610
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under 3-12

Gr2YD 31~~~201§ N.o.1§ alW!nlhl months 1-5:Y:~1 over 5 1:1:1[1 :ImBl
Bonds and bank loans 17 51,967 16,808 611,085 44,574 724.434

Intercompany borrowings 17 25,738 1.334,402 1,360,140

Trade and other payables 18 16,323 65,293 81,616

Other long-term liabilities 19 15,205 15,205

TOTAL 68,290 107,839 1,945,487 59,779 2,181,395

6.3 Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates
or equity prices will affect the Group's fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments. The
objective of market risk management is to manage market risk exposures within acceptable
parameters, while optimising returns. The carrying value of financial assets and liabilities
approximates their fair value.

6.3.1 Currency risk
Group's current assets and liabilities are exposed to foreign currency risk on purchases and
receivables denominated in Romanian leu (RON), Bulgarian Lev (BGN), Serbian dinar (RSD),
Czech crown (CZK)and Croatian kuna (HRK).

Cash inflows received in other currencies than Euro are converted to Euro using the spot ratc
available on the collection date. Most of the contracts with Group tenants are concluded in Euro
and the cash inflows received in local currency are their Euro equivalent at the spot rate on
collection date, therefore limiting the currency risk for the Group.
The amount converted to Euro is the net amount of cash inflow in a foreign currency and the
estimated cash outflow in the same currency. The Group applies this policy to oontrol its exposures
in respect of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than the one cash
inflows are received in.

6.3.2 Interest rate risk
The Group is exposed to interest rate risk on loans, borrowings and cash balances held. Group
policy is to hedge this risk through the use of derivative financial instruments. Group's ultimate
parent company, NR.P, held interest rate swaps and interest rate caps which covered the entire
value of the loans held by the Group, as illustrated in the table below.
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The inter-company borrowings bear no interest rate risk, as they are with fixed interest rate.

Group
3tDec2017

Group
31 Dec 2016

268,132

174,97'6

93,156

Bank loans"

Rate capped

Rate swapped

Sensitivity analysis for interest bearing financial instruments
A change of 100 Basis Points (bps) in interest rates would have increased/Idecreased) equity and
profit for the year as shown below. Calculations are based on the cash and loans and borrowings
balances outstanding at the respective balance sheet dates. Cash and loans and borrowings
balances are subject to change over the year. This analysis assumes that an other variables,
particularly foreign currency rates, remain constant. All sensitivity analysis calculations presented
below are before tax.
Loans and borrowings with swapped interest rates are not affected by market changes in interest
rates.

Profit or loss Profit or loss Equity Equity
Grnul! 31 Du ilSU:Z loobps increase lOobps decrease soobps increase loobps decrease

Loans and borrowings
(variable or capped rate) (1,758) 1,758 (1,758) 1,758

Profit or loss Profit OJ' lotUI Equity Equity
GroYI! 31 Dec aQI~ aoobps increase loobps decrease roobps increase roobps decrease

Loans and borrowings
(variable or capped rate) (1,750) 1,750 (1,750) 1,750

7· INTERNAL CONTIlOLS TO MANAGE RISKS

Management is responsible for the Group's system of internal control and for reviewing its
effectiveness. This system is designed to mitigate rather than eliminate the risk of failure to meet
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable, Dot absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss.
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The key features of the Group's system of internal control include:

Strategic and business planning: the Group produces, and agrees, a business plan each
year, to which the performance of the business is regularly monitored;
Investment appraisal: capital projects, ml\ior contracts and business and property
acquisitions are reviewed in detail and approved by the management;
Financial monitoring: profitability, cash flow and capital expenditure are closely monitored
and key financial information is reported to management regularly, including explanations
of variances between actual and budgeted performance, and
Systems of control procedures and delegated authority: clearly defined guidelines and
approval limits exist for capital and operating expenditure and other key business
transactions and decisions.

8. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objective of the Group's capital management is to ensure it complies with its
quantitative banking covenants and maintains a strong credit rating. No changes were made in the
objectives, policies or processes during the years ended 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016.
Capital is primarily monitored using the gearing ratio, computed as interest bearing debt less cash
divided by investment property and net listed securities, which increased to 27.7% (31 December
2016: 26.6%).

The Group's policy is to maintain a strong capital base of equity so as to maintain investor, creditor
and market confidence and to sustain future business development. Neither the Company, nor its
subsidiaries, are subject to externally imposed capital requirements.
The Group will retain comfortable levels of access to liquidity to finance the Group's development
pipeline and to pursue further investment opportunities.

9· INVESTMENTPROPERlY IN USE

CARRYING VALUE

Group Group
3,~~ggJ.:Z 31~"ag16

2.370,760 1,576,019

461,678 470,100

135,771 164.959

1,291

168,757 158,391

3,136,966 3,370,']60

Movement in inyestment prcmettv at fair value

Carrying va1ue at beginning of year

Additions from business combinations and asset deals (Note 26)

Transferred from Investment property under development (Note 10)

Transferred from investment property held for sale as an effect of
acquisition of non-controlling interest (Note 15)

Fair va1ue adjustments (Note 24)
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Investment property is carried at fair value and is assessed on a semi-annual basis.
All investment property in use is valued by the Income Method. The applied approach is either
discounted cash flow (DCF) or the direct capitalisation methods.

The discounted cash flow method (DCF) uses explicit assumptions regarding the benefits and
liabilities of ownership over the asset's life, including an exit, or terminal, value . .As an accepted
method within the income approach to valuation, the DCF method involves the projection of a
series of cash flows onto a real property interest. To these projected cash flow series, an
appropriate, market-derived discount rate is applied to establish the present value of cash inflows
associated with the real property.

The duration of cash flow, and the specific timing of inflows and outflows, are determined by events
such as rent reviews, lease renewal and related IC83e-up periods, re-Ietting, redevelopment or
refurbishment. The appropriate duration is typically driven by market behaviour. In the case of
investment properties, periodic cash flow is typically estimated as gross income less vacancy, non-
recoverable expenses, collection losses, lease incentives, maintenance costs, agent and commission
fees, and other operating and managemcnt expenses. The series of periodic net cash inflows,
combined with the estimated terminal value anticipated at the end of the projection period, is then
discounted.

The capitalisation method works on the basis of capitalising the passing income for the duration of
the term and the reversionary market rental value into perpetuity. Explicit adjustments are made
for letting voids, empty service charge, letting fees, fit-out contributions and irrecoverable
operating costs. Income is capitalised at an equivalent yield, which is the constant capitalisation
rate applied to all cash flows.

For the year ended 31 December 2017 the Group commissioned independent year-end appraisal
reports on its investment property from Cusbman&Wakefield, Cushman&WakefJeld Affiliate
Partners and Colliers International, and for the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group
commissioned independent year-end appraisal reports on its investment property from
Cushman&Wakefleld. all members of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS). The fair
value of investment property is based on these reports. The Group provides all information
necessary for the valuations and all assets are valued on a semi-annual basis, as at 30 June and 31
December. Detailed tenancy schedules are made available, including information on occupied and
vacant units, unit areas and numbers, lease commencement and expiry dates, break options,
indexation clauses. All properties have been inspected for the 31 December 2017 valuations.
Valuations are prepared in accordance with the R1CS Valuation - Global Standards 2017 (the "Red
Book"). The Group's investment property is classified Level Three on the fair value hierarchy as
defined in IFRS 13.



For all investment properties, their current use equates to the highest and best use. The Group's
Finance department includes a team that reviews the valuations performed by the independent
valuers for financial reporting purposes. This team reports directly to the Chief Financial Officer
(CFO). Discussions of valuation processes and results are held between the CPO, the valuation team
and the independent valuers twice a year.

At each financial year-end the finance department:

verifies all major inputs to the independent valuation report;
assesses property valuation movements when compared to the prior year valuation report;
and
holds discussions with the independent valuer:

As at 31 December 2017, the investment property at fair value portfolio had a vacancy rate of 3% (31
December 2016: ~%).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group's portfolio included retail, office and industrial
properties.

IFRS 13 defines fair value as the price that would be received (or selling an asset or paid for
transferring a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. The Group currently discloses fair values according to a 'fair value hierarchy' (as per IFRS 13)
which categorises the inputs used in valuation techniques into three levels. The hierarchy gives the
highest priority {Levell) to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities and the
lowest priority (Level 3) to unobservable inputs. The fair value hierarchy is explained below:

Levell: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at measurement date:
Level 2: use of B model with inputs (other than quoted prices included within Levell) that
are directly, or indirectly, observable market data, and
Level 3: use of a model with inputs not based on observable data.

The Group's investment property is categorised as Level 3. There were no transfers between
hierarchy levels during the year.

The yield resulted from the market value and passing rent of the portfolio is between 6% and
14.19% (31 December 2016 between 6.16% and 14.88%). The Group's resulting weighted average
net yield was 7'J6 for the entire property portfolio (retail: 6.9%; office: 7.53%: industrial: 11.73%).
For the period ended 31 December 2016, the Group's resulting weighted average net yield was
7.32% for the entire property portfolio Iretail: 7.23%: office: 7.72%; industrial: 11.59%).
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An increase/decrease of 2Sbps to the yield of ~ from above would result in a (:108,123 thousand
decrease/ increase in the Group's property portfolio (2016: yield of 7.32l16, increase of 25bps wou1d
have resulted in a €78,271 thousand decrease).

The significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement categorized within Level 3
of the fair value hierarchy of the Group's property portfolio, together with the impact of significant
movements in these inputs on the fair value measurement, arc detailed below:

Unobservable 11111ut

Estimated rental value

Impact on fair value pfincrease in input

Increase

Discount rate Decrease

Capita1isation rate for terminal va1ue Decrease

Information relating to fair value measurement using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) for
2017 is presented in the table below:

Valuation Estimated rental value Capitalisation rate
Discount rate (%l for terminal value (26)Segment tec:hnigye (yearly amount in '000 C)

Discounted cash flow/
Retail

Office

Capitalisation

Discounted cash flow

196 - 19.859 (10,288·) 7.85 - 11.00 (8.94·)

1,625 - 9,744 (5,916.) 8.00 - 9·50 (9.00·)

504 - 1,316 (910.) 11.00 - 11.50 (11.25·)

6.25 - 9.50 (7.31*)

6.50 - 8.00 (7.50·)

9·00 -10.50 (9.75*)Industrial Discounted cash flow

• AmounB or per«n!oge5 represent weighted auerages

10. INVESTMENT PROPEllTY UNDER DEVELOPMENT

Moyement in Investment property under development
.Bm.il

Group Group
31n~gg~:z 31 Da:a216

144,082 132,606

19,000

132,058 162,867

6,162 (5,672)

(99,111) (164,719)

183,191 144,082

Carrying value at beginning of year

Additions from business combinations

Additions from asset deals and construction in progress

Fair value adjustments (Note 24)

Assets which became operationa1 and were transferred to Investment
property in use (Note 9)

CARRYING VALUE
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Moyement in Inyestment property under development
~
Carrying value at beginning of year

Additions from asset deals and construction in progress

Fair value adjustments (Note 24)

Assets which became operational and were transferred to Investment
property in use (Note 9)

Investment property under development reclassified as held for sale (Note
15)

CARRYING VALUE

Group Group
3JD~,a!U7 3JDe,g~:u6

31,930 24,135

4,853 12,292

(4,246)

(36,660) (240)

(123) (11)

31,930

Land included in Investment property under development is canied at fair value and is assessed on
semi-annual basis. For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group commissioned independent
year-end reports from CushmanBcWakefield, CushmanBcWakefield Affiliate Partners and Colliers
International, based on which the fair value of investment property was adjusted. For the year
ended 31 December 2016, the Group commissioned independent year-end reports from
Cushman&Wakefield, based on which the fair value of investment property was adjusted. Land
included in Investment property under development is classified Level Three on the fair value
hierarchy as defined in IFRS 13.

The vaJuation technique Is sales comparison or residual approach.
The construction works in the investment property under development are held at cost, but their
carrying value is a reasonable approximation of their fair value.

Additions from asset deals include land purchased for development of retail and office projects.
Borrowing costs capitalised h: 2017 amount to C4,1~ thousand (2016: Cs,76S thousand) and were
calculated using an average annual interest rate of 2.2% (2016: 3.7%).

Group Group
Balance of investment IJrQPertyunder development 31 Dec2017 31 Dec 2016

Retail

Office

144.082

31,930

TOTAL 176,012

Information relating to fair value measurement using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) for
2017 is presented in the table below:
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Segment

Retail

Office

Estimated rental value
CCI sqm)

Capitalisation rate for terminal
value

(96)

9-20

17-20

8.00-9·25

7·0 -7·3

11. OTHER LONG-TERM ASSETS

Other long-term assets are classified below:

Intercompany receivable

Non-current receivables

Group Group
3;1.ns:IO alU2 31. Df::10IUU.~

40,674 40,674

4,952 1,744

1,944 801

47,570 43,219

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

TOTAL

12. GOODWll.L

The Group recognised goodwill for the following business acquisitions:

Balance at Balance at Impairment Balance at
Segment 1Jan 2016Additions 31 Dec 2016AdditioD8 of goodwill 31 Dec 2017

Pitesti Retail Park Retail 1,671 1,671 1,671

Floreasca Business Park Office 1,664 1,664 1.664

Internalisation of NEPI
Investment Management Corporate 5.882 5.882 5,882

City Business Centre Office 4.747 4,747 4,747

The Lakeview Office 3,899 3.899 3.899

Aupark Kosice Man Retail 5.189 5.189 5,189

Iris Titan Shopping Center Retail 934 934 .; 934
Forum Usti nad Labem Retail 5,646 5,646 5,646

Shopping City Sibiu Retail 9.850 9,850 9,850

Korzo Shopping Center Retail 2,899 2,899 2,899

Aupark Shopping Center
Piestany Retail 2A97 2.497 2.497

Arena Centar Retail 13,512 13,512 13.512
Paradise Center Retail 9.312 9,312

TOTAL 23,986 34,404 58,390 9,312 - 67,702
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No impairment charge arose as a result of the impairment test. The recoverable amounts of the
CGUs, except for Nepi Investment Management, were based on their fair value less costs of
disposal. The fair values of the properties were assessed based on reports by external valuers. The
external valuations are determined using discounted cash flow (MDCFD) projections based on
significant unobservable inputs. For more information on the unobservable input used in the
external valuation, reference is made to Note 9. The most relevant assumption is the terminal
value capitalisation rate.

Goodwill arising as a result ofinternalisation ofNEPI Investment Management is monitored at
the level of this subsidiary, which employs part of the Group's key management and charges
management fees to property operating companies. The recoverable amount ofthe CGU was
based on its value in use, which requires the use of assumptions. The calculations use cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management covering a five-year period.
Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using the estimated cash flow of year 5.
The discount rate used is 8%.

13· TRADE AND 01HER RECEIVABLES

Group Group
31 Dec 2017 3~Dee2g16

VAT receivable 12,626 16,538

Tenant receivables 21,289 20,291

Other receivables 1,357 1,165

Prepaid property expenses 3.592 2,433

Other prepaid fees 232 112

TOTAL 39,096 40,539
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14· CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Group Group
Details of cash and cash equivalents by currencies 31 Decagll 31.~I: 2~1f!

EUR 118,342 23.573

RON 24,529 18,361

BGN 7.497

HRK 4,679 3,027

CZK 1,389 892

RSD 573 365

usn 9 9

TOTAL 151,018 46,221

Group Group
Details of cash and cash equivalents by type 31 J2j:1: gUl.l 31 D~I:Zlufi

Current accounts 94,388 36,015

Deposits 62,186 10,094

Petty cash and other values 444 118

TOTAL 157,018 46,221

15· INVESTMENT PROPERlY HELD FOR SALE

Group Group
Investment property held for sale 31 Decalu:z 31 DecaS:21f!

Carrying value at beginning of year 15,525 25,255

Additions from investment property under development (Note
10) 123 11

Disposals (4.577) (3,140)

Transferred from investment property held for sale as an effect
of acquisition of non-controlling interest (Note 9) (1,291)

Fair value adjustments (Note 24) (833) (5.310)

CARRYINGVALUE 10,238 15,525



No properties were sold subsequent to the year end, however the Group is engaged in negotiations
and is analysing offers received for the remaining balance, and is committed to disposal of the
properties classified as held for sale.

16. EQUITY

At 31 December 2017, the Company bas converted part of its outstanding debt towards Nepiom Ltd,
in amount of C89,030 thousand, into equity contributions. This has been achieved by way of a four
party assignment agreement between NRP plc, NEPIOM Ltd, NEPI Holdings Ltd (Company's
member) and the Company, whereby the above mentioned amount has been assigned by NEPIOM
Ltd to NEPI Holdings Ltd, the latter becoming the new creditor towards the Company of the said
amount. The resulting loan payable by the Company to NEPI Holdings Ltd has been converted
effective as of 31 December 2017 into a capital contribution on NEPI Holdings Ltd's membership
rights in the Company.

In addition, at 31 December 2017, Company's equity has been increased with an amount of €36,998
thousand as a result of guarantee fee, royalty fee and other management fee payable for the year
2017 conversion to equity contributions. This has been achieved through a three party agreement
between NRP plc, NEPI Holdings Ltd (Company's member) and the Company, whereby the parties
agree that NRP pic waives its right to receive the named fees in exchange of a capital contribution
on its shares inNEPI Holdings Ltd, and NEPI Holdings Ltd considers the amount contributed as a
capital contribution on its membership rights in the Company.

1,. BORROWINGS (BONDS, BANK AND OTHER WANS)

In 2015 NEPI was assigned long-term corporate credit ratings of BaB3 (stable outlook) from
Moody's Investors Service (MMoody's") and BBB- (stable outlook) from Standard & Poor's Rating
Services ("S&P").

Following the merger with Rockkastle, Moody's have revised the outlook on the BaB3 rating from
stable to positive, and Standard and Poor's have upgraded NEPI Rockcastle's rating from BBB- to
BBB, with a stable outlook. The NRP group also obtained a BBB rating with a stable outlook from
Fitch. After a roadshow with European fixed-income investors in November 2017, the Group issued
£500 million of unsecured, 7-year Eurobonds maturing on 23 November 2024, carrying a 1.75"
fixed coupon, with an issue price of 99.051%. The proceeds were used to finance the acquisitions
and developments pipeline. The Group also attracted additional unsecured committed revolving
credit facilities from lNG, Societe Generale and Garanti Bank.
As at year-end, the Group had undrawn amounts of C380,000 thousand from the unsecured
revolving credit facilities.
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The repayment profile for outstanding loans, excluding future interest, is detailed below. In
addition to these loans, the Group has loans and borrowings related to its joint ventures presented
in Note 33.

The debt's average interest rate, including hedging costs, was approximately 2.9!16 during 2017,
down from 3.7% in 2016, due to contracting new debt at lower rates and decreasing the interest
margin on the existing debt As at 31 December 2017, fixed-coupon bonds represented 84% of the
Group's outstanding debt towards non NRP Group lenders, and out of the remaining debt exposed
to EunDor, 100% was hedged with interest rate caps.

The Group has complied with all financial covenants of its borrowing facilities during 2017 and
2016.

Payable in
Interest bearing borrowings less than Payable in Payable

G[snm. 31nfl' i!U2 l)'B !.nAl ~-sBBr.l!lg~[ SBin :ImA!
Fixed coupon

NE Property CooperatiefUA bonds 500,000 500,000

Fixed coupon
NE Property Cooperatief UA bonds 400,000 400,000

Aupark Kosice Mall & Tower Term loan 5,526 88,421 93,947

Aupark ZUina Term loan 2,379 60,323 62,702

Aupark Shopping Center Piestany Term loan 396 18,711 19,107

Accrued interest on loans
and deferred loan costs (224) (363) (S87)

Accrued interest on bonds :;':;,527 13,527

Deferred bond costs (1,623) (4,083) (596) (6,302)

Issue discount on bonds (1,032) (3,379) (1,224) (5,635)

Total 18,949 559,630 498,180 1,076,759
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Payable in
Interest bearing borrowings less than Payable in Payable
G&:s;nm. 31 ~s: gOl.~ ~ .l..XaI 1-5 Veal"8~[ 5 xarl!! l:mal

Fixed coupon
NE Property Cooperatief UA bonds 400,000 400,000

FIXed coupon
NE Property Cooperatief UA bonds 50,000 50,000

Revolving
NE Property Cooperatief UA facility 95,000 95,000

Aupark Kosice Mall & Tower Tenn loan 5,526 93.947 99.473

Aupuk Zilina Tenn loan 1,945 8.483 44.572 55.000

Aupark Shopping Center Piestany Tenn loan 396 19.107 19.503

Accrued interest on loans
and deferred loan costs (328) (516) (844)

Accrued interest on bonds 12,852 12,852

Deferred bond costs (1.288) (3,968) (5,256)

Issue discount on bonds (329) (965) (1,294)

Total 68,774 611,088 44,S711 724,434

Debt reconciliation

This section sets out an ana]ysis of debt and the movements in debt for the period presented.

Bank
In&wI BmlM :rmIJ!

Debt as at 31 December 2016 268,132 456,302 724,434
Cash repayments of principal (103,221) (50,000) (153,221)
Cash proceeds from bank loans or bonds 10,000 500,000 510,000

Cash payments of interest on bank loans or coupon on bonds (3,205) (15,895) (19,100)
Accrued interest or coupon I charge to accrued interest 346 10,872 11,218
Other non-cash items 3,117 311 3,428
Debt as at 31 December 2017 175,169 901,590 1,076,759
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Further details for the Group's loans and bonds are presented below.

Aupuk Zilina - VUBBanka loan
At the acquisition of Aupark Zilina in 2013, the Group took over two investment loans from
Vseobecna Uverova Banka (VUB), which were subsequently renegociated in November 2016 and
further decreased the margin, extending the loan period until December 2022 and increasing the
loan amount to £65,000 thousands.

Security
- General security over the land and building (fair value as at 31 December 2017 of €124,8oo
thousand), current assets, cash inflows from operating activities, accounts and receivables of
Aupark Zilina.

Covenants
- Debt service cover ratio uf minimum 12U96, and
- Loan to value ratio of maximum 709fi.

Aupuk Kosice - Tatra banka, a.s, and Ceskoslovenska obchodna banka, a.s.
In December 2014, the Group acquired Aupark Kosiee Shopping Centre and Aupark Office Tower
Kosice, and inDecember 2015 successfully refinanced the loan facilities from Tatra Banks and
Ceskoslovenska Banka in a total amount of €t05,OOO thousand. The loans mature on 30 September
2020 and are payable in quarterly instalments.

Security
- General security over the land and buildings (total fair value as at 31 December 2017 of €187,350
thousand), current assets, cash inflows from operating activities, accounts and receivables of
Aupark Kosice Shopping Centre and Aupark Office Tower Kosice
Covenants

- Debt service cover ratio of minimum 12096, and
- Loan to value of maximum 709fi for 2016, and 6596 thereafter.

Aupuk Pidfany, spoI. Ii r.o. and Aupark Pieitany SC, s.r.o. - KomerbU banka, a. s.
In September 2016, the Group acquired Aupark Shopping Center PieMany and took over the debt
agreement from Komeren! banka, a. s. with an outstanding amount of €19,107 thousand, which
matures inMarch 2021.

Security
- General security over the land and building (fair value as at 31 December 2017 of (41,000
thousand), current assets, cash inflows from operating activities, accounts and receivables of
Aupark PieSt'any, spol. s r.o. and Aupark PieMany SC, s.r.o.
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Covenants
- Debt service cover ratio of minimum 150%, and
- Loan to value ratio of maximum 61%.

NE Property Cooperatief (fixed coupon bonds)
In 2015, the Group successfully issued 400,000 thousand of unsecured, 5.25 year Eurobonds. The
bonds mature on 26 February 2021 and carry a 3.750% fixed coupon, with an issue price of
99·597%.

Covenants
- Solvency Ratio (Debt/Assets) of maximum 0.60,
- Consolidated Coverage Ratio of minimum 2:1, and
- Unsecured Consolidated Total Assets of minimum 180% of Unsecured Consolidated Total
Indebtedness.

NE Property Cooperatief (fixed coupon bonds)
In 2017, the Group successfuUy issued 500,000 thousand of unsecured, 7-year Eurobonds. The
bonds mature on 23 November 2024 and carry a 1.75% fixed coupon, with an issue price of
99.051%.

Covenants
- Solvency Ratio (Debt/Assets) of maximum 0.60,

- Consolidated Coverage Ratio of minimum 2:1, and
- Unsecured Consolidated Total Assets of minimum 150% of Unsecured Consolidated Total
Indebtedness.

NE Property Cooperatief - Raiffeisen Bank International unsecured committed
revolving facility
In 2014, RaiffelSen Bank International underwrote a CSQ,OOO thousand. unsecured committed
revolving facility. In October 2016 the availability was extended until December 2018 and the
facility amount increased to €lao,ooo thousand. The revolving facility was undrawn at
31 December 2017.

Covenants
- Solvency Ratio of maximum 0.60,
- Consolidated Coverage Ratio of minimum 2:1, and
- Unsecured Consolidated Total Assets of minimum 180% of Unsecured Consolidated Total
Indebtedness.
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NE Property Cooperatief - INC unsecured committed revolviD8 facility
In 2017, ING Bank underwrote a ClOO,OOOthousand, unsecured committed revolving facility,
which matured in March 2018. The facility was recently extended for a three year period. At 31

December 2017, the facility was undrawn.

Covenants
- Solvency Ratio of maximum 0.60,

- Consolidated Coverage Ratio of minimum 2:1, and
- Unsecured Consolidated Total Assets of minimum 180% of Unsecured Consolidated Total
Indebtedness. After the extension of the facility in March 2018, the Unsecured Consolidated Total
Assets ratio was changed to 150%.

NE Property Cooperatief - Societe Generale/Garanti unsecured committed revolving
facility
In 2017, Societe Generale and Garanti Bank underwrote a t=150,000 thousand, unsecured
committed revolving facility, which matures in June 2018. At 31 December 2017, the facility was
undrawn.

Covenants
- Solvency Ratio of maximum 0.60,

- Consolidated Coverage Ratio of minimum 2 :1, and
- Unsecured Consolidated Total Assets of minimum 180% of Unsecured Consolidated Total
Indebtedness.

NE Property Cooperatief U.A. - loan fadllty with Neplom limited
The Group concluded a term loan facility with an affiliated company, Nepiom Limited dated
1July 2013 for Csoo,ooo thousand. The faciHty has been increased to C7so,ooo thousand effective
from 31 December 2013 and to C2,OOO,OOOthousand effective from 31 July 2014. respectively,
Interest has been charged at 9% per annum with the outstanding facility and is repayable at 31
December of each subsequent year starting on 31 December 2013. In 2016, the interest rate has
been changed to 7.80% effective from 1October 2016. The final maturity date of the facility is
31 December 2020. Carrying amount of the loan from Nepiom limited approximates the fair value
of the loan.
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The repayment profile of the Group's outstanding intercompany loans is set out in the table below:

Intercompany
borrowings
Group. 31 Dec: !lOlZ

Payable in less Payable in Payable
Type than I year 1-5 yelt!!! oyer 5 yem Total

Neniorn Limited Terrn)oan

Intercompany
borrowings Payable in less Payable in Payable
~OUR,32. U~S;25!1§ :D:i!1l than lY~lr l-lliYSm QBI:5vears I~
Nepiom Limited Tennloan 25,738 t.334.402 1,360,140

At 31 December 2017, the Company has converted part of its outstanding debt towards Nepiom Ltd,
in amount of €89,o30 thousand, into equity contributions. This has been achieved by way of a four
party assignment agreement between NRP plc, NEPIQM Ltd, NEPI Holdings Ltd (Company's
member) and the Company, whereby the above mentioned amount has been assigned by NEPIOM
Ltd to NEPI Holdings Ltd, the latter becoming the new creditor towards the Company of the said
amount. The resulting loan payable by the Company to NEPI Holdings Ltd has been converted
effective as of 31 December 2017 into a capital contribution on NEPI Holdings Ltd's membership
rights in the Company.
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18. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Group Group
31 Dec 2017 31 Decagl~

Advances from tenants 23,922 22,619

Payable for assets under construction 23.575 18,960

Property related payables 22.509 16,371

Deferred consideration on business combinations 5.597 10,214

Accrued administrative expenses 2,685 8,487

Guarantee fee" 4.965

Tenant deposits 1,345 1,342

TOTAL 79,633 82,958

• On 1 October 2016, the Company concluded a service agreement with its ultimate parent, NRP
pIc, which states that the Companywill pay an annual guarantee fee to NRP plc for its role of
guarantor under the external financing agreements concluded by the Company, namely Issued fixed
coupon bonds, revolving facilities and any other secured or un-secured financing arrangements that
the Company can enter into in the future.

At 1October 2016, NRP plc has converted its receivable related to the guarantee fee for financial
years 2015 and 2016(for the period 1January - 30 September) into equity contributions. This has
been achieved through a three party agreement dated 1October 2016, between NEPI plc, NEPI
Holdings Ltd (Company's member) and the Company, whereby the parties agree that NRP pic
waives its right to receive the guarantee fee in exchange of a capital contribution on its shares in
NEPI Holdings Ltd, and NEPI Holdings Ltd considers the amount contributed as a capital
contribution on its membersbip rights in the Company. The payable balance outstanding as at 31
December 2016 in the table above represents the guarantee fee under the new service agreement
concluded on 1October 2016 (for the period 1October - 31 December 2016). For the purpose of the
cash flow statement, this transaction is a non-cash transaction.

At 31 December 2017,Company's equity has been increased with an amount of €36,998 thousand
as a result of guarantee fee, royalty fee and other management fee payable to NRP pIc conversion to
equity contributions. This has been achieved through a three party agreement between NRP pIc,
NEPI Holdings Ud (Company's member) and the Company, whereby the parties agree that NRP
plc waives its right to receive the named fees in exchange of a capital contribution on its shares in
NEPI Holdings Ltd, and NEPI Holdings Ltd considers the amount contributed as a capital
contribution on its membership rights in the Company.



19· OTHER WNG-TERM UABILITIES

Group Group
31 Dec 2017 3& Us:s: iiUUJI

Tenant deposits 19.570 15,205

Provisions 1,759 2,198

TOTAL 21,329 17,403

20. CURRENT AND DEFERRED INCOME TAX

Group Group
:u 1l1:I: aSu.:z 31 ns:I: asu.6

Current tax expense 2,646 1,664

Deferred tax expense 51,858 34,808

TAX EXPENSE 54,504 36.472

Deferred tax brought forward 158,864 89,652

Deferred tax expense 51,858 34,808

Deferred tax acquired in business combinations (Note 26) 13,112 34A04

NET DEFERRED TAX LIABILI'lY CARRIED
FORWARD, OUT OF WHICH: 223,834 158,864

DEFERRED TAX ASSET (3,299)

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY 227,133 158,864

Net deferred tax liability results from the following types of differences:

Group Group
31 DI:I: asu.:z 3&Ilt:G asu6

Tax losses 135,006 185,204

Temporary differences between accounting and tax value of
investment property (1.499,756) (l,llO,121)

NET DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY (223,834) (158,864)

47



The Group is liable for taxation on taxable profits in the following jurisdictions at the rates below:

Group Group
Comg[Bl~m"2m~ 1U rates 31 Dee 2017 311!~1:3Dl~

Netherlands 25%1 25%'
Romania 16% 1696
Slovakia 21%' 22%2

Serbia 15" 15%
Czech Republic 19% 1996
Croatia 18% 20%'
Bulgaria 10%

1) This rate applies to taxable profits above €0.2million and a 20% tax rate to lower amounts.
2) As at 1 January 2017, the rate applying to taxable profits in Slovakia has been reduced from

22% to 21%. The reduced tax rate of 21% was considered for computation of deferred tax
balance as of 31 December 2016.

3) As at 1 January 2017. the rate applying to taxable profits in Croatia has been reduced from
20% to 18". The reduced tax rate of 18" was considered for computation of deferred tax
balance as of 31 December 2016.

Reconclllation between applicable and effective tax rate

The reconciliation between the theoretical tax expense and the effective tax expense ids presented
below, separated on reconciliations prepared using the domestic rate in each individual
jurisdiction.

Czech
Romania Slovakia Croatia Republic Bulgaria Serbia Total

Accounting profit 284,870 47.894 20,685 10,759 10,385 5,206 379,799
Tax at the domestic rates applicable
to profits in the country concerned 45.579 10,058 3,723 2,044 1,039 781 63,224
Tax effect of Joint Ventures (3,035) - (3,035)
Tax effect of (non-taxable income)/
expenses that are not deductible for
tax ~!!!E0ses ~518J62 120 11022 ~Z2) ~8al ~221 ~52685)
Tax expense 36.708 10,178 4,745 1,665 956 252 54,504

The reconciliation between the tax expense and the Group's gross accounting profit multiplied by
the Company's income tax rate for the year ended 31 December 2017 and the year ended
31 December 2016 is as follows:



31-DeG-Z017 31-Dec-16

Group profit before taxation
At Company's income tax rate 2596 (2016: 2596)

Effect of other tax rates in foreign jurisdictions:
Tax in Romania
- Corporate income tax
- Deferred tax expense for taxable temporary differences (net)
Tax in Slovakia
- Corporate income tax
- Deferred tax ~nse for taxable temporary differences (net)
Tax in Serbia
- Corporate income tax
- Deferred tax expense for taxable temporary differences (net)
Tax in Czech Republic
- Corporate income tax
- Deferred tax expense for taxable temporary differences (net)
Tax in Croatia
- Corporate income tax
- Deferred tax expense/or taxable temporary differences (net)
Tax in Bulgaria
- Corporate income tax
- Deferred tax expense/or taxable temporary differences (net)
Tax expense reported in the income statement
lUTective tax rate, including dverred tax expense (%)

211,033
(52,758)

99.177
(24,794)

(1.698)
(35.010)

(333)
(8.304)

(252) (1,201)

(440)
(1.225)

(6)
(147)

(912)

(50)
(906)

(54,504)
25·8S'J6

Consolidated statement
ConsoBdated statement of comprehensive

of financial position income

Deferred tax liability (net) 31-Del:-17 31-n~~-16 31-Dee-I:Z 31-Dec-l~

Acquired under business combinations (note 26) (13,124) (34A04)

Recognised unused tax losses 3,953 ~
Deferred tax liability on investment property

valuation (13.124) (38.357)

Valuation of investment property at fair value (232,381) (149,722) (44.314) (26,370)

Recognised unused tax losses 21,671 26,356 (8,638) (7,344)

Corrections (1,094) 1,094 (1,094)

Total (223,834) (158,864) (51,858) (34.808)
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Group subsidiaries are subject to corporate tax OD an annual basis. The Group carries forward
aggregate fiscal losses of (184,237 thousand (31 December 2016: (237,569 thousand), which are
available for up to seven years to offset against any future taxable profits of the companies in which
the losses arose. Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine recognisable deferred tax assets, based on the
likely timing and the level of future taxable profits and future tax planning strategies. Deferred tax
assets have not been reoognised for fiscal losses of C49,231 thousand (31 December 2016: (:52,366
thousand) as these could have been used only to offset the taxable profits of certain companies in
the Group, and there is uncertainty whether these companies will generate taxable profit in the
future. The expiry dates for these losses are as follows:

Group Group
31 DeC2Q17 31 ~~ag;&!!

2017 2,197
2018 408 21
2019 2,601 4,063
2020 4,264 4,317
2021 2,162 1,972
2022 7,891 7,891
2023 8,394 8,394
2024 10,897 10,897
2025 12,614 12,614
Total 49,231 52,366

The deferred tax balance as at 31 December 2017 is the net effect of deferred tax assets resulted
from fiscal losses and deferred tax liabilities resulted from differences between the fiscal base and
the accounting base of assets and liabilities, mainly investment property. Deferred tax liabilities are
not expected to be settled within the following five years from the reporting date.
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21. NET RENTAL AND RELATED INCOME

Group Group
31 Dec 2017 31 De§::uu,6

Rent 191,415 147,454

Service charge recoveries 44,275 32.751

Other recoveries 37.454 29,585

Revenues from rent and recoveries 273,144 209,790

Property management, tax, insurance and utilities (49,926) (38.119)

Property maintenance cost (30,844) (25,395)

Provisions and allowances for doubtful debts (696) (B44)

Property operatinG expen.ea (81,466) (64,358)

TOTAL 191,678 145,432

Where the Group is the lessor, the future minimum lease payments receivable under non-
cancellable operating leases are detailed below.

Group Group
31 Dec 2017 31D~~Z!U6

No later than J year 213,988 171,536

Later than 1year and not later than 5 years 519.934 438.508

Later than 5 years 160,436 294,;'Zl

TOTAL 894.358 904.765

22. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Group Group

31 Dec 2017 31 Dc§:z!u6

Staff costs- (4,954) (5.163)

Audit and advisory services (2,554) (1,815)

Travel and accommodation (15) (164)

Companies administration (3,230) (2,960)

TOTAL (10,753) (10,102)

• Sto,ff costs capitalised as investment property under development in 2017amolUlt to C1,961 thousand
(2016: C2,014 thousand).
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23· ACQUISITION FEES
The Group incurred acquisition fees in respect of the following:

Group Group

3In~~ 21U:! 31 Deeilolufi

Fees for finalised acquisitions (3.869) (2.760)

Fees (or ongoing acquisitions (498) (378)

Fees for terminated acquisitions (563) (296)

TOTAL (4.930) (3,434)

24· PAIR VALUE ADJUSTMENTS OF INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Group Group

3~Uts: alu.:z 3'~~;1U.6
Fair value adjustments of investment property in use (Note 9) 168,757 158.391

Fair value adjustments of investment property under development (Note 10) 6.162 (9.918)

Fair value adjustments of investment property held for sale (Note 15) (833) (5.310)

TOTAL 174,086 143.163

25· NET FINANCE INCOME/(EXPENSE)

Interest income on loans granted

Interest on bank deposits

Interest and penalties on receivables

Finance income

Interest expense on financial liabilities measured at amortised cast

Interest expense capitalised on developments

Interest expense on intercompany borrowings

Other intercompany finance expense-

Bonds borrowing costs··

Bank charges

Finance expense

Group Group
3ADec~SU:Z 31 Dec2,Qlfi

2.520 3.650

16 587

41 13

2,577 4,250

(4.963) (4,187)

4,142 5,765

(U5,871) (119.758)

(20.749) (50.238)

(18,305) (16.737)

(1.591) (645)

(157,337) (185,800)

(154,760) (181,550)TOTAL

• Other intercompany finance cupense represent guarantee fees .
•• Bonds borrowing costs include: coupon, amortisation of bOlTowing oosLSand debt discount.
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26. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND SIGNIFICANT ASSET DEALS

During 2017, the Group continued its expansion within CEE, entering the Bulgarian market. In
some cases, 100% of equity interests were acquired, whereas in others the Group acquired
investment property. For further details see Note 12.

Serdika Center and Office
The Group acquired Serdika Center, a 51,500ma GLA modern shopping centre with a strong tenant
mix, benefiting from an excellent location close to Sofia's city centre and Serdika Office, a Class A
office situated atop the shopping centre, with 28,500m" GLA.
The transaction effective date was 22 August 2017, and the company's fair value of identifiable
assets and liabilities at the acquisition date are detailed below:

Investment property 206,978

Current assets" 2,920

Current liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities

Total identifiable net assets at fair value

Total consideration paid in cash

204.4°1

204.401

·out o/which cash in the subsidiaries acqui,..,d in the transaction amounts to £2,885 thousand

Paradise Center
The Group acquired Paradise Center, the largest modem shopping centre in Sofia with 82,OOOm2

GLA, which consolidated its position in the Bulgarian market.
The transaction effective date was 1 December 2017, and the Company's fair value of identifiable
assets and liabilities at the acquisition date are detailed below:

Investment property

Current assets-

254,700

3,614

(2,824)

(10,659)

244.831

Current liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities

Total identifiable net assets at fair value

Goodwill arising on acquisition

Total consideration payable

Receivable from sellers

9,311

254.142

(1,508)

Total consideration paid in cash

·out o/which cash in the sublidiary acquired in the tnmsaction amounts to £2.994 thousand
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From the effective date of acquisition, the following contributions were made to profit after tax and
to revenues from rent and recoveries:

Profit after tax

Recoveries and contractual rental income

27. JOINTVEN'IVRES

Serdika Center and Office Paradise Center

2,724

1,755

The summarised financial statements ofthe joint ventures are presented below at 100%.

Statement of financial position

31 Dec 2017

Non-current assets

Current assets

TOTAL ASSETS

Non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

Total liabilities

Equity attributable to equity holders

TOTALEQUI1Y AND UABILmES

31 Dec 2016

Non-current assets

Current assets

TOTAL ASSETS

Non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

Total liabilities

Equity attributable to equity holders

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
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Ploiesti The Office
Bh~U!lZiDG ~m C1gl-Nugg, :IDlAl

103,964 122,560 226,524

7,1/6 14,456 22,232

111,740 137,016 248,756

(75,257) (82,287) (157,544)

(3,257) (6,243) (9.500)

(78,514) (88,530) (167,044)

(33,226) (48,486) (81,712)

(111,740) (137,016) (248,756)

Plolesti The Office
Sbgl!12iDI ~ilX ggj-Nlluu:a ImA!

91,837 95,985 187,822

4,406 5,664 10,070

96,243 101,649 197,892

(SO,773) (63,323) (144,096)

(4,111) (5,639) (9,750)

(84,884) (68,962) (153,846)

(11,359) (32,687) (44,046)

(96,243) (101,649) (197,892)



Statement of comprehensive income

Ploiesti The Office
31 Dec 2017 SilDJming CiU ~IUhNImIU31 :rmal
Revenue from rent and recoveries l4.440 10,108 24,548

Property operating expenses (6,981) (1,799) (8,780)

Administrative expenses (21) (71) (92)

Fair value adjustment investment property 11,938 16,750 28,688

Foreign exchange loss (174) (26) (200)

Profit before net finance expense 19,202 24.962 44,164

Net finance expense (4,359) (2,741) (7,100)

Finance income 12 3 15

Finance expense (4.371) (2,744) (7,llS)

Fair value acijustment of interest rate derivatives
financial assets and UablHtles 754 124 878

Profit before income tax 15,597 22,345 37,942

Tax release/Ieharge) (2,538) (3,268) (5,806)

PRO~FORTHEYEARATnUBUTABLETO
EQIDn HOLDERS 13,059 19,077 32,136
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Ploiesti The Office
31 Dec 2016 SWU!IZm& Citv ~lgj-N.llU~i:A 1iWIl

Revenue from rent and recoveries 10,335 6,800 17,135

Property operating expenses (2,965) (1,627) (4.592)

Administrative expenses (75) 167 92

Fair value adjustment investment property 7.528 6,976 14,504

Foreign exchange gain/loss (5) 96 91

Profit before net finance expense 14t818 12.,412 27,230

Net finance expense (6,171) (3,770) (9,941)

Finance income 3 4

Finance expense (6,174) (3,m) (9,945)

Fair value adjustment of interest rate
derivatives financial assets and liabilities (349) (107) (456)

Profit before income tax 8,298 8,535 16,833

Tax release/(charge) (2,285) (1,782) (4,067)

PROFIT FOR mE YEARATl'RIBUTABLE TO
EQUI'IY HOLDERS 6,013 6,753 12,766

Shareholder loans to Ploiesti Shopping City and The Office Cluj-Napoca were granted by the
Com-pany.All shareholder loans are subject to interest at 8% per annum (2016: 8% per annum).
Interest income from joint ventures in 2017 amounted to C2,274 thousand (2016: £3,624
thousand).

Ploiesti The Office
31 Dec 2017 SbalWinl ~ib! ~!W-NIUUU:il 1:m:&l
Long-term loans granted to joint ventures 19,636 6,156 25,792

31 Dec 2016 Plofesti The Office
~hOlmlnc Cia Clyj-NAnoca I2!Al

Long-term loans granted to joint ventures 20,979 10,036 31,015



Ploiesti Shoppjng City - BRD Groupe Societe GeneraJe loan

Ploiesti Shopping City entered into a loan facility agreement for a total amount of €36,s00
thousand from BRD Groupe Societe Generale. The credit facility matures in 2024 and is repayable
in quarterly instalments.

Security
- General security over the property (weighted fair value as at 31 December 2017 ofCSl,005
thousand), current assets, cash inflows from operating activities, accounts and receivables of
Ploiesti Shopping City.

Covenants
- Loan to value ratio of maximum 50%,
- Debt service cover ratio of minimum 120%, and
- Interest coverage ratio of minimum 170%.

The Office, Cluj-Napoca - Raiffeisen Bank loan

In 2014, The Office entered into a credit facility agreement with a total value of ClS,OOO thousand
with Raiffeisen Bank, which was subsequently increased by two additional credit facilities of
C17,000 thousand and CB,500 thousand in 2016, and one additional credit facility at C12,000
thousand in October 2017. The loan matures in June 2022.

Security
- General security over the property (weighted fair value as at 31 December 201 of C61,145
thousand), current assets, cash inflows from operating activities, accounts and receivables of Cluj
Business Centre.

Covenants
- Loan to value ratio of maximum 60%, and
- Debt service cover ratio of minimum 125%.
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28. SEGMENT REPORTING

Reporting segments are retail, office, industrial and corporate, and the Group primarily manages
operations in accordance with this classification.

There are no sales between segments. Segment results, assets and liabilities include items directly
attributable to a segment, as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis.
Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the period to acquire property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets. Segment assets represent investment property. Segment
liabilities represent loans and borrowings, as these are the only liabilities reported on a segmental
basis.

~GID!s:m results 31 DI:f:: asu:z RdBil 2fIW: Industrial Cox:porate l:m.Il
Net rental and related income 163,774 26,102 1,802 191,678

Revenue from rent and recoveries 236,055 35,059 2,030 273,144
Property operating expenses (72,281) (8,957) (228) (81A66)

Administrative expenses (1,474) (992) (17) (8,270) (10,753)
Acquisition fees (4,708) (217) (5) (4,930)
Fair value adjustments of investment
property 161,086 12,541 459 174,086
Foreign exchange gain/(Ioss) (598) (108) (22) (58) (786)
Gain/(Loss) on disposal of investment
property (102) 540 438

Profit before Net finance expense 317,978 37,866 2,217 (8,328) 349,733

~iI:tmlentresults 3! U~ g!Ufi Rmil ~ IDdustrfl!! Coroo[ll~ ThlIl
Net rental and related income 121,2.76 ::.2.,356 ::',800 . 145,432

Revenue from rent and recoveries 177,514 30,263 2,013 209,790
Property operating expenses (56,238) (7.907) (213) - (64,358)

Administrative expenses (5,147) (563) (48) (4,344) (10,102)
Acquisition fees (4,339) 905 (3.434)
Fair value adjustments of investment
property 138,196 5.700 (733) 143,163
Foreign exchange gain/(Ioss) (177) 4 3 (21) (191)
Loss on disposal of investment property
held for sale (140) (345) (485)
Other operating income (16) 15

Profit before Net finance expense 249,653 27,167 2,023 (3,460) 274,383
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~etm1~IU1U!!2~g imsl li!bili!!1:a 3~Uts: gO!7 &lAil 9.ff1.g: IndMllla! Corporate l:mal
SEGMENT ASSETS
Non-current aueta; 3,046,109 436,776 16,234 6,257 3,5°5,376
Investment property 2.911.092 392.831 16.234 3.320,157
-Investment property in use 2.727.901 392.831 16.234 3.136.966
-Investment property under development 183.191 183,191
Goodwill 51.510 10.310 5.882 67.702
Deferred tax assets 3.016 283 3.299
Investments in joint ventures 16,613 24.243 40.856
Long-term loans granted to joint ventures 19,636 6.156 25.792
Other long-term assets 44.242 2,953 375 47.570
Current usets 73,273 15,287 670 106,884 196,114
Trade and other receivables 31.882 5,726 89 1.399 39,096
Cash and cash equivalents 41,391 9,561 581 105.485 157.018
Investment property held for sale l,sa8 8,710 10,238
TOTAL ASSETS 3,120,910 460,7'73 16,904 113,141 3,711,728

SEGMENT LIABIUTIES

Non-current liablltties 373,427 39,954 2,171 2,455,1l9 2,870,671

Intercompany borrowings 1.564,399 1.564.399

Bank loans 157,004 10.086 167,090

Bonds =- 890.720 890.720

Deferred tax liabilities 201,302 25.329 502 227.133

Other long-term liabilities 15,121 4,539 1,669 21,329

CUrrent liabilities 71,260 13,128 405 13,789 98,582

Trade and other payables 63,804 12,507 405 2.9'7 79,633

Bank loans 7.456 621 8,077

Bonds 10,872 10,872

TOTAL LIABILITIES 444,687 53,082 2,5762,468,908 2,969,253
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Segment assets and liabilities 31 Dec 2016 B&mil ~ Industrial ~awut~ ImBl
SEGMENT ASSETS
Non-current assets 2,272,377 366,165 15,715 47,108 2,701,425
Investment property 2,202,742 328,255 15,775 2,546,772
-lnvesbnent property in use 2,058,660 296,325 15,775 2.370,760
-Investment property under development 144,082 31,930 176,012
Goodwin 42,198 10,310 5,882 58,390
Investments in joint ventures 5,679 16,344 22,023
Long-term loans granted to joint ventures 20,979 10,036 31,015
Other long-term assets 776 1,217 41,226 43,219
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 3 3 6

Current usets 63,692 9,S68 468 13,038 86,766
Trade and other receivables 35.457 4,366 80 636 40.539
Casb and cash equivalents 28.235 5,202 388 12,402 46,227
Investment property held for sale 2,375 13,150 ;. 15,525

TOTAL ASSETS 2,338,444 388,883 16,243 60,146 2,803,716

SEGMENT UABII...ITIES
Non-c:urrent liabiUties 304,312 36,279 2,101 1,823,637 2,166,329
Intercompany borrowings 1.334,402 1,334,402
Bank loans 154,886 10,707 ,; 95,000 260,593
Bonds 727 125 5 394,210 395,067

Deferred tax liabilities 1:~6,642 21.769 428 25 158,864

Other long-term liabilities 12,057 3,678 1,668 17.403

Current liabilities 64,715 12,826 418 99,5U 177.470
Trade and other payabJes 57,554 12,205 418 12,781 82.958
Intercompany borrowings 25,738 25,738
Bank loans 7,161 621 (243) 7,539
Bonds 61,235 61,235
TOTAL I.lABWTIES 36~.027 4'1.105 2.51Q 1.QZ3.148 2,343.7~Q
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The Group's geographical breakdowns per country are detailed below.

Net rental and Profit Investment
~YDta Bmlli 3.! lltG ,zQ17 mated iDcgm~ bd2rJ:1U gro:B!D:
Romania 133.259 284,870 1,993,943
Bulgaria 7,297 10,385 476,180
Slovakia 26,633 47,894 405,065
Croatia 15,679 20,685 245,275
Czech Republic 5,497 10,759 87,97°
Serbia 3,313 5,206 111,724
Holding (168,766)
Total 191,678 211,033 3,320,157

Net rental and Profit Investment
~],!ntt!: ~sulta 31 u.:", liuu.fi ldmd iDSlID§ hcfcu:i: 111& lu::wu:m
Romania 113,680 221,898 1,771,863
Slovakia 21,426 48,218 376,301
Croatia 2.599 7.557 239,125
Czech Republic 4,517 4,436 82,725
Serbia 3,210 3,644 76,758
Holding (186,576) -
Total 145,432 99,177 2,546,7'72

*The Holding segment rtp~nts mQ1l(lgement and holding entities in The Netherlands.

29. CONTINGENT ASSETS AND UABIUTIES

Guarantees
Group policy is to provide financial guarantees to subsidiaries to the extent required in the normal
course of business.
Allat 31 December 2017, the Group had received letters of guarantee from tenants worth (49.440
thousand (31 December 2016: €37,671 thousand) and from suppliers worth £14,376 thousand (31
December 2016: €11,212 thousand) related to ongoing developments.

Capital expenditure commitments
Contractual obligations to construct or develop investment properties totaled €6S million at 31
December 2017 (2016: €lo.6 million). The Group believes that future net income and funding
will be sufficient to cover this and any similar such commitments.

Fiscal Unity
NE Property Cooperatief U.A. is part of a fiscal unity for corporate income tax, and is therefore
jointly and severally liable for the tax payable by the fiscal unity as a whole.
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30. RELATED PAR1Y TRANSACTIONS

Identity of related parties with whom material transactions have occurred

The subsidiaries and the Company directors are related parties for the Company. The subsidiaries
of the Company are detailed in Note 32. Other companies from the NRP Group are Nepi Rockcastle
pic, Nepiom limited, Nepi Investments Limited, Nepi Holdings Limited.
Directors' fees were of CIC)6 thousand in the year ended 31 December 2017 and C241 thousand in
the year ended 31 December 2016. No other payments were made to Directors, except (or
reimbursements of travel and accommodation.

Material related party transactions

Other related party transactions are Intercompany borrowings (presented in Note 17, Note 25 and
Note 39), guarantee fee charged by NRP pic to the Company (presented in Note 17, Note 25 and
Note 39 88 "Other intercompany finance expense") and royalty fees charged by NRP pic to the
Company (presented in Note 3a).

Transactions with joint ventures are presented in Note 26.

31. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In March 2018, the Group has extended its revolving credit facility of Cl00 million with lNG, (or an
additional term of three years,

Management is not aware of any other subsequent events from 31 December 2017 and up to the
date of signing these financial statements which are likely to have a material effect on the financial
infonnation oontained in this report, other than as disclosed in the Directors' report.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Ajterprofitapproprianon

Company Company
~ 31 Dec;2017 31 Dec 2016

ASSETS

Non-current assets 8,734,545 2,142,565

Investments in subsidiaries 33 416,576 368,584

Loans granted to subsidiaries 33 2,313,625 1,773,633

Other long-term assets 4.344 348

Current B88ets 166,029 88,701

Trade and other receivables 34 4.379 3,829

Loans granted to subsidiaries 33 570492 72,631

Casb and cash equivalents 35 104.158 12,241

TOTAL ASSETS 8,900,574 2,2,31,266

EQUITY AND UABIUTIES

Equity 418,215 302,247

Share capital 37 508,895 382,866

Accumulated profit (90,680) (80,619)

Total liabilities 2,482,359 1,929,019

Non-current llabilities ~t467,939 l.,Oa4,oo3

Intercompany borrowings 1,576,791 1,334.775

Bank loans 17 95,000

Bonds 17 891,148 394,288

Current liabilities 14.420 104,956

Trade and other payables 36 3,011 15,940

Intercompany borrowings 17 758 26,420

Bank loans 17 (418) (243)

Bonds 17 11,069 62,839

TOTAL EQUI1Y AND UABILITIES 2,900,574 2,231,266
All anwunts in 'ntousand Euro unless otherwise staled

64



STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Company Company
~ 31 Dec 2017 3t Dec 2016

Administrative expenses

Acquisition fees

Other operating income

Loss before net finance expense

Net finance expense

38 (7,843) (5,753)

(1,445) (2.337)

6,622 5,080

(2,666) (3,010)

(',395) (47,213)

157,684 173,653

(6,898) (32,616)

(158,181) (188,250)

(10,061) (50,223)

39

Finance income

Impairment expense

Finance expense

Loss before tax

Income tax expense

Loss after tax (10,061)

(10,061)

(50,323)

(So,aza)Total comprehenBive income for the year
All amounts in Thousand Euro unless otherwise stated



STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Share alDitai ACCUDl!I1ated 108& 7nUl
Balance at 1January 2016 36,389 (30,396) 5,993

Increase in equity contributions 346A77 346A77

Loss for the year (50,223) (50,223)

BALANCEAT
31 DECEMBER.2016 382,866 (80,619) 302,247

Balance at 1January 2017 382,866 (80,619) 302,247

Increase in equity contributions 126,029 126,029

Loss for the year (10,061) (10,061)

BALANCEAT
31 DECEMBBR.2017 508,895 (90,680) 418,215

All amounts in Thousand Euro unless otherwise stated
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Company Company

Nm& 31 DeeaQI2 3! DI:5: aQlfi
OPEXATING ACTIVITIES
Loss after tax (10,061) (50,223)

Adjustments
Other operating income (5,080)

Other administrative expenses 38 5,548
Net finance expense 39 7,395 47,213
Depreciation expense 263

Operating profit/ 0088) before changes in working
capital 3,145 (8,090)

Changes inworking capital
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables (543) 5,248

Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables (11,981) 4.544
Interest paid (146,514) (83,042)

Interest received 169,535 174,537
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACDVITIES 13.642 93,197
INVESTING AcnvmES
Investments in acquisitions and developments

Acquisition of other long-term assets (51) (162)

Loans granted to third parties (4,208)

Investments in subsidiaries 33 (654) (109,625)

Loans granted to subsidiaries 33 (630,519) (650.325)
Repayments of loans to subsidiaries 33 40,024 70,003

CASH FLOWS USED IN INVESTING ACTIVI11ES (595.408) (690,109)
FINANCING AcnvITIES

Proceeds from intercompany borrowings 17 318,683 185,484
Proceeds from bank loans 17 130,000

Proceeds from bonds 17 500,000 50,000
Repayment of bank loans 17 (95,000) (35,000)
Repayment of bonds (50,000)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 673,683 330,484

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS 91,917 (266,428)

Cash and cash equivalents brought forward 35 12,241 278,669
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS CA.lUUED

FORWARD 15 104,158 12,241
All amounts in Thousand Euro unless otherwise stated



NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32. BASIS OF PREPARATION

The company financial statements ofNE PROPERlY COOPERATlEF U.A ("the Company") have
been prepared in accordance with !FRS as adopted by European Union.
In case no other policies are mentioned, refer to the accounting policies as described in the
accounting policies In the consolidated financial statements. For an appropriate interpretation, the
company financial statements ofNE PROPERlY COOPERATIEP U.A should be read in
conjunction with the consolidated financial statements.
All amounts are presented in e'ooo, unless stated otherwise. The balance sheet and income
statement references have been included. These refer to the notes.

33. iNVESTMHNT IN SUBSIDIAlUBS AND JOINT VENTURES

The Company has direct investments and indirect holdings in other Group companies that were
included .in the consolidated financial statements, and are detailed below. In the Company's
financial statements, investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. The assessment of recoverability of investments in subsidiaries carried out by management
as at 31 December 2017 resulted in an impairment of C6,78o thousand (31 December 2016:

€32A52 thousand).
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31 Dec 2017 31 Dec 2017 31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2016
5DhlisUu:xl jlli~1Bgture ~gD current Currenl liQD::glI::t~D1 Curum
Arena Center Zagreb d.o.o. 170,710 8,366 170,710 8,359
AUPARK Kosice SC, s.r.o. 1,124 3 2,083
AUPARK Kosice, spo!. s.r.o. 22,334 59 22,869 ,..
AUPARK Piestany, spol. s.r .0. 12,040 32 18,155 350
AUPARK Tower Kosice, s.r .0. 6,796 50 7,389 42
AUPARK 2ilina spol. s.r.o. 313 3
Aurora Mall Buzau SRI. 6,854 35 7.493 16
Braila Promenada Mall SRL 70,938 2,304 66,640 5,137
Brasov Shopping City SRL 12,938 682 12,162 838
City park Constanta SRL (previously
named Everest Investitii 5i Consultanta
SRL) 27.385 1,5°8 27,010 171
Cluj Business Centre SRL •• 6,000 12 9,839 35
Constanta Shopping City SRL
(previously named Nepi Five Property
Development SRL) 74,98.4 712 68,706 6,252
Deva Shopping City SRL (previously
named Mercureal SRL) 64,915 270 64,096 1,948
Floreasca Business Park SRL 58,860 114 60,562 408
Floreasca Center SRL 2,361 191 2,052 271
FORUM Usti s.r.o, 43,324 237 44,000 406
Galati Sbopping City SRL 67,492 3,469 46,277 1.971
General Building Management SRL 3.527 215 4,481 413
General Investment SRL 8,590 45 9.952 569
lNLOGlS VI s.r.o. 5,288 14 4.939 441
Iris Titan Shopping Center SRL
(previously named Degi TItan SRL) 38,717 93 40,709 294
Lakeview Office Building SRI. 46,338 670 47,221 409
Marketing Advisers SRL 260 16 143 8
Mega Mall Bucuresti SRI. (previously
named ELJ Vatra SRL) 268.393 5.270 268,595 530
Modatim Business FaCl1itySA 5,026 12 7.443 15
NEPI Bucharest One SRL 121'483 265 12,469 138
NEPI Bucharest Two SRL 9,067 205 9,378 117
Nepi Eighteen Property Services SRL 40 2 5
N epi Fifteen Real Estate
Administration SRL 11,948 906 10,527 641
Nepi Four Real Estate Solutions SRL 36,090 2,877 28.821 3,125
NEPI Investment Management SRI.. 204 16 184 20
NEPI Project Four nOOD 11.0.19 45
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NEPI Project One EOOD 204.407 1,708
NEPI Project Two EOOD 255,454 2,063 ~
NEPI Real Estate Project One d.o.o. 62,050 3,618 31AOO 2,050
NEPI Real Estate Project Two d.o.o. 5,516 412 5,020 46
Nepi Seventeen Land Development
SRL 9 1 8
NEPI Six Development SRL 27 2 25 2
Nepi Sixteen Real Estate Investment
SRL 49,840 3,986 44,895 4,946
NEPJ Ten Development Solutions SRL ]2,728 313 12,179 442
Nepi Three Building Management SRL 654 53 594 64
NRE Sibiu Shopping City SRL 50,435 2,979 48,732 1,702
Otopeni Warehouse and Logistics SRL 2,391 39 2,539 58
Ploiesti Shopping City SRL •• 18,128 1,303 19,710 1,035
Promenada Mall Bucuresti SRL
(previously named Floreasca City
CenterSRL) 117,599 1.549 112,906 7,240
Ramnicu Valcea Shopping City SRL 34,266 1,368 9A96 714
Real Estate Asset Management SRL 6 5 1

Retail Park Pitesti SRL 23,123 61 31,242 1,678
SCPs.r.o. 24.467 64 28,020 765
SEKd.o.o. 28.694 2,367 26,229 2,379

Severin Shopping Center SRL 22,620 85 22,735 1,660

Shopping City Piatra Neamt SRL 24,322 183 35,396 2,06«}

Shopping City Sibiu (previously
named Bel Rom Trei SRL) 14,079 581 14.349 31
Shopping City Tirnisoara SRL 75,503 354 86,651 7,274
Sofia Commercial Centre ROOD 91 1
Targu Jiu Development SRL 35,825 149 35,315 611
Targu Mures Shopping City SRL 10,140 50] 4,010 60
Timisoara City Business Center One
SRL 19,286 1,\36 19,623 13
Timisoara Office Building SRL 30,711 1,013 27,934 1,037
Victoriei Office Building SRL 34.404 2,656 29,532 2,847
Vulcan Value Centre SRL 50,805 252 49,865 979
Total :1,313,625 57,492 1,773,633 72,631
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The assessment of recoverabiJity of loans granted to subsidiaries carried out by management as at
31 December 2017 resulted in an impairment of Cll,753 thousand (31 December 2016: C16,498
thousand). However, the term loan between the Company and Nepiom Limited stipulates that in
case the Company cannot recover a certain portion of the loans granted to its subsidiaries (that are
financed out of the term loan granted to the Company by Nepiom Limited), the Company may
claim this uncollectable amount from Nepiom Limited, the obligation of the Company in respect to
the uncollectable amount being limited to 1% of the amount. Therefore, the Company assigned the
impairment charge in the amount of Cll,635 thousand (31 December 2016: C16,333 thousand) to
Nepiom Limited, recording in its account the remaining 1% of the total impairment charge,
representing C1l8 thousand (31 December 2016: C165 thousand).

The current portion of loans granted to subsidiaries incJude interest accrued as at each year end.
Carrying amounts of the loans granted to subsidiaries approximate the fair value of those loans.
During 2017, the Company increased its investment in certain subsidiaries through conversion of
loans to equity in total amount of C53,666 thousand (2016: C66,100 thousand).

No securities or guarantees have been agreed for intercompany loans. The contractual maturity is
31 December 2021 or 31 December 2017. For loans that expired as at 31 December 2017,
management has classified these as non-current as they are not expected to be received in the next
financial year. Interest rates on the intercompany loans were decreased from 12% to 8% effective 1

October 2016.

34. TRADE AND oraaa RECEIVABLES

Receivable from group companies

Prepaid fees

Other receivables

Company Company
31 Des: ZSU2 31Jl~ag16

3,928 3,798

111 7

340 24

4,379 3,829TOTAL

35. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Details of cash and eash equivalents by currencies

EUR

RON

TOTAL

Company Company
31 Dec 2g12 31 Il"IOI6

104,127 12,211

31 30

104,158 12,241



36. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Company Company
31Dec20t7 31 Dee2~U~

Deferred consideration on business combinations 2,151 3,262

Administrative and secretarial accrued expenses 569 104

Guarantee fee" 4,965

Payable to group companies 291 7,609

TOTAL 3,011 15.940

• On 1 October 2016, the Company concluded a service agreement with its ultimate parent, NRP
plc, which states that the Company wiD pay an annual guarantee fee to NRP plc for its role of
guarantor under the external financing agreements concluded by the Company, namely issued fixed
coupon bonds, revolving facilities and any other secured or un-secured financing arrangements
that the Company can enter into in the future.

At 1October 2016, NRP pic has converted its receivable related to the guarantee fee for financial
years 2015 and 2016 (for the period 1 January - 30 September) into equity contributions. This has
been achieved through a three party agreement dated 1October 2016, between NEPJ plc, NEPI
Holdings Ltd (Company's member) and the Company, whereby the parties agree that NRP plc
waives its right to receive the guarantee fee in exchange of a capital contribution on its shares in
NEPI Holdings Ltd, and NEPI Holdings Ltd considers the amount contributed as a capital
contribution on its membership rights in the Company. The payable balance outstanding as at 31
December 2016 in the table above represents the guarantee fee under the new service agreement
concluded on 1October 2016 (for the period 1October - 31 December 2016).

At 31 December 2017, Company's equity has been increased with an amount of £36,998 thousand
as a result or guarantee fee, royaity tee and other management fee payabie to NRP pic convemon to
equity contributions. This has been achieved through a three party agreement between NRP ple,
NEPI Holdings Ltd (Company's member) and the Company, whereby the parties agree that NRP
plc waives its right to receive the named fees in exchange of a capital contribution on its shares in
NEPI Holdings Ltd, and NEPI Holdings Ltd considers the amount contributed as a capital
contribution on its membership rights in the Company.
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37. EQUITY

The difference between equity according to the company balance sheet and equity according to the
consolidated balance sheet of £31,,357 thousand (2016: £157,665 thousand), as well as the result
according to the company income statement and result according to the consolidated income
statement of C159,692 thousand (2016: C115,244 thousand) is due mainly to the following:

Retained earnings differences Company Company
explained 31Dec 2017 3&D" a21~
(J>mfit)l1oSR attributable to non- 2.'~16

Eliminated Intercompany transaction (164.497) (142,396)
Share of profit of joint venture 16,068 6,383
Deferred tax exnense ("1.S..81 (~.4.808)
Current tax exnense (2.6.46) (1.66.4)
Profit on disposal of investment property
held for sale 438 (485)
Results of subsidiaries, net of 362,981 286,128
Other (7Q4) (2~0)
Profit/loss difference 159,692 115,244
Acquisition of non-wntroUing interest (22,124)
Differences from previous years ~ ~
Ac:cumulated profit 317,357 157.665

At 31 December 2017, the Company has converted part of its outstanding debt towards Nepiom Ltd,
in amount of £89,030 thousand, into equity contributions. This has been achieved by way of a four
party assignment agreement between NRP plc, NEPIOM Ltd, NEPI Holdings Ltd (Company's
member) and the Company. whereby the above mentioned amount bas been assigned by NEPIOM
Ltd to NEPI Holdings Ltd, the latter becoming the new creditor towards the Company of the said
amount. The resulting loan payable by the Company to NEPI Holdings Ltd has been converted
effective as of 31 December 2017 into a capital contribution on NEPI Holdings Ltd's membership
rights in the Company.

In addition, at 31 December 2017. Company's equity has been increased with an amount of C36,998
thousand as a result of guarantee fee, royalty fee and other management fee payable for the year
2017 conversion to equity contributions. This has been achieved through a three party agreement
between NRP ple, NEPI Holdings Ltd (Company's member) and the Company, whereby the parties
agree that NRP pIc waives its right to receive the named fees in exchange of a capital contribution
on its shares in NEPI Holdings Ltd, and NEPI Holdings Ltd considers the amount contnbuted as a
capital contribution on its membership rights in the Company.

In accordance with the Company's Articles of Association, the directors propose to allocate the
current year result to the accumulated losses.
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38. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Company Company

31 Dec 2017 31 Dec 2016

Staff costs- (451) (494)

Audit and advisory services (1,126) (934)

Travel and accommodation (304) (127)

Companies administration (414) (358)

Royalty fees - intra-group <5,548) (3,840)

TOTAL (7,843) (5,753)

During the year 2017, the average number of employees, based on full time equivalents, was 4
(2016: 4). The company did not have any employees working outside the Netherlands.

The statutory directors' remuneration is presented in the table below (in EUR):

Jan van Eugen MireJ. Bogdan
YDJJenboven IW1m Cown Y:oin~1<D DUAl

201, 94,770 79,304 21,708 195,782
2016 86,963 87,917 18,071 47SJO 240,521

Fees incurred with PwC were as follows:

PrlcewaterlwuseCoopers OtherPwC TotalPwC
201, .4~untrm&! .N,~, network netwQl:k

(C) (€) (€)
Audit of the financial statements 35,000 8,000 43,000
Other assurance procedures ~I!lfio 2°1336 :M,Z86

89,450 28,336 117,,86

Pric£watuhouseCooper8 atherPwC TotolPwC
2016 ~~Hn{gnll N.~, neWZ!!rk netw!'!l:k

(C) (C) a»
Audit of the financial statements 30,000 8,000 38,000
Other assurance procedures

30,000 8,000 38,000
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39 NET FINANCE INCOME/(EXPENSE)

Company Company
31 Decalu:z 31D"Zg"

Interest income from subsidiaries 157,674 173,125

Interest on bank deposits 10 528

Finance income 157,684 173,653

Interest expense on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost (1,578) (756)

Interest expense on intercompany borrowings (116,072) (119,889)

Impairment of investments in equity of controlled subsidiaries (6,780) (32A52)

Impairment of intercompany loans (u8) (164)

Interest expense on bonds (16,570) (15,194)

Amortisation of bonds borrowings costs (1,133) (1,061)

Other intercompany finance expense' (20,944) (SOA30)

Amortisation of bonds issue discount (403) (307)

Bank charges (1,481) (613)

Finance expense (165,079) (220,866)

TOTAL (7,395) (47,213)
• Other intercompany finance expense represent guarantee fees.

40. FINA...'l'ClALRISK MANAGEMENTAND FINANCIALINSTRUME.VI'S

Disclosures in relation to the Group's exposure to risks, as well as its objectives, policies and
processes for measuring and managing risk made in note 6 are relevant to the Company as well.
The Company's maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is set out below.

Company Company
Credit exposure on financial instruments ~ 31D"2g17 31 Dec 2016

Loans granted to subsidiaries 33 2,371,117 1,846,264

Trade and other receivables 34 4,268 3,829

Cash and cash equivalents 35 104,158 12,241

TOTAL 2,479,543 1,862,334
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41. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

inMarch 2018, the Company has extended its revolving credit facility of Cl00 million with lNG, for
an additional term of three years.
Management are not aware of any other subsequent events from 31 December 2017 and up to the
date of signing these financial statements which are likely to have a material effect on the financial
information contained in this report, other than as disclosed in the Directors' report.



Other information

Provi6ions in the Articles qfAsBociation relating to profit

Pursuant to the company's Articles of Association, the result shall be at full disposal of the
annual general meeting of members. Distribution of profits may only be made to the extent that
members' equity exceeds the total of the issued and paid-up capital and legal reserves.

Amsterdam, 27 April 2018

Board of Directors,

De handtekening
is door de KvK

onleesbaar gemaakt

De handtekening
is door de I(vl(

onleesbaar gemaakt


